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MHLATHUZE WATER
“Your preferred water service provider”

M

hlathuze Water is one of the leading water utilities in South Africa today, providing a world-class service to its customers. Based
in KwaZulu-Natal, Mhlathuze Water’s area of supply spans the entire KZN Province. The organisation’s commitment and focused
direction in providing a safe and dependable water service is indicative in its consistent success.

Mhlathuze Water has built and operates an inter-basin transfer scheme, a major water treatment plant, an offshore waste water disposal
pipeline, and manages water treatment and sewage plants on an agency basis for industry and municipalities.

OUR SERVICES:
- Bulk Water Provision: Raw, Purified and Clarified
- Bulk Waste Water Disposal
- Scientific Services
- Water Resources Management
- Services to Water Services Authorities (WSA)
- Implementing Agent for Schools, Water and Sanitation
Infrastructure, and Working for Water Programme

VISION
To be the regional water and waste water service provider of
choice for all stakeholders in the water value chain.

MISSION
To provide and expand affordable, sustainable, quality and
reliable regional water and waste water services to stakeholders,
improve quality of life and contribute to development.

CORE VALUES

- Enthusiasm (play, fun, passion)
We will treat all people with respect, warmth, integrity,
passion, courtesy and enthusiasm to make them feel special.
- Honesty and Transparency
We will develop a culture of trustworthiness, transparency and
loyalty that responds to our customers and fellow employees
with honesty and passion.
- Excellence
We will continue to maximize the use of available resources
so that Mhlathuze Water continues to produce work of an
excellent quality.
- Fairness
We will maintain high ethical standards as well as allocate
and share responsibilities in a fair and equitable manner.
- Accountability
We will make ourselves available to our customers and remain
accountable to all our stakeholders at all times.
- Creativity and Innovation
We will continually strive for new, different and efficient ways
of doing what we do, challenging the status quo, mind-sets
and assumptions.
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SAVE WATER: Turn the tap off between washing your face, brushing your teeth or shaving.

A view of the Goedertrouw Dam from the top of the dam wall.
Water percentage: 18.75% (July 2016)
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MANDATE
CONSTITUTION
In terms of the Constitution, Section 27(1) (b): “Everyone has the right to have access to sufficient food and water” and, “the state must
take reasonable legislative and other measures, within its available resources, to achieve the progress of realisation of each of these
rights.” Mhlathuze Water, as a state owned entity, is established in terms of the Water Services Act to comply with the above provision
from the supreme law of the land.

WATER ACT
Mhlathuze Water is a statutory water utility that was established in terms of section 176 of the Water Act (Act No. 54 of 1956).

WATER SERVICES ACT
Mhlathuze Water is deemed to be a Water Board in terms of the Water Services Act (Act No. 108 of 1997) of South Africa.

PUBLIC FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT
Corporate Governance embodies processes and systems by which State-Owned Enterprises (SOE) are directed, controlled and held to
account. In addition, the legislative requirements based on SOE’s enabling legislation and corporate governance with regard to SOE are
applied through the precepts of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) (Act No. 1 of 1999) and to run in tandem with the Protocol
on Corporate Governance, which encapsulates the principles contained in the King III Report on Corporate Governance. In the PFMA
schedule, Mhlathuze Water is listed as a schedule 3(B) Public entity of the national government state-owned enterprises.

A view of the weir showing the spillage after a flash flood in July 2016.
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SAVE WATER: Use low-flow showerheads, dual-flush toilet mechanisms and water-efficient washing machines.

NOTE OF APPRECIATION
The mandate of Mhlathuze Water during the year under review, could not have been fulfilled without the support,
co-operation and contribution of the following stakeholders:
- Department of Water and Sanitation;
- His Majesty, King Goodwill Zwelithini kaBheku-Zulu;
- Board of Directors of Mhlathuze Water;
- Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs;
- Department of Education;
- Department of Basic Education;
- Department of Environmental Affairs;
- Office of the Premier in KwaZulu-Natal;
- Amakhosi;
- Municipalities;
- Contractors;
- Customers;
- Financial institutions;
- Professional bodies;
- Institutes of Higher Education;
- Schools; and
- Employees of Mhlathuze Water.
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FOREWORD
BY THE
MINISTER OF
WATER AND
SANITATION
Ms NOMVULA MOKONYANE, MP

T

he year 2015/16 has been a difficult and eventful year for the water
family and our country. Over this period our country experienced
the worst drought in decades, resulting in eight (8) of our nine (9)
provinces declaring provincial disasters.

MINISTER OF WATER AND SANITATION

As government, working with our Water Boards and the private
sector we had to coordinate relief efforts aimed at promoting the
responsible use of water, providing alternative water supplies to
communities and support to industry and water users.

As we push to deliver new infrastructure, it is also in our interest
to work closely with the Districts to bolster their capacity to
operate and maintain the new and old infrastructure and to
refurbish existing infrastructure.

Mhlathuze Water covers the Northern parts of Kwazulu-Natal
which were amongst the hardest hit areas during this drought.
I am proud to say that the Board, working with the provincial
and local governments, has been instrumental in assisting us to
deliver on our drought-relief efforts and water-saving awareness
campaigns.

The planned growth and increased industrial activity in and
around Richards Bay is equally another opportunity to ensure that
working with the private sector, we provide support to industry
and provide water to our people simultaneously.

This is reflective of the intergovernmental co-ordination necessary
to respond to periods of difficulty and ensure the delivery of
services to our people with speed and in compliance with the
accepted quality standards.
To achieve intensified delivery, skills sharing and equitable
distribution of the limited available resources, we also announced
the future establishment of a single Kwazulu-Natal Water Board
that would arise from the merger of the Mhlathuze, Umgeni and
uThukela Water Boards.
This arises out of the diagnostic report of the National
Development Plan and is a deliverable linked to our plan of
institutional reform and transformation.
It is my wish to see the skills and resources located currently
in Umgeni Water Board shared and combined with those at the
Mhlathuze Water Board to ensure that we intensify the delivery
of water to our people and begin to service more rapidly the
northern, rural parts of Kwazulu-Natal.

6

New alternative sources of water will be explored including
desalination and these require the active participation of all
partners with the department and the Water Board being critical
parties to the success of such interventions.
I am pleased to present and attach my approval of this Annual
Report as a true reflection of the work Mhlathuze Water has
undertaken, as per mandate from the Department of Water and
Sanitation, to deliver water services to our people.
We commend the board, management and employees of
Mhlathuze Water for their efforts and the important work they
continue to undertake.
Amanzi ayimpilo: water is life!

Nomvula Mokonyane, MP
Minister of Water and Sanitation
27 September 2016

SAVE WATER: Kettles should not be filled to the brim but with just enough water for your needs. This will reduce your electricity bill too.

CHAIRPERSON’S
FOREWORD

Ms DUDU MYENI

I

t gives me great pleasure as the Chairperson of the Board to present
this high-level report on the performance of the organisation for
the 2015/16 reporting period. The year under review has been
a challenging one for the organisation, both from leadership and
operational perspectives.

CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD

Credit must go to the Board as a collective for having steered
the ship through treacherous waters over the past 12 months.
The Board has had to make difficult decisions in order to restore
the organisation’s integrity, both to internal and external
stakeholders. This notwithstanding, we still had to focus on
meeting customer needs and expectations, strive to achieve the
shareholder’s mandate, and work towards objectives that we’ve
set for ourselves as an organisation.
A considerable amount of time and effort was spent dealing with
challenges resulting from the drought. As I reflect on the past, I
cannot help but also anticipate the future - one that holds big
changes for the organisation and the water provision landscape
in the province of KZN.
2016 marks 40 years since the 1976 youth uprisings in Soweto.
It was a time when young people took the future into their own
hands and changed the political landscape of our country. In
celebration of this milestone Mhlathuze Water, in conjunction
with Umgeni Water and DWS hosted a Youth Day Celebration
in Vryheid. About 140 learners from eight different schools,
including rural schools in the area, participated. I hope that we
succeeded in inspiring those young minds to take responsibility
for their future, in the same way their erstwhile counterparts did
all those years ago!
This Board’s term of office was extended by the Minister for an
indefinite period starting from July 2015. This was the second
such extension since the term of office expired in March 2015.
In exercising their oversight role, the Board convened meetings
in line with the organisation’s business cycle and shareholder
requirements. Apart from the regular meetings, a number of

special meetings were organised to deal with issues of drought
and other pressing matters. As required, a strategy session was
also held with management.
The imminent disestablishment of Mhlathuze Water and Umgeni
Water and the establishment of a single water board of KZN
as announced by the Minister of Water and Sanitation, the
Honourable Nomvula Mokonyane, in August 2015 also deserves
special mention. This process is expected to culminate in the
dissolution of the two entities and the establishment of one
new Regional Water Board for KZN. The rationale behind this
move by the Minister is that the two entities will consolidate
their skills and assets to improve service delivery and access to
underserviced areas. As a Board, we are excited about this new
development and are fully in support of the Minister’s initiative.
I am honoured to have been appointed as the Interim Steering
Committee Chairperson that oversees this process.
Following a ministerial directive in June 2015 for the organisation
to assist with drought intervention measures in the Zululand
District Municipality area, a Memorandum of Agreement was
signed between the two entities. This ground-breaking agreement
was signed at a prestigious function graced by His Majesty King
Goodwill Zwelithini kaBheku-Zulu. The agreement paves way
for much needed drought relief for the area. The Department of
Water and Sanitation has made funds available for this much
needed intervention. Contractors have been appointed and work
will commence in earnest once the required material has been
delivered.
Mhlathuze Water was also appointed by the DWS as an
implementing agent for a traditional cleansing ceremony for
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communities residing around Pongolapoort Dam. It is alleged
that when the dam was constructed, graves along the uPongola
River were not exhumed and relocated thus upsetting the
affected communities and families. The ceremony also included a
monument for communities that were affected by the construction
of the dam. The ceremony took place on the 29th and 30th of
April and was officiated by the Minister of Water and Sanitation.
The African Water Association held its 18th biennial congress in
February in Nairobi, Kenya. It was a momentous occasion for me
as the outgoing Chairperson, after leading the organisations for
4 years. The congress was officially opened by the President of
the Republic of Kenya, His Excellency Uhuru Kenyatta. The event
was a huge success.
The Water Institute of Southern Africa (WISA) also held its
biennial conference on our doorstep in Durban in May. We had
the pleasure of co- hosting the Gala Dinner together with Umgeni
Water. Mhlathuze Water is a corporate member of WISA and is
proud to be associated with this prestigious organisation in the
water sector.
In 2015 the organisation made a commitment through the
signing of a formal agreement with the Isibusiso Esihle Science
Discovery Center located in Velabusha Village in the rural area
of kwaNgwanase in the Mhlabuyalingana Local Municipality.
The aims and objectives of this centre are in line with the
organisation’s Corporate Social Investment strategy. During
the year under review Mhlathuze Water also assisted in the
refurbishment of the premises of the Science Centre. During the
reporting period, the Board has also been involved in other CSI
projects, including the donation of uniforms to Queen Nandi
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Primary School, and the refurbishment of the Fantocy Creche in
Mandlanzini, Richards Bay.
The organisation is also pleased to report that a new Enterprise
and Supplier Development Strategy was approved by the Board.
This strategy seeks to ensure that the organisation complies with
the new BBBEE codes while creating a platform for small and
medium enterprises to participate in a meaningful way in the
mainstream economy. With the legwork done, implementation of
the strategy will start in earnest in the new financial year.
Furthermore, an innovation strategy was also adopted by the
organisation. With increasing pressure placed on water resources
and the environment as a whole, the organisation believes that
it cannot be business as usual. New and innovative solutions
are needed to address the current and emerging challenges. The
strategy seeks to create a framework to guide the organisations
approach to innovation and to some extent water-related
research.
Financially the organisation performed well as demonstrated by a
surplus of R146,9 million on the financial overview.
We are pleased to report that Mhlathuze Water has achieved an
unqualified audit report for the year ended 30 June 2016.

Dudu Myeni
Chairperson of the Board
27 September 2016

SAVE WATER: Fix a leaking toilet otherwise it can waste up to 100 000 litres of water in one year.

INTERIM
CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S
REPORT

I
Mr Mthokozisi P. Duze
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The passion to serve and the responsiveness to new initiatives
are key catalysts that are sure to take the organisation to greater
heights. I have found the organisation to be performing well and
to be customer-centric. Our approach will be to continue on that
positive trajectory of improving and even excelling in the coming
period.
In a thriving democracy like South Africa it is always imperative
that we appreciate that there is a vested interest in accountability.
This Annual Report encapsulates a snapshot of the organisation’s
performance and achievements over the past twelve months. In
reflecting on the past achievements, we are able to assess if we
are on the right track in order to be deemed fit for our purpose.
It is often said that “water is life” and history has proved that
without this precious source of life, there will be setbacks to all
development strides made by human beings. Water stress is a
growing national and global concern that could challenge growth
and economic prospects in our country, province and region. How
we manage water risks and opportunities today will determine
our long-term viability. According to statistics, the Mhlathuze
corridor, which Mhlathuze Water services, is considered one of
the fastest growing nodes. The comparative advantage of this
region lies in its industrial development, agriculture, services and
tourism.
This comparative advantage, if fully capitalised, will place the
entire region we service on a sustainable growth trajectory. Water
provision and availability are sure to play a critical role in ensuring
that the full economic and development potential of this district
is exploited. Planning for water use and management of water
for development, whilst also providing water to those who still
do not enjoy access to this precious source of life, is a key pillar

t is a pleasure to present the Mhlathuze Water Annual Report
to the Minister for the reporting year 2015/16. It has been
three months since I assumed the responsibilities as the Chief
Executive of Mhlathuze Water, and indeed I am inspired by the
dynamism and appetite for innovation that exists within the
organisation.

of Mhlathuze Water’s Resource Management Strategy. We service
communities who, on a daily basis, are growing ever impatient
to wake up and face the stark reality of walking long distances
to fetch water and at times in conditions that undermine their
dignity as human beings. It is against this backdrop that we have
to continuously seek innovation and lead in water research so
that we can aid our province’s development efforts.
In the year under review, Mhlathuze Water’s record of
performance has been punctuated by exhilarating achievements
and challenges. Despite the highs and lows, we remained focused,
firm and resolute and navigated the ship towards calm waters.
The uThungulu District Municipality (now King Cetshwayo), where
we operate, is one of KZN’s regions most adversely affected by
the ongoing drought. Generally, lake levels in the area remain
low, albeit with a slight recovery owing to rains during the winter
months. Thus with some coastal lakes having dried up and others
teetering on the brink of drying up, the 2015/16 rain season was
expected to bring much needed relief to the region and country,
but alas, it was not to be!
The worst drought in living memory has dominated the headlines
during the period under review, and for good reason. The
Goedertrouw Dam, which is currently the lifeline of Richards Bay
and surrounding areas, continued to drop and as at the end of
the reporting period it was about 19% of its’ total capacity.
The organisation, together with the national Department of
Water and Sanitation (DWS) and key stakeholders in the area,
has implemented a number of interventions to mitigate the
drought’s negative impact. Level 4 restrictions were gazetted and
implemented in March and Mhlathuze Water is at the forefront
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of enforcing the restrictions in the area of supply and this has so
far proven fruitful.
An emergency upgrade of the Tugela-Goedertrouw Transfer
Scheme was identified as a viable intervention to improve water
security in the area. Funding for this project to the value of
over R400-million has been secured from DWS and plans are
underway to fast-track the implementation. Furthermore, as an
immediate measure, the shareholder (DWS) has made available
funding to install mobile desalination units to supply the Richards
Bay area.
The drought has also affected the areas surrounding Mtubatuba
and St Lucia, in particular the uMkhanyakude District Municipality.
The uMfolozi River has dried up to the extent that sand river
abstraction is currently the method applied to access water and
the capacity is not enough to service the entire area. We were
requested by DWS to provide emergency water tankering in the
areas surrounding the Mtubatuba Local Municipality, and also to
install water tanks in the District.
Mhlathuze Water is a signatory to a tripartite agreement with
DWS and uMkhanyakude District Municipality wherein the
organisation is to implement water infrastructure projects funded
by DWS in the District. Further to this agreement, Mhlathuze Water
received a directive from the Minister of Water and Sanitation,
Ms Nomvula Mokonyane in January 2016 to implement all bulk
water projects in the uMkhanyakude District Municipality to the
value of R5.8-billion.
Currently there are continuous engagements with the
Department to access the funding for all these projects. These
projects will address the huge backlog in this district amounting
to 38% of the area being without any water. This appointment is
a vote of confidence in the organisation’s capabilities to deliver.
An important milestone in our involvement in the district is the
completion of the 40 Ml/day water treatment plant in Jozini,
which was handed over to Mhlathuze Water in June 2016 by the
main contractor.
It is regrettable to us as an organisation that one of our employees,
Mr Richard Sithole, passed away in the line of duty at the Mkhalazi
Pumpstation. He was a supervisor at the Pumpstation and was
accidentally injured in January 2016 and finally succumbed to his
injuries a few days after the incident. May his soul rest in peace.
The Mkhalazi Pumpstation is part of the Tugela-Goedertrouw
Transfer Scheme which is critical to ensuring that Richards
Bay and surrounding areas get adequate water during these
difficult times. Mhlathuze Water has a good safety record, and
fatalities, though unfortunate and rare, only serve to propel the
organisation to continuously improve systems and processes to
further improve safety in our installations.
On the operational front, the organisation is improving the storage
capacity at its flagship installation, the Nsezi Water Treatment
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Plant. The current onsite storage is inadequate to allow the plant
to be taken offline to do maintenance even for short periods.
Currently maintenance is planned to coincide with shutdowns of
key customers to minimise disruptions to water supply. With an
additional storage capacity of 40 Ml currently under construction,
the plant will be able to be taken offline for a few hours without
disruption to water supply. Work on the two (2) reservoirs is at an
advanced stage and they are both expected to be commissioned
before the end of the 2016 calendar year.
Water at the Nsezi Water Treatment Plant continues to be of
the highest quality, with 99.9% compliance achieved for the
period under review. The Nsezi system has also maintained its
Blue Drop certification, an accomplishment which we are proud
of. Compliance with the disposal permit at the Effluent Disposal
Pumpstation improved from the previous year with an overall
compliance of 84.5%. The successful implementation of financial
penalties to contributors to the effluent system is expected to
improve compliance going forward.
Mhlathuze Water is committed to the development of human
capital. During the year under review, 30 staff members received
bursaries to further their studies at academic institutions. The
organisation also operates three graduate programmes to aid
with development. Furthermore, 15 interns were brought on
board. The learnership programme is partly sponsored by the
EWSETA through a discretionary grant.
Mhlathuze Water received recognition at the Careers24 Awards
held in July 2015. These are national awards to recognise
excellence in HR-related matters. The organisation scooped two
awards; the South African Employer of Choice and the South
African Manager of the Year Awards. The organisation was also
a finalist in the utility category of the KZN Top Business Awards.
Finally, I am pleased to report that Mhlathuze Water has achieved
a clean bill of health on financial matters. This is an additional
recognition of our commitment to fulfilling our mandate to the
best of our ability in the difficult environment compounded by the
on-going drought.
I remain indebted to the Chairperson, the Board, our employees
and stakeholders for all their contributions and support which
has ensured the accomplishments we made in the 2015/16
season. Together we will continue to make a positive impact in
the growth of our province and better improvement to the lives
of the clients we serve.

Mthokozisi P. Duze
Interim Chief Executive
27 September 2016

AUDIT
AND RISK
COMMITTEE
REPORT

T
Mr Musa Xulu
CHAIRPERSON OF AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

his report is provided by the Audit and Risk Committee
(Audit Committee) in respect of the 2015/16 financial year
of Mhlathuze Water in compliance with section 38(1)(a)(ii)
and 77(a) of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA). The
Audit Committee’s operations are guided by a detailed charter
that is informed by the PFMA and King III as approved by the
Board.

Membership
The Audit and Risk Committee was appointed by the Board of
Directors in respect of the 2015/16 financial year.

•

The current Audit and Risk Committee members were appointed
on 12 March 2011:
• Musa Xulu (Chairperson);
• Brian Rawlins;
• Bonginkosi Mshengu; and
• Nica Gevers

•
•
•
•

All members of the committee are not executive members of
Mhlathuze Water.
•
Purpose
The purpose of the Audit and Risk Committee is:
• To assist the Board in discharging its duties relating to the
safeguarding of assets, the operation of adequate systems,
control and reporting processes, and the preparation of
accurate reporting and financial statements in compliance
with the applicable legal requirements and accounting
standards;
• To provide the Chief Financial Officer, internal and external
auditor’s access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee
or any member of the Audit and Risk Committee as is
required in relation to any matter falling within the remit of
the Audit and Risk Committee;
• To meet with the external auditors at least on an annual
basis and discuss External Audit matters;
• To provide a forum for discussing business risk and control
issues and developing recommendations for consideration
by the Board;

To monitor enterprise-wide, operational strategic, regulatory,
safety and other risks, as well as to ensure adequate
mitigation thereof by way of monitoring controls that have
been implemented to curtail and minimise risk;
To review Mhlathuze Water’s financial statements and other
compliance reports;
To oversee the activities of and ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external audit;
To perform duties that are assigned to it by the Water Services
Act, and as governed by other legislative requirements;
To receive and deal with any complaints concerning the
accounting practices, internal audit or the content and audit
of its financial statements or related matters; and
To conduct an annual review of the Audit and Risk
Committee’s work and terms of reference and make
recommendations to the Board to ensure that the Audit and
Risk Committee operates at maximum effectiveness.

Execution of functions
The Audit and Risk Committee has executed its duties and
responsibilities during the financial year in accordance with
its terms of reference as they relate to the Mhlathuze Water’s
accounting, internal auditing, internal control and financial
reporting practices.
During the year under review, the Audit and Risk Committee:
• Recommended appointment of KPMG Inc as the external
Auditor for the financial year ended 30 June 2016 and
ensured that the appointment complied with all applicable
legal and regulatory requirements for the appointment of
an audit. The Audit and Risk Committee confirms that the
auditor is accredited.;
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•

•

•

•

Recommended the approval of the external audit
engagement letter, the plan and the budgeted audit fees
payable to the external auditor;
Reviewed the audit, evaluated the effectiveness of the
auditor and its independence and evaluated the external
auditor’s internal quality control procedures;
Determined the nature and extent of all non-audit services
provided by the external auditor and approved all non-audit
services undertaken; and
Considered whether any reportable irregularities were
identified and reported by the external auditors in terms of
Auditing Profession Act, 2005, and determined that there
were none.

In respect of the financial statements, the Committee amongst
other matters:
• Confirmed the going concern as the basis of preparation of
the annual financial statements;
• Reviewed compliance with the financial conditions of loan
covenants and determined that the capital of Mhlathuze
Water was adequate;
• Examined and reviewed the annual financial statements, as
well as all financial information disclosed to the public prior
to submission and approval by Board;
• Ensured that the annual financial statements fairly present
the financial position of Mhlathuze Water as at the end of the
financial year and the results of operations and cash flows
for the financial year and considered the basis on which
Mhlathuze Water was determined to be a going concern;
• Considered accounting treatments, significant unusual
transactions, fruitless expenditure and accounting
judgements;
• Considered the appropriateness of the accounting policies
adopted and changes thereto.
• Reviewed the external auditor’s audit report; and
• Considered any problems identified and reviewed any
significant legal and tax matters that could have a material
impact on the financial statements.
In respect of internal control and internal audit, the internal audit
function provides a written assessment on the effectiveness
of internal controls to the Audit and Risk Committee for
recommendation to the Board. For the year under review, there
were no material breakdowns in internal control, including internal
financial controls, corporate governance, risk management and in
maintaining effective material control systems.
In respect of forensic audit, the fraud prevention and ethics
programme approach implemented includes prevention,
detection, investigation and resolution through the internal audit
function. Fraud and other irregular activities are reported through
the tip-offs anonymous hotline or directly to the internal audit
function. Effective implementation of the recommendations and
outcomes emanating from the investigations are continuously
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monitored and reported to the Executive Committee and the
Audit and Risk Committee.
In respect of risk management and information technology, the
Audit and Risk Committee, in so far as relevant to its functions:
• Reviewed Mhlathuze Water’s policies on risk assessment
and risk management, including fraud risks and information
technology risks as they pertain to financial reporting and
the going concern assessment, and found them to be sound;
• Considered and reviewed the findings and recommendations
of the internal auditor; and
• Monitored and evaluated significant IT investments, delivery
of services and the management of IT.
In respect of legal and regulatory requirements to the extent that
they may have an impact on the financial statements, the Audit
and Risk Committee:
• Reviewed with management legal matters that could have a
material impact on Mhlathuze Water;
• Reviewed adequacy and effectiveness of Mhlathuze Water’s
procedures to ensure compliance with legal and regulatory
responsibilities; and
• Monitored complaints received via Mhlathuze Water’s ethics
line, including complaints or concerns regarding accounting
matters, internal accounting records, the content of financial
statements, potential violations of the law and questionable
accounting and auditing matters.
In respect of the co-ordination of assurance activities, the Audit
and Risk Committee reviewed the plans and work outputs of the
internal and external auditors and concluded that these were
adequate to address all significant financial risks facing the
business. There is ongoing collaboration between internal audit,
external audit, compliance and risk management functions to
ensure co-ordination of combined assurance activities.
The Board and Audit and Risk Committee considered the expertise,
resources and experience of the finance function and concluded
that these were appropriate, and considered the experience and
expertise of the Chief Financial Officer and concluded that these
were appropriate.
Annual Financial Statements
As part of our responsibility for the year ended 30 June 2016,
we have read the annual report for the purpose of identifying
whether there are material inconsistencies between these
reports and its content. These reports are the responsibility of the
respective preparers. Based on reading these reports we have not
identified material inconsistencies between these reports and its
content.
Going Concern
The Department of Water and Sanitation has embarked on a
programme of Institutional Reform and Realignment (IRR) with

SAVE WATER: Every time you boil an egg, save the cooled water for your houseplants. They’ll benefit from the nutrients released from the shell.

the aim of improving the institutional landscape in the sector
and building stable and performing institutions. These institutions
will assist with expanding access to unserved areas and overall
improving service delivery efficiencies and effectiveness. The
intention is to enhance the functional capabilities, operational
strength and readiness of the institutions to handle the challenges
of the water sector service delivery.
In line with the powers vested in her in terms of the Water Services
Act, the Minister of Water and Sanitation announced in July 2015
her intention to disestablish Umgeni, Mhlathuze and uThukela
Water Boards and to establish a single Water Board in KwazuluNatal.
Phase 1 through to phase 4 of the abovementioned project will
take a minimum of 18 months to complete with the timeline for
phase 3 not being taken into account as the stakeholders are
unable to reasonably estimate the timeframe for these activities.
Thus, given the extensive nature of the consultative process, due
diligence exercise and other legal and compliance requirements, it
is anticipated that the entire process would be lengthy and may
not be completed by September 2017.
Irrespective of the date of completion, Mhlathuze Water shall
remain a legal entity and going concern up until the date of formal
disestablishment by notice in the Government Gazette. Therefore,
Mhlathuze Water has no reason to believe that this process will
negatively impact the going concern assumption of the entity for
the foreseeable future.
The going concern assumption is a fundamental principle in the
preparation of financial statements. Mhlathuze Water has applied

and complies with applicable accounting principles which assume
that, Mhlathuze Water will continue to exist long enough to carry
out its objectives and commitments and will not liquidate in the
foreseeable future.
Under the going concern assumption, Mhlathuze Water is
ordinarily viewed as continuing in business for the foreseeable
future with neither the intention nor the necessity of liquidation,
ceasing trading or seeking protection from creditors pursuant to
laws or regulations.
All assets and liabilities were recorded on the basis that the
entity will be able to realize its assets, discharge its liabilities, and
obtain refinancing (if necessary) in the normal course of business.
Conclusion
The Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied that it has considered
and discharged its responsibilities in accordance with its terms of
reference during the year under review.
On behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee.

Mr. M.M Xulu
Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee
27 September 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
THE BOARD
The Board of Mhlathuze Water, appointed by the Minister of Water and Sanitation (“the Minister”) in terms of the Water Services Act (Act
108 of 1997), has a complement of ten (10) non-executive Board members and one (1) executive Board member, the Chief Executive.
The roles and responsibilities of the Chairperson and the Chief Executive are separate as depicted in King III Report in order to ensure
the independence of the two positions. King III prescribes that all members of the Board, whether they are classified as executive, nonexecutive or independent non-executive, have a duty to act with independence of mind in the best interests of the organisation.
The Board Charter provides a concise overview of the fiduciary duties and responsibilities of the Board of Mhlathuze Water as well as
the procedures and structure that will govern how the Board functions in order to discharge its duties as required by the Public Finance
Management Act (Act No 1 of 1999) as amended by the Public Finance Management Amendment Act (Act 29 of 1999) “the PFMA”,
the Water Services Act, 1997 (Act No 108 of 1997), as amended and the regulations issued in terms of the PFMA and the Report on
Corporate Governance in South Africa, 2009 issued by the Institute of Directors (“King III Report”).
The Board is responsible for driving the organisation’s strategic objectives, the approval of major projects and capital expenditure, risk
management as well as monitoring the operational and financial performance of the organisation. In order to achieve this, the assistance
of five (5) standing committees, established by the Board, is required, namely:
•
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee;
•
Service Delivery Committee;
•
Audit and Risk Committee;
•
Finance Committee; and
•
Social and Ethics Committee.
The sole shareholder of Mhlathuze Water is the government of the Republic of South Africa, represented by the Minister of Water
and Sanitation. The Board contracts to the Minister through an annually approved Shareholder Compact which sets out the strategic
objectives of the organisation (see pages 22-26).
Current Board and Committee Memberships
Human resources
and remuneration

Service
delivery

•

•

•

M

•

•

4. Mr B Mshengu4

M

•

5. Adv S Chamane

M

•

6. Ms N Khumalo

F

•

•

•

7. Mrs A Badul

F

•

•

•

8. Mr B Rawlins

M

•

•

9. Mr F Bosman

M

•

10. Mrs N Gevers

F

•

11. Chief Executive

M

•

Board member

Gender

Board

1. Ms DC Myeni1

F

•

2. Mrs P Dlamini

F

3. Mr M Xulu3

2

• Denotes Committee Member
1
Chairperson of the Board
2
Chairperson of HR and Remuneration Committee
3
Chairperson of Audit and Risk Committee
4
Chairperson of Finance Committee
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Audit
and risk

Finance

•
•

•

•
•

•

•

•
•

Board Member Gender Profile

Board Member Race Profile

3 White (27%)
5 Females (45%)

6 Males (55%)

7 African (64%)

1 Indian (9%)

Board Member Age Profile
61-70

2

56-60

3

51-55

2

46-50

1

41-45

2

36-40

1

Gender

15 September 2015

07 November 2015
(special)

26 November 2015

29 February 2016

25 April 2016
(special)

26 May 2016

Board Meeting Attendance in 2015/16

1. Ms DC Myeni

F

•

•

•

•

•

•

2. Mrs P Dlamini

F

-

-

-

-

-

-

3. Ms N Khumalo

F

•

-

-

•

•

-

4. Mrs A Badul

F

•

•

•

•

•

•

5. Mr F Bosman

M

•

-

•

•

•

•

6. Adv S Chamane

M

•

•

•

-

•

•

7. Mr B Rawlins

M

•

•

•

•

•

•

8. Mr B Mshengu

M

•

•

•

•

•

•

9. Mr M Xulu

M

•

•

•

•

•

•

10. Mrs N Gevers

F

-

•

•

•

-

•

11. Mr TC Madikane

M

-

resigned

resigned

resigned

resigned

resigned

12. Chief Executive

M

•

-

•

•

•

•

Board member

• Attendance

-

Non-attendance with apology
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MHLATHUZE WATER BOARD MEMBERS
Chairperson of the Board
Ms Myeni is a seasoned entrepreneur who has received various accolades for her achievements as a business
woman, including the Shoprite Checkers Woman of the Year Award in the education category, the first woman
to win the prestigious South African Philanthropist Award in 2007 and being nominated as Businesswoman
of the Year by the South African Chamber of Commerce in 2007. Ms Myeni is one of the founding members
and a stalwart of the Black Business Council, has been an honorary member of Lattice (USA) since 2007
and is a current member of the Institute of Directors. Ms Myeni is currently the Chairperson of the Board of
South African Airways, Chairperson of the South African Association of Water Utilities and is the outgoing
President of AFWA.
Ms Dudu Myeni
Chairperson of the HR/Remuneration Committee and Member of the Service Delivery Committee
Ms Dlamini has been actively involved in the environmental and conservation sectors for over 20 years
at grassroots, professional and executive levels. She project-managed the highly acclaimed Umgeni Water
Sustainability Report which won several international awards. She introduced and led the implementation of
global best practice and environmental conservation management, including the global reporting initiative
pertaining to corporate governance. She currently serves on the Board of the iSimangaliso Wetland Park.

Ms Poppy Dlamini
Chairperson of the Finance Committee and Member of the Audit and Risk Committee
Mr Mshengu has over 35 years of experience in the Human Resources field, having worked for a number
of organisations both in the private and public sector. Mr Mshengu has operated at an executive level for
many years as a Human Resources Director. He acted as the CEO of a R4 billion organisation for a period of
seven months. He has a passion for transformation, leadership and community development. He also spent
a number of years in the government service as a social worker and a director.

Mr Bonginkosi Mshengu

He has handled human resources projects in Namibia and Ethiopia and has consulted for public and private
organisations. Mr Mshengu is a past Regional President for the Black Management Forum. He currently
serves as the first Deputy President of the Pietermaritzburg Chamber of Business. He also serves on the
Board of the Pietermaritzburg Community Chest. In 1997, he was voted Manager of the Year by the Black
Management Forum, in recognition of his successful implementation of the employment equity in one of the
parastatals. Mr Mshengu is currently a Director at Bhekani Consulting.
Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee and a Member of the HR and Remuneration Committee
Mr Xulu hails from a financial background and brings sales and marketing, auditing and finance expertise to
the Board. He is an Associate Accountant under the South African Institute of Chartered Accountants and a
member of the South African Institute of Public Accountants.

Mr Musa Xulu
Member of the Finance Committee and Member of the HR & Remuneration Committee
Mr Bosman is a registered Professional Engineer. He has worked for local government since 1973 and has
been a member of the South African Institute of Civil Engineering since 1975 and a Fellow since 1986. He
is an Honorary Fellow and past President of the Institute of Municipal Engineering of Southern Africa. He
was a member of the KZN Planning and Development Appeals Tribunal until 2015, and has been an elected
Councillor for the City of uMhlathuze since May 2011. He served on the uThungulu District Municipal Council
from May 2011 to May 2014. Mr Bosman previously served on Mhlathuze Water’s Board from 1980 till 1994.
Mr Frik Bosman

16

SAVE WATER: Always water your plants during the early morning hours or in the evening, when temperatures are cooler.

Member of the Finance Committee and a Member of the HR and Remuneration Committee
Advocate Chamane is an admitted advocate of the Supreme Court and has vast knowledge and extensive
experience in the field of law and has served in many political structures. He was the General Manager: Public
Transport at the KZN Department of Transport and is currently the Deputy Director General: Institutional
Development and Integrity Management. He is a member of the Society of Advocates, KZN Durban Bar.

Advocate Simo Chamane
Member of the Finance Committee and Member of the Service Delivery Committee
Ms Khumalo has experience in driving rural development, programme management and social infrastructure
development. In her current role at the Independent Development Trust, she is a central driving force of
influence regarding National and Provincial development programmes and has been active in the growth and
diversification of the KwaZulu-Natal (KZN) portfolio.

Ms Nhlanhla Khumalo
Member of the Finance Committee and Member of the Service Delivery Committee
Mrs Badul is experienced In Local Government Management and Adult Basic Education and Training. She
is a member of the Executive Committee of the iLembe District Municipality and chairs its Finance Portfolio
Committee. Mrs Badul is also a member of iLembe District Municipality’s Budget and Audit Committee. She
is a member of the Inter-Governmental Forum and a member of the Board of the Stanger Provincial Hospital.

Mrs Amita Badul
Member of the Audit and Risk Committee
Mrs Gevers brings financial acumen spanning 30 years in the retail, engineering and public sectors, most of
which have been in management and executive positions. Mrs Gevers is a registered Chartered Accountant
(CA) and assists the Board with its management of financial risks and compliance with legislation. Her
experience assists in driving the long-term funding strategy for the organisation and its sound financial
management and practices. She is a member of the South African Institute of Chartered Accountants (SAICA).

Mrs Nica Gevers
Member of the Audit and Risk Committee and Member of the Service Committee
Mr Rawlins hails from an academic background and further offers hydrological research and training services.
He is currently a senior lecturer in the Hydrology Department at the University of Zululand. Mr Rawlins’
expertise in hydrology, environmental impact assessments, water resource management and geohydrology
adds great value to the Board.

Mr Brian Rawlins
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BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board Committees are formally constituted and chaired by a non-executive Board member. Board Committees report on activities
in every meeting thereby assisting the Board to perform its duties and enables effective decision making. As per the Water Services Act,
the Board is authorised to delegate powers to the Committees which are set out in the terms of reference, approved by the Board, of
each Committee.

Gender

31 July 2015
(special)

31 August
2015

09 November
2015

04 February
2016

21 April 2016
(special)

05 May 2016

Audit and Risk Committee
This Committee assists the Board to discharge its responsibilities in terms of Section 51 of the Public Finance Management Act and
the National Treasury Regulations. Ensuring the effectiveness, quality, integrity and reliability of Mhlathuze Water’s risk management
processes is a critical function performed by the Audit and Risk Committee. Furthermore, the committee is responsible for the integrity of
integrated reporting to ensure that the internal financial controls in place are effective. The Committee meets at least four times a year.

1. Mr M Xulu1

M

•

•

•

•

•

•

2. Mrs N Gevers

F

•

-

•

•

•

•

3. Mr B Rawlins

M

•

•

•

•

•

•

4. Mr B Mshengu

M

•

•

•

•

•

•

Member

• Attendance
Chairperson

-

Non-attendance with apology

1

Gender

08 September
2015

18 November
2015

15 February
2016

21 April 2016
(special)

16 May 2016

Finance Committee
This Committee considers the financial performance and budgeting issues of Mhlathuze Water, and ensures compliance with the Public
Finance Management Act and the National Treasury Regulations. The Committee’s specific responsibilities include, recommending policies
that maintain and improve the financial health and integrity of the organization as well as reviewing and recommending a long-term
financial plan for the organisation. The Committee is also responsible for monitoring the financial performance of the organisation as a
whole against approved budgets, long-term trends and industry benchmarks.

1. Mr B Mshengu1

M

•

•

•

•

•

2. Ms N Khumalo

F

-

-

•

•

•

3. Adv S Chamane

M

•

-

-

•

-

4. Mr F Bosman

M

•

•

•

•

•

5. Mrs A Badul

F

•

•

•

•

•

Member

• Attendance
Chairperson

-

Non-attendance with apology

1

Human Resources and Remuneration Committee
This Committee provides direction on matters affecting the human capital of the organisation, the organisational structure, remuneration
and any other functions that the prevailing standards of corporate governance require of such a Committee. The role of the Committee
is to assist the Board in fulfilling its corporate governance responsibilities with regard to remuneration and strategic human resources
matters; including establishing and implementing a human resources strategy to ensure that appropriately talented and trained
people are retained and up-skilled to achieve the business strategy. The Committee is also responsible for undertaking the appropriate
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16 November
2015

09 February
2016

10 May 2016

1. Ms P Dlamini1

F

•

•

•

•

2. Mr F Bosman

M

•

•

•

•

3. Mr M Xulu

M

•

-

-

•

M

•

•

•

•

M

•

Gender

25 August
2015

performance management, succession planning and talent
development activities and programs as well as providing
effective remuneration policies having regard for the creation of
value for shareholders and the external remuneration market.

Member

4. Adv S Chamane
5. Mr TC Madikane

2

resigned resigned resigned

• Attendance
- Non-attendance with apology
1
Chairperson
2
Member resigned with effect 01 October 2015

19 May 2016

20 August
2015

11 February
2016

Gender

12 November
2015

Service Delivery Committee
This Committee gives direction on capital projects that impact
service delivery, evaluation of large projects and assists in tracking
performance of the organisation against the allocated budget. It
is a technical committee that supports the Board in achieving its
mandate to grow the business.

1. Mr TC Madikane1

M

•

2. Mr B Rawlins

M

•

•

•

•

3. Ms P Dlamini

F

•

-

-

•

4. Ms N Khumalo

F

•

•

•

•

5. Mrs A Badul

F

•

•

•

•

Member

resigned resigned resigned

• Attendance
- Non-attendance with apology
1
Chairperson - member resigned with effect 01 October 2015
Nominations Committee
This ad-hoc Committee consists of the chairpersons of the various
Board Committees and is, among others, responsible for the
selection of the Chief Executive and Executives. It is chaired by
the Chairperson of the Board.

governance; they demonstrate the quality and reliability of
information, financial and non-financial provided by management
to lenders, shareholders, and the public.
Conflict of Interests
Mhlathuze Water has a comprehensive code of conduct that
applies to directors, management and employees in regulating
conditions that constitute or could constitute a conflict.
Objectives of this policy, among others are to:
• Promote transparency and avoid business-related conflicts
of interest;
• Ensure fairness in dealing with the interests of all employees,
other affected individuals and the company;
• Document the process for disclosure, approval and review of
activities that may amount to actual, potential or perceived
conflicts of interest; and
• Provide a mechanism for the objective review of personal
outside interests.
By implementing the above, the organisation is in a position to:
• Allow individuals, where appropriate, to acquire and
maintain personal outside interests, provided that these do
not interfere with, or have the potential to interfere with,
their duties to the company, or improperly influence the
judgements expected of them when acting on behalf of the
company;
• Protect individuals from misplaced charges of any conflict of
interest by providing a mechanism for the objective review
and approval (including conditional approval) of appropriate
personal outside interests held by individuals.
Internal Control
Internal control systems, for which the Board is accountable,
are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are
safeguarded and that liabilities and working capital of the
organisation are efficiently managed. Features of Mhlathuze
Water’s internal finance controls are as follows:
• A system of financial planning, budgeting and reporting
which allows continuous monitoring of the organisation’s
performance;
• A materiality and significance framework;
• Clearly defined delegations of authority;
• The establishment of a short, medium and long-term funding
strategy;
• An effective tariff model; and
• Established policies and procedures.
Internal audit performs an independent assessment of the
internal control systems and business risks and reports to the
Board through the Audit and Risk Committee.

Disclosure of Interest
Members declare any interests and commit to non-disclosure
of information that could unfairly advantage or disadvantage
a party on an annual basis and at every Board and Committee
meeting. Disclosure and transparency are the partners of good
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MEET THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
The day-to-day running of the organisation is delegated by the Board to the Chief Executive who is assisted by the Executives, each
heading up a department. The Executive Committee (EXCO) is the highest decision-making structure in the organisation which plays an
important role in the formulation and implementation of the Board’s strategy and ensuring that all business activities are aligned.
Mthokozisi P. Duze - Interim Chief Executive
Qualifications

:

Area of Expertise

:

Position on other Boards

:

Bachelor of Arts in Human and Social Studies
Masters in Development Studies (current studies)
Fifteen Years Programme & Project Management
Development Planning practitioner
Non-Executive member - The 911 Fund Foundation (NY)

Mr Mthokozisi Duze
Brian Ndaba - Chief Financial Officer
Qualifications
Area of Expertise
Years of Service at Mhlathuze Water
Position on other Boards

:
:
:
:

Mr Brian Ndaba

BCom (Accounting) Degree
Finance Management Auditing and Risk Management
Four years
Audit Committee Member:
City of uMhlathuze
Mfolozi Municipality
uThungulu District Municipality (now King Cetshwayo)

Simphiwe Xulu (Pr.Tech.Eng) - Chief Operations Officer

Ms Simphiwe Xulu

Qualifications

:

Area of Expertise

:

Years of Service at Mhlathuze Water
Position on other Boards

:
:

National Diploma: Chemical Engineering
B-Tech Chemical Engineering
		
Master of Business Leadership Degree (MBL)
Production/Operations, Water & Waste Water Processes
Management
Five years
None

Swaswa Ntlhoro - GM Scientific Services
Qualifications

:

Area of Expertise
Years of Service at Mhlathuze Water
Position on other Boards

:
:
:

BSc (Hons) Degree
Postgraduate Diploma in Management
Chemistry and Applied Chemistry
Eight years
None

Mr Swaswa Ntlhoro
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Mandla Myeni - GM Corporate Services
Qualifications

:

Area of Expertise
Years of Service at Mhlathuze Water
Position on other Boards

:
:
:

Bachelor of Technology Degree in Management
BCom Degree (Industrial Psychology)
Diploma in Personnel Management
Human Resources
Twenty-one years
None

Mr Mandla Myeni

Nokubonga Ndlovu - Company Secretary
Qualifications
Area of Expertise
Years of Service at Mhlathuze Water
Position on other Boards

:
:
:
:

LLB Degree (Admitted Attorney)
Corporate Governance and Commercial Litigation
Two years
Non-executive Director: Aids Foundation South Africa

Ms Nokubonga Ndlovu

Company Secretariat
The Company Secretary is responsible for the secretariat function,
governance advisory services, compliance management and also
plays a critical role in legal advisory to the Board and organisation.
All Board and Committee meetings are attended as secretary.
The Board, Non-Executive Directors as well as members of the
Executive Committee have access to the Company Secretary for
guidance on how to perform their duties and responsibilities in
the best interests of the organisation. The Company Secretary
attends to the on-going training of Board Members and the
scheduling, preparation and administration for Board and
Committee meetings emanates from the office of the Company
Secretary.

LEGAL FRAMEWORK
The Board and management of Mhlathuze Water have pledged
and exercised their commitment to discharge their duty to be
recognised as a good corporate citizen by ensuring compliance to
good corporate governance principles that are inherent in sound
business practice.
These are prescribed within a specific applicable legal and
regulatory framework for public entities such as the Public
Finance Management Act, the Water Services Act and the King III
report, which are the cornerstones of these prerequisites.
Changes to the accounting standards that impacted on the
financial reporting have been acknowledged and significantly

adhered to, to ensure minimal deviations from the requirements.
Mhlathuze Water realizes that compliance is an ongoing process
and will therefore continue to seek sound and innovative ways
to ensure full compliance in all the reporting obligations to
both its customers and stakeholders to maintain transparency,
effectiveness and accuracy.

MATERIALITY AND SIGNIFICANCE
FRAMEWORK
The Board approved a policy that defines both the levels of
significance and materiality. The Delegations of Authority Policy
was reviewed to align them to the framework.

CORPORATE SOCIAL
INVESTMENT
Mhlathuze Water prides itself on the passion it has for the
communities within its area of operation. It strives to motivate
and encourage growth and development of the youth as well as
the up-liftment of communities within the organisation’s area of
supply.
The focus areas of the CSI strategy are as follows:
•
Education;
•
Supply of Potable Water and Sanitation Facilities;
•
Economic Development through Skills Development; and
•
Sport Development.
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Bulk potable water
quality compliance

Manage avoidable
water losses

Reliability of supply

Increased access to
Services

1

2

3

4

Performance
Objective

No unplanned
interruptions to bulk
supply exceeding 24
hours

SO 1

SO 1

MO A > G OP1, SG2 (SO2.1,
2.4) SG3 (SO
Ta), b) & c).
3.1)
OP2, Ta)

SG2 (SO2.2,
2.3)

MO A,B & D
OP1, Ta), b) &
c). OP2, Ta).

Contribution to
national objectives of
extending services

Reduced avoidable
water losses in
treatment and
distribution systems

SG1 (SO1.1,
1.2, 1.3) SG2
(SO3.2)
SO 1

MO A, OP1, Ta)
MO B, OP2, Ta)

MO A, OP1, Ta)
& c). MO B,
OP2, Ta)

SG2 (SO2.1)
SG3 (SO 3.1,
3.2)

Outcome/Impact

Water quality
standards met

Ministerial
Outcomes

SO 1

DWS
Strategic
Goals

Alignment
WB Strategic
Objectives

<5%

<1%

80%

%

%

Number of days supply
interrupted as a % of
possible supply days
Actual CAPEX spend
on expansion related
projects (initiatives by
the Minister) as % of
budget

95%

%

% compliance

Measure

Avoidable water lost as
a percentage of water
produced

Test results, SANS 241

Indicators/
Calculation

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVES

Performance
Perspective

Organisational Effeciency and Effectiveness

Projected Target
2015/2016
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85%

0.54%

3%

100%

Actual
2015/2016

Target exceeded.

Target met.

Within target.

Target exceeded.

Comments
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Financial reporting
compliance

Improve key financial
ratios

5

6

Performance
Objective

Ministerial
Outcomes

MO A B & D
OP1, Ta), b) &
c). OP2, Ta)

MO A > G

SO 2

SO 2

SG1 (SO1.2)
SG3 (SO3.2)

SG1 (SO1.2)
SG3 (SO3.2)

DWS
Strategic
Goals

Alignment
WB Strategic
Objectives
Improved viability and
sustainability

Unqualified audit
report

Outcome/Impact

7%
45 days

Staff remuneration as
a % of total operating
expenditure

13%

Number

Debtors days

%

%

Return on Assets

0.37

3%

Ratio

Debt equity

1%

13%

6%

78%

1,60

Unqualified
report with
no matters
of emphasis
(Clean
Audit)

Projected Target
2015/2016

Repairs and maintenance %
as a % of PPE and
Investment Property
(Carrying Value)

%

Net profit margin
(secondary activity)

%

Gross profit margin
(secondary activity)
%

%

Net profit margin
(primary activity)

Ratio

Gross profit margin
(primary activity)

Unqualified report
with no matters of
emphasis (Clean
Audit)

Measure

Current Ratio

Annual external audit

Indicators/
Calculation

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVES (Continued)

Performance
Perspective

Financial Performance

14%

3,80%

41 days

7,75%

0.32

1%

16%

26%

85%

1,84

Unqualified report
with no matters of
emphasis (Clean
Audit)

Actual
2015/2016

Target not met due to increase
of internships by 42% which
is recoverable from SETA.

Target exceeded.

Target exceeded.

Target met.

Target exceeded.

Within target.

Target exceeded.

Target exceeded.

Target exceeded.

Target exceeded.

Target met.

Comments

Increase BBBEE
expenditure relative
to operational
projects

Manage costs within
the approved budget

Capital expenditure
programme

Engagement in
secondary activities

Bulk supply
agreements
concluded with
municipalities/other
customers

Implementation of
ministerial directives

Support Rural
development

Achieve statutory
reporting compliance

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

Performance
Objective

Alignment

SO 2

SO3

SAVE WATER: Kettles should not be filled to the brim but with just enough water for your needs. This will reduce your electricity bill too.

Total number
of identified
Municipalities
supported

SO 3

SO 3

SG1(SO1.1,
1.3)
SG2(SO2.3)

SG1(SO1.2)
SG3(SO3.2)

MO A,B & D
OP1, Ta), b) &
c). OP2, Ta)

MO C,G,F

All statutory reports
submitted on time

New ministerial
directives issued are
implemented on time

SO 3

SG1(SO1.3)
SG2(SO2.2)
SG3(SO3.2)

Statutory and service
level agreements in
place

SO 3

SG1(SO1.3)
SG2(SO2.3)
SG3(SO3.2,
3.4)

MO A,B & D
Op1, Ta), b) &
c). OP2, Ta)

MO B,C

Growth in turnover
from secondary (other)
activities

SO 2

Infrastructure available
to meet demands

Actual expenditure
compared with
budgeted epxenditure
for the year

Spend increased and
increased new entrants
awarded contracts in
the financial year

Outcome/Impact

SG1(SO1.2)
SG3(SO3.4)

SG1 (SO1.2) SG SO 2
3 (SO3.2)

SG1(SO1.2)
SG3(SO3.2)

SG1(SO1.2)
SG3(SO3.2)

DWS
Strategic
Goals

MO A,D.E & G

MO E MO A,B
&D

MO B OP2 Ta)

MO E

Ministerial
Outcomes

100%

%

Municipalities/other
customers with bulk
supply agreements

Submission dates met

%

Number

54%

%

% of total turnover

Signed contracts, MOUs
etc

85%

% variance

Overall project
completion dates within
targets

%

80%

% variance

Overall project
expenditure within Rand
target

Progress against
implementation plan

5% or -5%

% increase

Financial reports

100%

2

80%

10

Number

New entrants

51%

% achieved

Measure

Projected Target
2015/2016

Spend

Indicators/
Calculation

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVES (Continued)

Performance
Perspective

Financial Performance

Customer/ Stakeholder Interaction

WB Strategic
Objectives

24

100%

1

91,50%

100%

60%

91%

83%

+4.91%

14

68.45%

Actual
2015/2016

Target met.

Target not met due to
discussions with other
municipalities not being
successful within the timeline.

Target exceeded.

Target met.

Target exceeded.

Target exceeded.

Target exceeded.

Within target.

Target exceeded.

Target exceeded.

Comments
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Good governance

Corporate social
responsibility
initiatives

21

Board effectiveness

18

20

Jobs created

17

Effective internal
controls and risk
management

Training and skills
development

16

19

Staff levels

15

Performance
Objective

Ministerial
Outcomes

SO5

SO 4

SO 4

SO 4

S G 1 ( S O 1 . 2 ) SO 5
SG3(SO3.2)

S G 2 ( S O 2 . 2 ) SO3
SG3(SO3.2)

MO E

S G 1 ( S O 1 . 2 ) SO 5
SG3(SO3.2)

SG1(SO1.1,
1.2)
SG3(SO3.1,
3.2)

SG1(SO1.1,
1.3)

SG1(SO1.1,
1.3)

SG1(SO1.1,
1.3)

MO E,F & G

MO B

MO A > G

MO A,D,E & G
MO A> G

MO E

MO E

DWS
Strategic
Goals

Alignment
WB Strategic
Objectives
Good corporate
citizenship

Improved controls and
risk mitigation

Internal audit findings
dealt with

Number of initiatives
undertaken

Breaches of materiality
and significance
framework

<5

Number

5

<3

Number of
unresolved findings

Number

<3

%
Decision making: %
number resolutions taken
by the board vs number
of resolutions required
Number of repeat
findings

80%

%

Board Member
attendance of all Board/
committee meetings

Internal audit reports

200
80%

Number

Total number

Improved performance
of fiduciary duties/
governance

5

4

24

Temporary employees

Number

Graduate Programmes
Number

Number

Bursaries employees

12

8%

Total number

Number

%

Measure

Learnerships

Staff turnover

Indicators/
Calculation

Projected Target
2015/2016

Permanent and
contract (direct)

Skills and capacity
building

Optimal staff retention

Outcome/Impact

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVES (Continued)

Performance
Perspective

Organisational Capacity

General Performance

7

0

2

0

87,80%

75,41%

785

4

3

30

15

4,34%

Actual
2015/2016

Target exceeded.

Within target.

Within target.

Within target.

Target exceeded.

Target not met due to
meetings being rescheduled
at short notice.

Target exceeded.

Target not met due to
moratorium on the filling of
new positions.

Target not met due to 2
resignations.

Target exceeded.

Target exceeded.

Within target.

Comments

22 Health and Safety
within working
environment

Performance
Objective

MO B

Ministerial
Outcomes

S G 1 ( S O 1 . 2 ) SO4
SG3(SO3.2)

DWS
Strategic
Goals

Alignment

Reduced number of
disabling injuries

Outcome/Impact

Measure

Number of disabling Number
injuries

Indicators/
Calculation

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVES (Continued)

Performance
Perspective

Optional WB Specific Performance objectives

WB Strategic
Objectives

26

SAVE WATER: Fix a leaking toilet otherwise it can waste up to 100 000 litres of water in one year.

Projected Target
2015/2016

1,75

0,26

Actual
2015/2016

Within target.

Comments

Nsezi Lake intake pump station.
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ENTERPRISE WIDE RISK
MANAGEMENT
The underlying premise of enterprise risk management is that every
entity exists to provide value for its stakeholders. All entities face
uncertainty and the challenge for management is to determine
how much uncertainty to accept as it strives to grow stakeholder
value. Uncertainty presents both risk and opportunity, with the
potential to erode or enhance value. Enterprise risk management
enables management to effectively deal with uncertainty and
associated risk and opportunity, enhancing the capacity to build
value.

STRATEGIC RISKS

Mhlathuze Water’s Audit and Risk Committee is assigned by the
Board to ensure that adequate and suitable internal controls are
in place and are appropriate to meet future needs. Mhlathuze
Water’s approach is to put considerable focus to the organisational
objectives at strategic and operational levels. Areas of noncompliance have been addressed and the organisation is striving
to meet and exceed customers’ and stakeholders’ expectations.

See the risk management table on the opposite page.

Mhlathuze Water’s Board and Executive Management are
responsible for the governance of risk and continuous review
of the organisational risk profile. Annual risk assessments
are performed for all departments with the assistance of risk
champions that were appointed to represent departments.
Departmental risk registers were compiled and risks elevated and
incorporated into a new risk table for the organisation. This was
done to ensure that risks identified are being monitored, and
mitigating controls put in place in order to manage risks that
might affect the organisation in meeting set objectives.
Within the context of Mhlathuze Water’s established mission
and vision, management establishes strategic objectives, selects
strategies, and sets aligned objectives cascading through the
enterprise. This enterprise risk management framework is geared
to achieving the entity’s objectives, set forth in four categories:
• Strategic - high-level goals, aligned with and supporting
Mhlathuze Water’s vision and mission;
• Operations - effective and efficient use of MW resources;
• Reporting - reliability of reporting; and
• Compliance - compliance with applicable legislation.

The main purpose of strategic risk assessments, performed on
an annual basis, are to identify and assess, through a structured
and facilitated process, the strategic risks which may prevent
Mhlathuze Water from achieving its strategic goals.
Management controls to mitigate the risks are monitored
and reported. There are a number of identified risks for the
organisation, however emphasis is on the key strategic risks.

The risk manager together with all of Mhlathuze Water will
continue evaluating and monitoring the risks on an on-going
basis. In addition, a Risk Champions Forum, which is comprised
of all departments, has the responsibility of ensuring that
appropriate procedures are in place to identify, assess and
manage risks as well as to monitor the implementation of risk
management procedures and reporting.

WHISTLE BLOWER’S REPORT
The board of Mhlathuze Water approved a whistle blower
reporting service and the appointed service provider reports to
designated officials on whistle blower activities on a monthly
basis. Mhlathuze Water staff have been trained on the whistle
blower procedures and reporting, and every year refresher
training/awareness is conducted.
The Board’s objective in approving whistle blower reporting was
to create a positive whistle-blowing culture which is a critical
element in the success of any risk management system. Promoting
better risk management helps in preventing the need for more
regulation and intervention by regulators and legislators.
Mhlathuze Water is committed to complying with the provisions
of the Protected Disclosures Act (Act No. 26 of 2000) in ensuring
that whistle blowers who make disclosures are protected in terms
of the Act and are not victimized or subjected to occupational
detriment for blowing the whistle on improprieties.
Mhlathuze Water has a whistle blower’s hotline which has
been an effective tool for the board to help address all forms of
corporate irregularities that have happened at Mhlathuze Water.
The contact number has been made available to all employees,
stakeholders, and the public at large. Matters which have been
brought to the board’s attention have been investigated and
resolved.
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SAVE WATER: Do not over-fill or excessively backwash your swimming pool.
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Environmental

Operational

4.

5.

Emerging Risks

Strategic

3.

7.

Strategic

2.

Operational

Strategic

1.

6.

Risk Category

No.

Uncertainty of the merger (impact on
customers, stakeholders and employees).

Increase input cost (e.g. staff, electricity
and chemicals).

Power failure due to criminal activities
(eg. cable theft) resulting in inability to
supply required water or disposing of
effluent.

Environmental damage affecting supply
of water.

Inadequate purified water storage
capacity.

Infrastructure failure due to breakdowns
resulting in failure in supplying required
water to customers.

Drought - unavailability of water in
terms of quantity impact on quality to
customers.

Description of Risk

Root Cause

Institutional re-alignment of
water boards.

Price increases that are above
CPI.

Cable theft electrical
distribution network fault.

Pipe leaks and breakage in the
system.

Over-dependence on
customers in terms of storage
capacity.

Inadequate maintenance and
ageing infrastructure .

Minimal rainfall.

Risk management (including Treasury Risks), Audit and Governance

Implementation in progress.
Reverse Osmosis units procured.
Budget of R410 million approved.
EPC appointment in progress.

DWS installing 10Ml desalination plant.

Upgrade of the Tugela Transfer Scheme.

Ensure that merger is in line with
compliance to relevant legislation.

Annual tariff reviews.

Emergency back-up power supply.

Daily monitoring.

Availability of Mondi storage facility.
Construction of two 20 ML reservoirs.

Task team has been appointed.

Continuous alignment of planning assumptions
with previous actuals.

Improved budgeting processes.

Implemented emergency 11KV power supply to
provide power in case of outage and monthly
monitoring. Project is now complete.

Quarterly meetings with contributors.

Completion date of the construction of two 20 Ml
reservoirs will be 30 September 2016.

Maintenance done as per maintenance plan.

Implementation in progress, 40% complete.

Hillside installing a 2Ml desalination plant.

Planned annual and regular maintenance
of the plants.

Level 4 restrictions implemented from March 2016,
possibility of moving to Level 5 restrictions by July
2016.

Progress as at
30 June 2016

Water restrictions.

Mitigation Measures
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SAVE WATER: Every time you boil an egg, save the cooled water for your houseplants. They’ll benefit from the nutrients released from the shell.

Risk Category

Emerging Risks

Finance Risks

Finance Risks

No.

8.

9.

10.

Decline of revenue.

Insufficient borrowing limits
(funding constraints).

Damage/failure of Mhlathuze River weir
due to heavy river flow or flooding.

Description of Risk

Decline in abstraction/license
volumes from catchment
(revised license).

Drought relief strategies being sought .

Engage National Treasury to re-assess
Mhlathuze Water’s original borrowing limit
application.

Different views between
National Treasury and
DWS on the feasability of
disestablishment of two water
boards.
Drought - water restrictions
by DWS.

Review business plan in line with approved
limits.

Action plans will be implemented as per
recommendations from the study

Mitigation Measures

The impending merger.

Climate change resulting in
instability of the structure.

Root Cause

Engagement with DWS National licensing
department to reinstate our license.

Approved.

Planning department to give a detailed report on
completion of the study.

Progress as at
30 June 2016

A view of the Tugela River from the Madungela abstraction point.
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SUPPLY CHAIN
Mhlathuze Water continues to work towards empowering
historically disadvantaged individuals and communities through
its transformation initiatives. The approval of the enterprise and
Supplier Development Strategy together with the BBBEE policy
presents a number of strategic interventions that will enable
the participating historically disadvantaged communities to be
capacitated, able to grow their businesses and become strategic
partners towards the achievement of Mhlathuze Water’s strategic
goals and to better understand the significance of quality work
in service delivery.

The target for 2015/2016 was 51% of discretionary spend and
the actual achieved was 68.41% as per the graph below.

Total spend on goods and services for
2015/16

Total spend on goods and services for the 2015/2016 financial
year was R839 million, of which R574 million (68.41%) was
spent with companies that are more than 51% black-owned, and
R162 million (19.30%) was spent with empowered companies.

The audience at the Suppliers Development Workshop listen attentively to the SARS presenter.
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SAVE WATER: Remove invasive alien plants on your property.

Black Empowered 19.30%
Black Owned 68.45%
Government 4.01%
Normal 8.24%

CORPORATE SERVICES
During the course of 2015/16, Corporate Services achieved
progress in the areas of learning and development, talent
attraction and retention, employee relations, information
technology, public relations and overall improved operational
efficiencies. The significant highlights of the year are:
• Enrolled twenty (20) unemployed youth on the three year
Artisan Training Programme funded by the EWSETA to the
value of R3 million over the period - 60% females and 40%
males.
• Awarded thirty (30) internal bursaries to qualifying employees
to the total value of R400 000.
• Awarded six (6) external bursaries to the value of R85 000 each
to the students from needy communities within Mhlathuze
Water’s area of supply.
• Maintained a staff turnover rate of 4.34% (5.26% in
2014/15) against a projected rate of 8% and a market rate of
12% for the period under review.
• Maintained the lowest disabling injury frequency rate of 0.26
(0.44 in 2014/15).
• Successfully concluded a one year salary agreement with the
union and the overall salary increase was within budget.
• A total of nineteen (19) employees reached employment

milestones of 5, 10, 15, 20, 25 and 30 years service with
Mhlathuze Water. Together, the long service award recipients
dedicated a total of 265 years of service to Mhlathuze Water.
• Mhlathuze Water was a finalist for the Top Empowered Public
Service at the Oliver Empowerment Awards 2015/16. This
award acknowledges Provincial Governments and parastatals
that effectively demonstrate the highest level of black
economic empowerment from staff to suppliers through its
programmes and policies.
• Mhlathuze Water has, for the first time in its history, opened
an Occupational Health and Wellness Clinic to provide
employees with wellness screening, counselling and
assistance for chronic disease management.
Employee Profile
The table below reflects the employee profile as at 30 June 2016.
The actual total staff complement was 235 employees against
an approved complement of 185. The total complement was
above the budgeted complement due to fixed term contract
employees who are employed on Project Based contracts, as well
as Internships, Learnerships and Artisan Development Programs.

Workforce Profile as at 30 June 2016
Occupational Levels

Male

Female

Total

African

Coloured

Indian

White

African

Coloured

Indian

White

Top Management

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

Senior management

3

0

0

0

2

0

0

0

5

Professionals

8

0

1

2

12

0

1

1

25

Skilled Technical &
Academically Qualified
Workers

29

0

1

2

28

2

5

4

71

Semi-skilled

44

1

1

0

17

1

1

1

66

Unskilled & Defined
Decision Making

30

0

0

0

36

1

0

0

67

Totals

115

1

3

4

95

4

7

6

235

A total of thirty five (35) positions were filled, and females comprised 49%.
Age Breakdown (as at 30 June 2016)
The age distribution shows that youth (≤35 years) represents approximately 53% of our total workforce, and the majority of them fall in
the elementary level mostly comprising internships, learnerships, and artisan development programs. Two of them are at the executive
level. See graph on the following page.
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This average annual turnover rate of 4.34% is lower than the
projected staff turnover rate of 8%.

Age profile as at 30 June 2016
≤35

36 - 45

46 - 55

56 - 65

>65

80
70

Number of employees

60

Our total cost to company package system is key to the success
of our recruitment and retention strategies. We provide a mix
of remuneration and benefits within a supportive environment.
During this period, approximately seventeen (17) job evaluation
reviews were completed and changes were implemented
accordingly.

50

Long Service Recognition Programme

40

Years of Service

No. of Employees

30

5

5

10

7

15

1

20

2

25

1

30

3

Total

19

20
10
0

Elementary Semi Skilled Technicians Professionals Executive

Staff Movements for the period July 2015 to June 2016
Staff Movement for the Period
01 July 2015 to 30 June 2016

No.

Total new vacancies filled

27

Total replacement vacancies filled

8

Total appointments

35

Number of internal appointments (promotions)

5

Number of designated appointments

35

Number of non-designated appointments

0

Number of resignations

6

Number of dismissals

2

Number of ill-health terminations

0

Number of retirements

0

Number of staff deaths

2

Total number withdrawals

10

Turnover for the year at 230 average complement
(unplanned separations)

Employment Equity Profile as at 30 June 2016

Race Profile

2% 4%

4%

African
Coloured
Indian
White

90%

4.34%

Gender Profile

Projected
Full Year
2015/16

Actual
Financial Year
2015/16

Previous
Year
2015/16

Retention
Tabled below are the actual average labour turnover rate for
2015/16 and the projected labour turnover rate for the same
period:
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Mhlathuze Water has always prided itself on being a good
employer. The long service programme recognises employees
who have reached employment milestones of 5, 10, 15, 20, etc.
years with Mhlathuze Water. The table above shows the number
of employees who celebrated the long service milestones.

Number of Staff

185

236

195

Staff Turnover Rate

8%

4.34%

5.26%

Female
47%

SAVE WATER: Always water your plants during the early morning hours or in the evening, when temperatures are cooler.

Male
53%

Again, this year our recruitment and retention strategies have
continued to focus on employment equity. The recruitment
and selection processes for permanent positions had to be
suspended as a result of the Board declaring a moratorium on
new appointments pending the merger with Umgeni Water. The
organisation has therefore had to fill positions in the interim on
mostly fixed term contracts. The number of female employees
has shown a slight increase on previous year’s 46% to 47% in
2015/16. There are 1.69% of employees who have indicated that
they have a disability; compared to 2.81% in the previous year.
The Employment Equity Plan has prioritised the employment of
coloured employees so as to improve the demographics of the
organisation. More efforts are being made to continue to improve
on these statistics by refining our recruitment and retention
strategies and tactics.
Transfer of the Provident to an Umbrella Fund
As of January 2016 Mhlathuze Water Provident Fund members
started contributing to the Sanlam Umbrella Fund. The move from
a stand-alone fund to an umbrella fund was very compelling as
it was becoming increasingly clear that the stand-alone fund was
very costly to members. An umbrella fund pools the contributions
of various employers and members in one fund and the greater
number of participants allows for cost savings and delivers more
value to members. The member shares of the Mhlathuze Water
Provident Fund are to be transferred to the Sanlam Umbrella
Fund on approval of the Financial Services Board.
HR Service Satisfaction Annual Survey
The annual HR Service Satisfaction Survey is conducted to better
understand the employees’ perspective and identify perceived
service gaps and to facilitate continuous improvement in HR
services and programmes. The overall satisfaction level is good,
as it is at 81.52%, against a target of 75%. Employees are
most satisfied with Leave and HR Administration, the employee
wellness, and recruitment and selection. There are opportunities
for improvement in handling of grievances and disciplinaries.
Human Resources Development
Detailed here below is the analysis of training and development
during the year under review.
•

Staff Training
The Annual Training Report (ATR) and the Workplace Skills
Plan (WSP) for 2016 was compiled and submitted to the
EWSETA on 15th April 2016 as it is always due for submission
to the SETA by end April of each year. Subsequent to this
an application for the Discretionary grant to implement
learnership on water and waste water treatment NQF level
3 was successfully submitted to the SETA before the closing
date of 8th June 2016.
The WSP for 2015/16 was implemented successfully as
approximately 99% of the planned and compliance training
was completed at a cost of R1.2 million. Seventy two percent
(72%) of this amount was spent on training females and

•

people living with disability. Approximately 1 061 mandays were spent on training including learnership and
artisan training of MW employees. Further, an amount of
R131 514.22 was received as a rebate from the EWSETA.
This money would be used for further organisational
development initiatives. Equitable distribution of training
was done in terms of gender, race and disability.
Internal and External Bursaries
A budget of R400 000 was fully utilised on internal bursaries
to thirty employees i.e. twenty-two (22) females, one of
whom was a person living with a disability, and eight (8)
males. Two employees from scientific services completed
their BTech degrees and they are currently pursuing
Masters degrees. Two (2) employees completed their MBA.
Furthermore, six (6) new Amanzi bursaries to the value of
R85 000.00 each were awarded to external students from
needy communities within Mhlathuze Water’s area of supply
i.e. Zululand and Mkhanyakude Municipality. They are all in
the Engineering field.

Learnerships and Internships
Eleven (11) Learnership students from the local community
were appointed for a period of one year in order to complete
a National Certificate in Water and Waste Water Treatment NQF
level 3. This program involved graduates with various water
related qualifications, matriculants and NQF level 3 learners. A
discretionary grant of R350 000 was received from EWSETA to
top up our Learnership budget of R720 000.
Fifteen (15) graduates were appointed for a period of one year in
an internship programme in order to furnish them with learning
and valuable practical experience which is complimentary to their
fields of study. Preference was given to previously disadvantaged
and needy graduates.
Other significant achievements of the year are:
• Mhlathuze Water offered two (2) ArtisanTraining Programmes
to Mhlathuze Water employees for fitting and millwright that
will be completed in 2017. Again Mhlathuze Water has been
awarded a discretionary grant of R3 million by EWSETA to
implement an electrical artisan apprenticeship. Twenty (20)
learners have completed Phase One theory and practical
training and are currently doing Phase Two theory training.
Apprenticeship is to be completed in September 2018.
• The organisation offered three (3) Graduate Training
Programmes to two (2) males and one (1) female. The
duration of the programme is between two to three years
depending on the development plan for each student. Two
(2) of them are in the engineering field and one (1) female is
in the finance field.
• Mhlathuze Water boasts itself with four (4) Legislated
Professional Registrations i.e. two (2) PR Eng., one (1)
Certificated Engineer and one (1) Chartered Accountant.
Furthermore, there are twenty nine (29) Voluntary
Professional Registrations.

MHLATHUZE WATER l Annual Report 2015/2016

35

•

•

•

•

•

•

The training department coordinated five induction sessions
with fifty-eight (58) attendees of all new employees including
interns, learnership learners and artisan learners.
Corporate Services implemented a program of skilling
employees for their retirement in order to capacitate them
to continue to earn an income whilst on retirement. Mixed
farming, plumbing and building block making are the
trainings that have been attended by the staff members that
are close to retirement
Mhlathuze Water participated in career guidance sessions
i.e. Mangosuthu, DUT, Mlokothwa High School and various
Nsezi school visits.
To comply with Blue Drop and Green Drop System
requirements a total of sixty (60) credits in Water and Waste
Water Treatment have been obtained by Mhlathuze Water
Process Controllers at NQF level 2 and 4. These credits are
leading to a National Certificate in Water & Waste Water
Treatment.
A new joint employment equity and training committee has
been appointed on a fixed term of three (3) years. Letters
of appointment together with the Terms of Reference
were issued to the Committee Members who were then
trained on legislations that governs skills development and
employment equity. Employment equity roadshows were
conducted following a survey on employment equity barriers
and affirmative action measures.
Thirteen (13) legislated/compliance training programmes
were coordinated and a total number of 138 Mhlathuze
Water employees attended these trainings.

Employee Wellness Programme
Mhlathuze Water has over the years demonstrated its
commitment to employee health and safety by implementing and
achieving OHSAS 18001 Certification. In 2014, Mhlathzue Water
was recertified to OHSAS 18001:2007 Management System,
by the accredited certification body. We are of the belief that
Mhlathuze Water should work effortlessly in the implementation
of occupational health and safety programmes for the benefit
of our employees in an effort to achieve health and safety
compliance throughout the organisation.
We have managed to maintain our target of 0.26 disabling injury
frequency rate, for the year 2015/16.
Furthermore, a comprehensive employee wellness programme
in line with SANS 16001:2007, employee wellness and disease
management system has been successfully implemented in our
organisation. The certification readiness has been confirmed by
the certification body that has audited our wellness programmes.
As part of our commitment to occupational health and wellness,
Mhlathuze Water has opened, for the first time, an occupational
health and wellness clinic. The organisation has conducted
occupational health risk assessments which have helped in
the formulation of risk based medical surveillance programme.
An occupational medicine practitioner has been appointed
to manage the site clinic and medical examinations will be
conducted at our site clinic. The clinic also provides employees
with wellness screening, counselling and assistance for chronic
disease management.

Bring your kid to work day
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SAVE WATER: Use “grey water” - used water from baths, washing machines and other safe sources to water your gardens.

LONG SERVICE YEAR-END RECIPIENTS

Sicelo Tembe
5 Years of service
Department: Cou - Vulindlela

Mduduzi Mthembu
5 Years of service
Department: Cou - Vulindlela

Bhekokwakhe Mnguni
5 Years of service
Department: Cou - Vulindlela

Delani Msane
10 Years of service
Department: Engineering Central Maintenance

Charlene Pillay
10 Years of service
Department: Finance

Sharon Yenkasamy
15 Years of service
Department: Finance

Mandla Myeni
Thabo Mpanza
20 Years of service
25 Years of service
Department: Corporate Services Department: Cou - Vulindlela

ACHIEVEMENTS

Duncan Zungu
Achievement:
MBA

Vareena Govender
Achievement:
MBA

Saneliswe Gumede
Achievement:
BCOM in Financial
/Management
MHLATHUZE
WATER l Annual Report 2015/2016
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SCIENTIFIC SERVICES
WATER QUALITY AND
COMPLIANCE
One of Mhlathuze Water’s core functions is to provide water that
does not impact negatively on consumer health over a lifetime of
consumption. Water quality is managed through a management
system which covers the operational area and includes planned
monitoring programmes, auditing, compliance and water quality
risk assessments that are conducted using a source to tap
approach and the water safety implementation plans.
The water quality monitoring programmes are reviewed annually
for all operational sites and sampling and analysis are undertaken
in accordance with Mhlathuze Water’s SANS 241:2015 monitoring
programme and SANAS ISO 17025 accredited methods. There is
also an emergency response protocol which includes various alert
level triggers which has been developed. This is reviewed and
updated each year.

(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

Chronic Health;
Aethetic;
Operational; and
Physical

The current monitoring exceeds some of the requirements so
as to cater for other operational requirements and contractual
obligations with certain industrial consumers.
SANS 241:2015 Compliance Parameters
(July 2015 to June 2016)

SANS 241 Compliance for Nsezi WTP
100,0

99,9

99,9

99,9

99,9

99,9

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

80,0
60,0

POTABLE WATER QUALITY
PERFORMANCE

40,0

The Mhlathuze Water bulk treatment works at Nsezi complies
with the South African National Standard (SANS 241:2015) which
requires water quality to be evaluated and reported against six
risk categories:
(1)
Acute Health: Microbiological;
(2)
Acute Health : Chemical;

20,
0,0
Overall SANS 241 Compliance

Risk associated with Acute Health 2 Parameters
(July 2015 to June 2016)
Total number
of tests

Total number
complying

Cytopathogenic Viruses

1

100%

Cryptosporidium

1

100%

WASTE WATER DISPOSAL
COMPLIANCE

Water sampling in the laboratory
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Mhlathuze Water owns and operates the biggest offshore
wastewater disposal system in South Africa. Two pipelines
(buoyant A-Line and dense B/C-Line) extending four (4) and five
(5) kilometers out to sea discharge industrial wastewater from
the big industries in Richards Bay and surroundings, sludge
from Nsezi Water Treatment Plant and macerated sewage from
the uMhlathuze Municipality. The organisation has a license to
dispose industrial wastewater in terms of Section 21 (h) of the
National Water Act, 36 of 1998. In line with the license, samples
are taken daily from the contributors and also from the combined
effluent at the pump station before it is mixed with seawater and
pumped into the sea.

SAVE WATER: Turn the tap off between washing your face, brushing your teeth or shaving.

A-Line waste water compliance (%)

B/C-Line waste water compliance (%)

A-Line compliance
92,0

B/C-Line compliance
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70,0

88,67

60,0
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85,2

86,0
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40,0
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20,0
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0.0
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A-line

The current disposal permit was issued by the then Department
of Water Affairs & Forestry in terms of chapter 4 of the National
Water Act of 1998. With the promulgation of the Integrated
Coastal Management Act of 2008, Mhlathuze Water submitted
an application to Department of Environmental Affairs for the
new Coastal Waters Discharge Permit. The new permit is expected
to be issued before the end of 2016.
Effluent pipeline forum meetings are held quarterly to discuss
compliance and other relevant operational issues relating to
the pipelines. Representatives from companies discharging into
the pipelines, Departments of Water and Environmental Affairs,
media and other stakeholders also attend these meetings.
Mhlathuze Water has implemented a system to impose financial
penalties on non-conforming effluent from contributors in the
hope that this will result in improved compliance.

SHEQ MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

ISO 17025:2005: Laboratory System Accreditation
The organisation’s ISO 17025 accredited laboratory maintained
its accreditation after all findings raised during the surveillance
assessment in September 2015 were cleared. In addition,
surveillance intervals were extended from 12 months to 18
months, an indication that the accreditation body considers the
system to be maturing and the implementation stable.
The organisation has also invested in more technologically
advanced laboratory testing equipment with the aim of satisfying
the water testing needs for its operations and clients. The chemistry
laboratory performs mainly inorganic testing, with the scope on
organic testing being very limited. Microbiological laboratory also
performs other tests like algae counts and microcystin toxins.
The key objectives of the laboratory in support of Mhlathuze
Water’s primary business are:

2012

2015

2016

B/C-line

•

•
•

To provide assurance that water produced is suitable
for drinking and effluent disposed complies with license
requirements, thereby assuring public health protection from
diseases and water related impacts;
To produce scientific data for the development and
optimisation of infrastructure; and
To assess the status of water resources and quality of raw
water supply in the rivers and catchments.

Test results are produced within the specified times that forms
part of Service Level Agreement with end users. Supported by
Laboratory Information Management Systems (LIMS), water
quality results are captured, validated, stored and reported.
ISO 14001: Environmental Management System (EMS)
Mhlathuze Water has been ISO 14001 certified since February
2006. This certification is a voluntary process which involves
an external certification body performing audits to confirm
compliance to an international standard. This initiative indicates
the organisation’s commitment to comply with environmental
legislation and to conduct its operations in an environmentally
friendly manner.
An annual surveillance audit was conducted in December 2015.
Three (3) minor findings were raised and these were successfully
cleared. The current certificate is valid for a period of 3 years,
effective from April 2015 to March 2018.
Mhlathuze Water has an environmental policy that provides
strategic framework for the company’s Environmental
Management System which translates into the identification of
potential environmental impacts and setting of environmental
objectives and targets. These objectives and targets address
areas such as pollution prevention, waste minimisation, recycling
as well as conservation of energy.

MHLATHUZE WATER l Annual Report 2015/2016
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This is supported by organisational systems, procedures and
practices that govern the company’s operations which are basic
to its environmental management programs and those are:
waste management, environmental sustainability policy, carbon
footprint, incident prevention and reporting and environmental
impact assessment for construction of pipelines, reservoirs and
other infrastructure.
ISO 9001 Quality Management System (QMS)
Mhlathuze Water has been ISO 9001 certified since February
2011. A re-certification audit was conducted by SABS in
December 2015. Only two (2) minor findings were raised and
these were successfully cleared. The current certificate is valid for
three (3) years until 2017.
Intergration Of Systems
Going forward the organisation will integrate most of its systems
as this will make implementation more efficient. This process will
be done in conjunction with the migration to new and updated
standards which have recently been released.
ISO 50001 Energy Management Systems (EnMS)
The organisation is in the process of implementing an Energy
Management System (ISO 50001 Standard) in an effort to reduce
electricity usage. Work started during the latter part of 2014/15.
Certification is expected to be achieved by June 2017

ENVIRONMENTAL
MANAGEMENT

Environmental Incidents
An incident is an unplanned or undesired event that adversely
affects the organisation’s operations. Environmental incidents
include property damage, spills, or near miss events that could
have resulted in any of these. See below a table with the number
of incidents the organisation had during the reporting period.
Incident management systems with protocols are in place to
ensure proper and timeous response to all incidents. There has
been an increase in the number of incidents for the reporting
period 2015/16 to eight (8) as compared to seven (7) recorded
for 2014/15. The incidents were mainly in relation to effluent
spillages.

WASTE MANAGEMENT
Mhlathuze water is currently implementing a Waste Management
Plan which is aimed at reducing waste in line with waste
management principles, namely: recycle, recover, reuse and/or
avoid on all sites of operation. A baseline study was undertaken
in order to determine how much waste the organisation is
generating as well as how much can be recycled in order to
dispose as minimal waste as possible, which resulted in the
following recommendations:
-

Waste separation at source
Recycling of paper, metals, used toner cartridges, glass
bottles, wooden pallets

Waste Reduction
Mhlathuze Water monitors paper usage of each section/
department. All employees are encouraged to minimise
unnecessary printing, and where possible, documents are
distributed electronically.
See graph on opposite page showing the printing paper cost per
section/department for 2013-2016.
The general trend indicates that there is a reduction in paper
usage across the organisation.
Waste Recycling
• Mhlathuze Water recycles glass, cans and wooden pallets in
addition to printing paper, cardboard, plastic bottles, scrap
metals and used oil. As part of community empowerment
an SMME company is providing such services to Mhlathuze
Water.
• Toner cartridges are collected by another external service
provider.
Waste Disposal
Both general and hazardous waste is collected by competent
service providers for disposal at designated landfill sites.
In compliance with the cradle to grave principle Mhlathuze
Water has started conducting third party environmental audits
for all recyclers as well as landfill sites where Mhlathuze Water’s
generated waste is disposed to.

Number
Of incidents

Environmental incidents for 2015/16
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Incident type

Jul
15

Aug
15

Sep
15

Oct
15

Nov
15

Dec
15

Jan
16

Feb
16

Mar
16

Apr
16

May
16

Jun
16

Diesel Spillages

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Chemical Spillages

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Effluent Spillages

0

0

2

0

2

1

0

0

0

2

1

0

Unauthorised Waste Management

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

SAVE WATER: Use low-flow showerheads, dual-flush toilet mechanisms and water-efficient washing machines.

Printing paper cost per section/department for 2013-2016

MW Paper costs 2013-2016
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Carbon Footprint And Emissions Reduction Initiatives
The organisation has calculated a carbon footprint of its operations and developed a Carbon Management Plan. The exercise provided
an improved understanding of the organisation’s carbon footprint with a view to transform to a more environmentally sustainable entity
in the face of global climate change risk. Mhlathuze Water’s direct carbon emissions (scope 1) arise from fuel usage for vehicles and
generators, while indirect carbon emissions (scope 2) are primarily due to electricity usage and to a minor extent flights.
Table 3: Carbon Footprint results - CO2 equivalents (tonnes)
Financial Year 2013/14

Financial Year 2014/15

Financial Year 2015/16

Scope 1 (tonnes CO2-e)

210

412

498

Scope 2 (tonnes CO2-e)

38 705

80 122

90 216

Total (Scope 1 & 2)(tonnes CO2-e)

38 915

80 534

90 714

CO2 Equivalents over 3 periods

CO2 Equivalents in 2015/16 financial year

CO2 Equivalents (Tonnes) over 3 periods
90 216

90 000

80 122

80 000
CO2-e (Tonnes)

2015/16 Carbon emissions by area
Petrol 0%

70 000

Diesel 0% H/O, labs and
workshop
1%

60 000
50 000

38 705

40 000

Mkhalazi PS
24%

Nsezi
16%

30 000
WWDS
15%

20 000
10 000
0

210
2013/14

412
2014/15

498
2015/16

Period (Financial Year)

Madungela PS
29%

Weir
15%

Scope 1 (tonnes CO2-e)
Scope 2 (tonnes CO2-e)
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CO2 Equivalents in 2014/15 financial year

CO2 Equivalents in 2013/14 financial year

FY 2014/15 Carbon Emmissions by Area

FY 2013/14 Carbon Emmissions by Area

Diesel 0%

Mkhalazi PS
1%
Madungela PS
9%

Petrol 0%

H/O, labs and
workshop
2%

Mkhalazi PS
18%

Nsezi
30%

Weir
20%

Diesel 0% H/O, labs and
workshop
1%

Petrol 0%

Nsezi
20%

Madungela PS
24%
WWDS
38%

WWDS
19%
Weir
18%

The energy consumption per energy type and per area/installation is shown below. The majority of energy consumed is seen to be through
electricity consumption. The petrol and diesel consumption for vehicles is seen to be quite insignificant in comparison.
Energy consumption per source

Energy consumption per source (GJ) for the 2015/16 Financial Year
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Electricity (GJ)
Diesel (GJ)

20000
Energy use (GJ)

Petrol (GJ)
15000

10000

5000

20
16
Jun

6

01
6
y2

Ma

r2
01
Ap

16
20

Ma
r

6

16
20
Feb

5

20
1
Jan

5

c2
01
De

5

v2
01
No

20
1
Oc
t

01
5
p2
Se

01
5
g2
Au

Jul

20

15

0

Period in months

Mhlatuze Water’s major emission sources are from electricity used for pumping.
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SAVE WATER: Kettles should not be filled to the brim but with just enough water for your needs. This will reduce your electricity bill too.

Electricity consumption per area/installation
The high energy usage for Madungela and Mkhalazi pump stations were due to the operation of the transfer emergency
scheme.

Electricity usage (kWh) per Area for 2015/16
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Monitoring of our carbon footprint is undertaken on a monthly basis and data is recorded with the following focus areas: electricity usage,
vehicle (fuel usage), as well as water usage at the pump stations/plants. The graph above shows the use of electricity in all Mhlathuze
Water installations throughout the financial year. The use of electricity in water works was observed to be fluctuating as a result of the
implementation of water conservation interventions and in other instances it was due to maintenance works. For waste water disposal
scheme, energy reduction or demand for May and June 2016 was due to ongoing refurbishment project in the plants, and the A-line was
put on bypass. As one of the water conservation initiatives, load shifting was applied at Nsezi which also resulted in reduction in energy
usage in other months even though there were challenges with proper managing of the load shifting due to the drought conditions. Load
shifting was carried out inconsistently. The reduction on the Mkhalazi Pump Station in the month of May 2016 was due to breakdown
on the main incomer of the plant.
The current initiatives aimed at reducing the carbon footprint are:
• Implementation of the Energy Management System (ISO 50001). Certification is expected to be achieved by the end of the next
financial year;
• Power factor correction survey undertaken;
• Applying load shift at Nsezi Water Treatment Plant - ongoing;
• Power analyzers installation project in progress for improved measurement of the energy consumption;
• Replacement of normal lights with energy efficient lights; and
• Encouraging employees to implement on-going carbon offsetting initiatives such as tree planting.

MHLATHUZE WATER l Annual Report 2015/2016
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WATER CONSERVATION
In response to the climate change, Mhlathuze Water is currently
exploring measures to improve water use efficiency. The following
has been undertaken thus far:
• General awareness to all staff through induction, toolbox
talks and internal magazine.
• Installation of Jojo tanks in strategic areas at the Head Office
complex.
• Conducting water audits to assist in establishing new ways
to conserve water in the installations.
• Improved turnaround time on repairs to leaks.
• Installation of barmaid valves to reduce water pressure.
Below is a graph showing water usage at Waste Water Disposal
System (WWDS) during the financial year 2015/16 period. At the
WWDS water is mainly used as part of the process (glands). The
glands are used for cooling off the pumps. The pumps were nonfunctional in the month of May and June as a result of plant
maintenance shutdown. On average the head office complex
consumption’s is normally around 300kl.
Graph showing water consumption for 2015/16 financial
year at the Waste Water Disposal System

ENVIRONMENTAL
AUTHORISATIONS AND
COMPLIANCE MONITORING
Environmental Impact Assessments (EIAs) are conducted for
all relevant projects so that likely environmental impacts can
be managed. Where environmental impacts are identified,
Environmental Management Plans are developed to mitigate
the risk. Projects involving a change of land use, construction or
upgrading of infrastructure and storage/handling of hazardous
substances are amongst a number of listed activities that are
required to follow the Environmental Impacts Assessment
process. Mhlathuze Water outsources these services but monitors
and audits these to ensure compliance with the Environmental
Management Plans during project implementation.
The organisation has applied for Basic Assessments in line with
the EIA requirements of the National Management Act and Water
Use Licences (WUL) in line with Section 21 (C & I) of the National
Water Act.
Status of environmental authorisations in 2015/16
Project Name

120 000

9000
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7000

80 000
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60 000
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Ingwavuma/ Jozini
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20 000
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0

0
Jul 15

Sep 15
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May 16

Water Consumtion (kl)
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The following projects will be implemented in the near future:
• Installation of water saving shower heads in all showers in
the ablution facilities.
• Constant monitoring of the flow meters to ensure consistency
and correct billing.
• Use of low flow fixtures (the pressure release valve).
• Insulation of water pipes (warm water).
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Date of
authorisation
– EA

Date of
authorisation
– WUL

June 2014 (Phase 1) WUL awaited
February 2015
(Phase 2)

Augmentation
EA awaited
of Nsezi Water
(submission was
Treatment Works and done in June 2016)
Associated Pipeline
(Phase 1 and 2)

WUL awaited

BLUE DROP SYSTEM (BDS)
The Department of Water and Sanitation has established a
Blue Drop System (BDS), which enables them to monitor the
performance of all Water Services Institutions. Mhlathuze Water
has participated in the Blue Drop System (BDS) assessments since
2010. In the 2011/12 assessment the Nsezi system received Blue
Drop Certification with a final score of 98.39%. The 2013/14
assessment outcomes for Nsezi were received in January 2016
where a score of 95.38% was achieved. For 2015/16 an internal
blue drop audit was conducted in March 2016. Blue drop system
Progress Assessment Tool (PAT) was conducted in August 2016
and the results are still awaited. Blue Drop scores are determined
based on assessments conducted by a panel of drinking water
professionals on five key areas. These are: water safety planning,
drinking water quality process management and control, drinking
water quality compliance, management accountability and local
regulation and asset management. Compliance in all these areas
ensures that not only drinking water quality compliance is taken
into account as was traditionally the case, but also the overall

SAVE WATER: Fix a leaking toilet otherwise it can waste up to 100 000 litres of water in one year.

management of the drinking water supply chain and control of
risks to water quality.

NATIONAL MICROBIAL
(NMMP) AND NATIONAL
EUTROPHICATION MONITORING
PROGRAMME (NEMP)
Mhlathuze Water is the implementing agent for the National
Microbial Monitoring Programme (NMMP) and National
Eutrophication Monitoring Programme (NEMP) as per a contract
signed in July 2015 with the Department of Water and Sanitation.
The NMMP is aimed at providing information on the status and
trends on the extent of faecal pollution in water resources as well
as to help assess the potential risk to humans associated with
the possible use of faecally polluted water resources. Bi-monthly
monitoring of the 18 identified NMMP sites is ongoing.

COMMEMORATION OF
ENVIRONMENTAL DAYS,
GENERAL AWARENESS AND
EDUCATION
Mhlathuze Water, through the Environmental and Water Quality
Section embarked on awareness and education campaigns on
environmental protection and water conservation. Some of these
initiatives were done as part of a forum consisting of different
stakeholders (government, private sector and NGOs) within the
uThungulu District Municipality and uses a calendar of special
days throughout the year. The table on the following page
outlines activities undertaken internally and externally during the
reporting period and shows the list of environmental awareness
campaigns and events for 2015/16.

The objectives of the NEMP is to measure, assess and report
regularly on:
• the current trophic status,
• the nature of current eutrophication problems,
• the potential for future changes in trophic status in South  
African impoundments and rivers in a manner that will
support strategic decisions in respect of their national
management, be mindful of financial and capacity
constraints, yet, be soundly scientific.
Monthly monitoring of the four (4) NEMP sites started in July
2015 and is ongoing.

WORKING FOR WATER
PROGRAMME
Mhlathuze Water has been implementing the Working for Water
Programme for the then Department of Water Affairs (DWA) since
2003.
The programme has since moved to the Department of
Environmental Affairs (DEA) with the same mandate. A three year
Memorandum of Agreement was signed between Mhlathuze
Water and DEA in 2014. This contract will end in September
2017.
This is an Expanded Public Works Extended Programme aimed
at alleviating poverty through job creation for rural communities
while assisting them in terms of skills development. It aims to
conserve water resources through the removal of alien invasive
plants. A total of 364 people have benefited from this project,
including: 59% women, 41% men, 51% youth, and 1% people
with disabilities. A number of projects were implemented in
Mfule River, Goedertrouw Dam, Nkandla and Mhlathuze River
(Waterweeds).

List of environmental awareness campaigns and events
for 2015/16

Working for water
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Event
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Date

Activities

Weedbuster Week

October 2015

The Weedbuster week was celebrated
with Working for Water contractors, their
employees as well as Mhlathuze Water
staff that are involved in the program. The
event was held at the Goedertrouw Dam.
The local school, Ncemaneni Primary,
was also visited where awareness was
done on the importance of removing
alien plants as well as on hygiene and
sanitation.

Wetlands Day

February 2016

As part of raising awareness, posters
were displayed in strategic areas at the
head office complex on the importance
and conservation of wetlands.

National Water Week

March 2016

The organisation participated in a
Walk for Water Community Event, in
partnership with other companies in
the area, to raise awareness about the
severity of the drought and educating
communities on water saving tips.
Gardening material was given to
participants.

Environment Week

June 2016

Mhlathuze Water commemorated the day
on the 15th of June. Exhibition stands
were made on the staff parking area
to educate employees on the potential
environmental impacts associated with
Mhlathuze Water`s operations and
activities.

World Oceans Day

June 2016

Mhlathuze Water celebrated World
Oceans Day on the 10th of June 2016 at
the Waste Water Disposal System under
the theme “Healthy Oceans, Healthy
Planet”. Invitations were extended to
Mhlathuze Water effluent contributors
and relevant government departments.

SAVE WATER: Do not over-fill or excessively backwash your swimming pool.

New Jozini Regional water treatment plant.

Pipelaying in Jozini
MHLATHUZE WATER l Annual Report 2015/2016
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ENGINEERING SERVICES
MHLATHUZE TRANSFER SCHEME
Mhlathuze Transfer Scheme
The implementation of short-term remedial measures for the
structural integrity of the Mhlathuze Weir commenced in the
2014/2015 financial year and were completed. The construction of
the new Mhlathuze Weir is included in the five-year capital plan.
Construction is anticipated to commence in the 2016/17 financial
year.
The 2015/16 financial year was dominated by the drought crisis,
which had already started being severe in 2014/15. Level 3
restrictions were in place from February 2015 to February 2016,
thereafter the restrictions were intensified to level 4. Mhlathuze
Water continued to supply raw water from this transfer scheme
to the City of uMhlathuze local municipality (Esikhaleni) at a rate
of 30 000m3/d, until March 2016 when the supply was restricted
to the allocated volume of 9 000m3/d as per level 4 restriction.
Mhlathuze Water was able to supply the municipality with more
water during this period because Tronox was using minimum
raw water while they were migrating from the Hillendale Mine
to Fairbreeze Mine. Tronox has since migrated to Fairbreeze and
have required raw water from December 2015.
Mhlathuze Water worked very closely with the Department of
Water and Sanitation (DWS) to control the level of the Mhlathuze
Weir, so as to minimise overflows (i.e. water loss) during the
current drought crisis while ensuring adequate raw water
availability to meet contractual obligations. At the end of March
2016 a letter was received from DWS instructing Mhlathuze
Water to enforce the restrictions.
A total volume of 69 532 464m3 of raw water was pumped from
the scheme this financial year, which is 2.3% lower than the
volume supplied in 2014/15. Nsezi Lake received 12 361 897m3,
which is 31% more than the volume supplied in 2014/15. This
was done in order to augment Lake Nsezi during the drought so
as to be able to supply Richards Bay Minerals (and therefore meet
6 000

contractual obligations), whose sole raw water source remained
as Lake Nsezi since other raw water sources dried up.

Nsezi Water Treatment Plant
Mhlathuze Water has maintained its Blue Drop certification for
the Nsezi Water Treatment Works. The 2013/2014 assessments
outcomes were received from the Department of Water and
Sanitation in January 2016 and certification was retained. The
new City of uMhlathuze pump station was commissioned and
is available for operation. The small scale water purification and
bottling plant was in operation. A more permanent structure with
an upgraded capacity and more automated plant is included in
the 2016/17 capital budget.
A total of 54 510 504m3 was abstracted by the Nsezi Water
Treatment Works, 47 699 062m3 from Mhlathuze River and
329 723m3 from Lake Nsezi. There was a 3.7% decrease in
the volume of raw water abstracted for purification due to the
restrictions.
Mhlathuze Water continued to supply the City of uMhlathuze
(Richards Bay) with purified water since the City of uMhlathuze
Mzingazi Nsezi Water Treatment Works was still out of operation
due to the low Mzingazi Lake level. The volumes supplied were
within the contracted volume of 48 000m3/day and lower when
the enforcement of restrictions commenced in March 2016.
Level 3 restrictions continued until the end of February 2016 after
which level 4 restrictions commenced and Mhlathuze Water was
instructed by DWS to drive the enforcement thereof. Mhlathuze
Water’s industrial clients continued to comply with the restrictions
and further reductions in water consumption were observed.
The unaccounted for water losses during the financial year were
2.52%, which was within the target of 5%.
The graph below outlines the total purified water quantities
supplied to consumers.
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SAVE WATER: Every time you boil an egg, save the cooled water for your houseplants. They’ll benefit from the nutrients released from the shell.

EXTERNAL O&M PROJECTS
Richards Bay Minerals

Mhlathuze Water continued with the operation of the water
treatment works and waste water treatment works at the
different mining ponds and commenced with the operation of
two additional plants, i.e. final product water treatment works
and main waste water treatment works on 1 February 2016,
which is a three year contract.

City of uMhlathuze
Mhlathuze Water continued with the operation and maintenance
of the City of uMhlathuze water and waste water treatment
plants and associated bulk distribution infrastructure, on an
interim month-to-month arrangement, until an appointment
letter was received in September 2015.

EFFLUENT SCHEME
The content buoyant and dense effluent systems are of a
corrosive nature, hence critical spares for both of these systems
are always available should asset failures be experienced. During
the financial year under review, the effluent scheme operated
under close monitoring to prevent any downtime to the system.
No major breakdowns were experienced.
Intensive maintenance was conducted on the A-line offshore
pipeline over the 2014/15 financial year. This has produced good
results since the A-line was maintained at a good operating
condition with relatively low maintenance costs compared to the
previous financial year.
The B-line Pump Station is available as a standby to the C-line
Pump Station. Minimal maintenance to keep the plant available
was conducted on the B-line. The following activities were
conducted on the B-line:
• A bathymetric survey to quantify the gypsum build up over
the diffuser section, which was found to have completely
dissolved and only sand build-up, which is due to sea bed
natural movements was witnessed.
• A pipeline survey was conducted, a full annual pipeline
survey from the onshore to offshore including the survey
over sea sand build-up over pipeline.
The C-line Pump Station is available with two pumps in operation
and one pump on standby. The following activities were
conducted on the line:
• A bathymetric survey to quantify the gypsum build-up over
the diffuser section;
• A pipeline survey was conducted, a full annual pipeline
survey from the onshore to offshore, including the survey
over sea sand build up over pipeline.
• No dredging operation was necessary over the 2015/16
financial year.

MAINTENANCE,
PLANT EFFICIENCY
AND AVAILABILITY
Plant availability for the financial year under review was 99.5%
(target - not more than 1% unplanned supply interruption).
The experienced downtime was a result of minor breakdowns,
which only rendered part of the plant unavailable without
affecting the total availability of the plant. The shutdown process
was procedurally communicated with the client as per the existing
contractual agreement.
A Preventative Predictive Maintenance Strategy is applied to
Mhlathuze Water plant equipment when conducting maintenance
activities. The maintenance performance level achieved for
2015/16 is stipulated below:
Average Annual Performance

Actual

Target

Planned Maintenance activities

96.03%

95%

Unplanned Maintenance activities

3.97%

5%

Mhlathuze Water successfully implemented and commissioned
an 11KV emergency power supply from Mondi to the Nsezi
Water Treatment Plant. The emergency power supply has been
in operation several times when there were power supply
interruptions from the City of uMhlathuze.
Mhlathuze Water adopted a strategy to improve on automation of
the plant in order to optimise its operation. A Supervisory Control
and Data Acquisition (SCADA) project (phase 1) was implemented
and commissioned over the financial year under review. SCADA
phase 2 project is planned to be implemented over the 2016/17
financial year. SCADA phase 1 project was used to develop the
project specifications for SCADA phase 2 by identifying the
gaps on SCADA phase 1 and using those gaps to ensure that
SCADA phase 2 will not only develop the automation further but
bridge all gaps that might have been created by SCADA phase
1 project. Mhlathuze Water is in a process of implementing an
Energy Management System (ISO 50001). The implementation
of this system is aimed at providing clear and well thought out
objectives and guidelines for Mhlathuze Water to become more
energy efficient in conducting its business. The certification is
expected in the 2016/17 financial year. The internal audit for the
system was conducted in January 2016 and it was observed that
there was a need to put more emphasis on technical analysis
to determine high energy users before finalising the energy
consumption management principles.
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PLANNING

Regional Bulk Master Planning
The future planning in the region is ongoing, and Mhlathuze
Water continues to engage with all water service authorities in
the region to ensure that new projects for implementation are
identified. Initiatives which require mutual co-ordination (such as
desalination and water reuse) have been identified.
Mhlathuze Water received a directive from the Minister of Water
and Sanitation, Ms Nomvula Mokonyane, to accelerate the
implementation of all bulk water projects in the uMkhanyakude
District Municipality. The directive is to address the water
shortages backlog in the whole district, some projects are already
under construction and some are still at the planning stage. The
value of the projects under this directive amounts to R5.4 billion.
The Department of Water and Sanitation (DWS) concluded the
reconciliation study for Richards Bay and surrounding towns.
The main objective of the Richards Bay reconciliation study
is to develop a strategy to ensure adequate and sustainable
reconciliation of future water supply within the Mhlathuze River
catchment up to 2040. The recommendations from the study will
determine whether any augmentation or expansions are required
for the Mhlathuze catchment schemes.
The study acknowledges that the current water resources available
from the Mhlathuze River catchment are sufficient to cater for
the existing water requirements but will require augmentation to
cope with future medium and long term needs.
The report has identified four top interventions for long term
strategies/sources of raw water:
• Urban/industrial water conservation and water demand
management (Immediately implementable);
• Raising of Goedertrouw dam wall (5 - 6 years);
• Dam on Nseleni River (10 - 11 years); and
• Dam in Mfolozi River (>10 years).
The last three above are subject to DWS prioritisation in terms of
national commitments and budgetary constraints.
DWS has confirmed that that they will be proceeding with raising
the Goedertrouw Dam wall and will carry out a feasibility study in
respect of a dam on the Mfolozi River. DWS has also requested
Mhlathuze Water to further investigate desalination and reuse of
water and a dam on the Nseleni River as localised options.
A separate study will have to be conducted to look at how
Richards Bay can be provided with water in emergencies (drought
conditions).
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SAVE WATER: Remove invasive alien plants on your property.

uMkhanyakude Water Services Master Plan
Mhlathuze Water undertook to pursue this initiative which
included the compilation of the Project Execution Plan (PEP). The
master plan covers the following:
• Estimates of future demand up to 2040 based on population
growth and regional development;
• Status quo of existing infrastructure;
• New bulk water and reticulation infrastructure need to meet
predicted growth;
• Sources of raw water;
• Cost estimates;
• Prioritisation of identified new works, based on Department
of Water and Sanitation prioritisation criteria; and
• High level implementation funding needs and cash flow.
The Water Services Master Plan was completed and handed to
uMkhanyakude District Municipality in June 2016.

PROJECTS AT DESIGN STAGE

Access Road to Nsezi Water Treatment Works
The project involves the construction of an alternative route to
Nsezi Water Treatment Works. This will assist Mhlathuze Water
to have a dedicated surfaced road, where Mhlathuze Water
employees and service providers will be able to access the plant
without 4X4 vehicles.
Three alternative routes were identified. Following numerous
discussions with different stakeholders (City of uMhlathuze,
Transnet, Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife, Mondi and DOT), Mondi
Richards Bay has, in principle, agreed to provide Mhlathuze Water
with a portion of their forestry land in order to have a more direct,
short and technically viable access road to Nsezi Transnet.
Implementation has been approved to commence in the 2017/18
financial year.

Augmentation of Nsezi Water Treatment Plant
Mhlathuze Water undertook an operational efficiency study to:
• Determine ways and means of increasing capacity through
improved operational and maintenance efficiencies;
• Identify bottlenecks within the system with a view to increasing
the capacity in line with current demand projections.
The purpose of this study was to develop a decision matrix to
align phased augmentation options with alternative growth
projections. Current and future water requirements have been
confirmed with existing users. The study was completed in
February 2016.
The objective of this project is to refurbish and upgrade the
existing Water Treatment Plant in order to increase the output
from 205ML/d to 260ML/d.

New work identified as needed includes:
• 48m diameter clarifier;
• Four filters;
• Flotation drainage system;
• A 1200/1500mm diameter raw water supply pipeline from Mhlathuze Weir to Nsezi Transnet; and
• Office building and multipurpose hall facility.

Refurbishments of Waste Water Treatment Works
Mhlathuze Water was asked by DWS to assist uMkhanyakude District Municipality regarding the refurbishments of waste water treatment
works at Manguzi, Ingwavuma and Hluhluwe.
A service provider was appointed to compile a business plan for the refurbishments required. The final business plan was submitted to
DWS in November 2015.
DWS has subsequently approved funding (combined R 12,6 million for the Ingwavuma and Hlugkuwe projects) and appointed Mhlathuze
Water as implementing agent with the project due for completion in March 2017.
Projects Planned for Further Investigation in 2016/17:
Study Title

Purpose/Goals

1

Dam on Nseleni River

Feasibility study including optimum location and implementation costs

2

Desalination and water reuse

Long term study into ways and means supplementing current sources and of reducing
water lost to waste

3

Sluice gate system at sea water intake

Investigate cause of siltation and excess marine growth at sea intake and feasibility
of solutions

4

City bulk supply pipeline augmentation

Determine cost implications of upgrading the portions of the City of uMhlathuze
industrial ring main which is a weak point in the supply of water from the Nsezi
Transnet, to the city’s Mandlazini Reservoirs

Water Applications Received
Pending and potential water/effluent applications to date are as follows:
Customer
1

Tongaat Hullet

2

Nyaza Light Metals - Water
Nyaza Light Metals - Effluent (brine)
Nyaza Light Metals - Effluent (chloride)

3

SANRAL - N2 Upgrade

4

Volumes (m3/d)

Volumes (m3/annum)

2 739.7

1 000 000

3762.7
11 556.9
34.9

1 373 400
4 218 300
12 753

66

24 090

Zulti South Mine - Richards Bay Minerals

40 000

14 600 000

5

Tronox - Fairbreeze Mine

31 460

11 482 900

6

Pulp United / Ferrostaal

5 000

1 825 000

7

City of uMhlathuze - Esikhaleni

25 000

9 125 000

8

City of uMhlathuze - Foskor

30 000

10 950 000
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ENGINEERING PROJECTS
AT IMPLEMENTATION STAGE

2 x 20 Ml Reservoir at Nsezi Water Treatment
Works
The project involves the construction of an additional 40Ml on
site storage for potable water to ensure uninterrupted supply
to Mhlathuze Water customers. The two new reservoirs will be
located within the fenced area of Nsezi Water Treatment Works.
Both reservoirs are under construction, the first reservoir is 86%
complete and is due for completion in September 2016. The
second reservoir is 68% complete and due for completion in
October 2016.

Construction of a reservoir in the Jozini area.

Tronox Pump Station Upgrade
Mhlathuze Water is upgrading the water yield capacity of the
Tronox Pump Station to meet future raw water demands since
currently it is only supplying raw water to the City of uMhlathuze
(Esikhaleni Water Treatment Works) and Tronox Mine. The budget
for this project is R21 million and R4 million has been spent.
The project is on schedule, as it is 60% complete and due for
commissioning at the end of September 2016.

Hlabisa Bulk Water Supply
The funder of this project is the Department of Water Affairs
(DWA). Mhlathuze Water was appointed by uMkhanyakude
District Municipality (UKDM) as an implementing agent.
The objective of this project is to construct bulk water pipelines,
reservoirs and pump stations in the Hlabisa area. The project was
sub-divided into four sections.
The total amount approved for the project to date is R208 million.
Over R175 million has been spent since 2008, and the following
has been completed:
• 101 km of 106.12 km pipes;
• 14 of 14 reservoirs;
• 40 of 42 reservoir chambers;
• 160 of 197 air valve chambers; and
• 40 of 42 control chambers.
The project is complete but no commissioning has been done
due to the water source not being adequate from Mandlakazi.
Currently the Zululand district is upgrading the Water treatment
works which is due for completion by the end of October 2016.
This will enable enough capacity to provide water to the Hlabisa
area.
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Dukuduku Water Supply Project
The objective of this project is to provide solutions to the water
supply challenges of Mtubatuba and surrounding areas. The
project will also ensure that there is an equitable distribution of
water to all the users, including the communities of Dukuduku,
Khula and Ezwenelisha. This project started in 2011 and the
new targeted date for completion is November 2016. The total
approved funds by DWS is now R155 million.
Over R142 million has been spent to date and the following has
been completed:
• Khula Village reticulation uPVC and HDPe pipes with a total
length of 37km;
• Dukuduku reticulation of uPVC and HDPe pipes, with a total
length of 86km;
• Dukuduku reservoir comprises a 5Mℓ concrete reservoir that
will provide storage for the Dukuduku villages, St Lucia and
Isimangaliso World Heritage Site;
• Dukuduku-Khula distribution 600mm diameter steel pipeline
will convey water from the Dukuduku Reservoir to Khula and
Dukuduku villages, a 5km long pipeline with associated air
and scour valves; and
• Mtubatuba pipeline upgrades of the existing 300 AC pipeline
from the Mtubatuba reservoirs towards Mtubatuba town. It
will be an 800mm diameter steel pipeline and 3km long. This
last leg of the project is being implemented and is due for
completion in November 2016.

Jozini/Ingwavuma Bulk Water Supply
The objective of this project is to implement a bulk water supply
in the rural area between Jozini and Ingwavuma towns, thereby
providing these communities with access to purified water. The
project covers the construction of five (5) pump stations, fifteen
(15) reservoirs, a 40Ml Water Treatment Plant and the laying of
kilometres of uPVC and steel pipes. The total funding transferred
to Mhlathuze Water by the Department of Co-operative
Governance and Traditional Affairs to date is R74 million (the
funds were used to install the reticulation). DWS committed to
transfer the balance of the budget for this project which is now
R2.1 billion. This project started in 2010. Phase 1 was completed
on 31 October 2011. The targeted date for Phase 2 of this project
is end of December 2020. DWS is funding the bulk supply portion
and Department of Co-operative Governance and Traditional
Affairs is funding the reticulation portion of the project. An
amount of R960 million has been spent to date. The Regional
Water Treatment Plant with a capacity of 40Ml/day is 96%
complete and is due commissioning in August 2016. This plant
will also provide water as far as Mbazwana town, Ingwavuma
town and surroundings.

Nongoma and Abaqulusi Water Supply Project
Following a directive from DWS in June 2015 for the organisation
to assist with drought intervention measures in the Zululand
District Municipality area, a Memorandum of Agreement was

SAVE WATER: Always water your plants during the early morning hours or in the evening, when temperatures are cooler.

signed between the three entities (Mhlathuze Water, Department
of Water and Sanitation and Zululand District Municipality). The
agreement paves way for much needed drought relief for the
area. The feasibility reports have been established by Mhlathuze
Water and have been submitted to DWS to enable funding. DWS
has made partial funding of R30 million available against the
need of about R265 million required to complete all the works as
per the feasibility reports. Four contractors have been appointed
to execute the works in both local municipalities.

Zululand and UMkhanyakude. The first phase of the project, with
a budget of R29 million earmarked for 50 schools, commenced in
November 2010 and was completed in June 2011.

KwaSani Bucket Eradication System Project

The National Department of Education appointment was
extended further to the 2013/14 financial year to complete
71 schools for Accelerated Schools Infrastructure Development
Initiative (ASIDI) with the budget of R52 million including the
revised scope extension of fencing the tank stands. The projects
have been successfully completed. Close out reports are being
prepared for Department of Basic Education.

Mhlathuze Water was appointed by COGTA to assist with
eradication of the bucket system in the Harry Gwala District
Municipality at KwaSani local municipality for two villages;
Himeville and Underberg. The project entails:
• Constructing new toilets at each household for both villages;
• Installation of sewer reticulation; and
• Construction of Wastewater Package units (Himeville and
Underberg).
The construction of stand-alone outside flush toilets has been
completed. The fabrication of the waste water package units is in
process by the manufacturer in Johannesburg and the installation
is expected to be completed by September 2016.The proposed
positions for the installation of the package plants in Underberg
is privately owned land and the purchase agreement has been
signed with the land owner. The sub-division and rezoning of the
land is required and the process has commenced with the local
municipality. The proposed land for the Himeville package plant
is owned by KwaSani Municipality and also require sub-division,
the application is also in progress. An amount of R29 million has
been spent to date.

Schools Ablution Facilities Project
Mhlathuze Water was appointed by the National Department
of Education for a three-year period from 2010/11 to provide
sanitation and water to schools on the priority list in five
district municipalities namely; Amajuba, Umzinyathi, uThungulu,

A further R50 million was made available for 2011/12 financial
year. The KZN-Provincial Department of Education appointed
Mhlathuze Water as an implementing agent for a further three
years to complete ablution facilities in 174 schools. This was
successfully achieved in 2015.

The National Department of Education entrusted Mhlathuze
Water with completing another twenty (20) projects under the
same water and Sanitation project for the 2015/16 financial
year. The estimated budget is R58 million. Two consultants and
two contractors have been appointed to complete water and
sanitation in 10 schools in uThungulu and iLembe districts.
The project is underway and due for completion at the end of
September 2016.

Health and Hygiene Education in Schools
Health and hygiene education is conducted in schools where
water and sanitation projects are being implemented. For people
to benefit from sanitation improvements, they must understand
the link between their own health, good hygiene and toilet
facilities. It aims at increasing an individual’s knowledge about
issues related to personal habits and practices that affects one’s
health. This is done to break the cycle of communicable diseases
and ensure sustainable sanitation structures. During the year
2015/16 health and hygiene education was conducted in 71
schools.

Sanitation and Environment Week: Ekupheleni High School
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A resident of Jozini collecting water from a nearby community stand pipe.
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SAVE WATER: Use “grey water” - used water from baths, washing machines and other safe sources to water your gardens.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
1.

INTRODUCTION

First time adoption of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP)
As a result of the withdrawal of the standards of South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (SA GAAP) as
from 1 December 2012, Mhlathuze Water has, for the 2016 year end and in future report under the Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice framework (GRAP). The Accounting Standards Board (ASB) approved the Directive on “The selection of an Appropriate Reporting
Framework by Public Entities (Directive 12)” in July 2015. Mhlathuze Water opted to implement GRAP for the year ended 30 June 2016
and the Board of Mhlathuze Water noted the directive received from the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) at a meeting held on the
16 September 2015, to change the Reporting Framework for Government Business Enterprises (GBE’s) schedule 3B entities to GRAP.
There are no material differences in the financial statements upon transition to GRAP, due to the fact that accounting policies applied by
Mhlathuze Water under SA GAAP are not materially different to those applied under GRAP. The date of transition was 1st July 2015. In
order to provide more reliable and relevant information to the users of the financial statements, management have reclassified specific
amounts as follows:

Statement of Financial Performance

Notes

As reported
previously
2015
R’000

Effects of
reclassification
2015
R’000

Difference
2015

498 765.
682.
12 228.

498 765.
504.
12 228.

-.
178.
-.

511 675.

511 497.

178.

(59 045)
(105 942)
-.
(51 802)
(13 069)
-.
-.
(42 943)
-.
(59 068)
(75 915)
(13 893)
(421 677)
89 998.
-.
89 998.

-.
(97 571)
(2 964)
(51 802)
(13 069)
(2 410)
(144)
(42 943)
(59 045)
(60 244)
(75 915)
(13 893)
(420 000)
91 497.
(1 499)
89 998.

(59 045)
(8 371)
(2 964)
-.
-.
(2 410)
(144)
-.
(59 045)
1 176.
-.
-.
(1 677)
(1 499)
(1 499)
-.

R’000

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Sale of goods and services
Other income
Interest received - investment

1

Total revenue from exchange transactions
Expenditure
Cost of sales
Employee related costs
Remuneration of board members
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance cost
Lease rentals on operating leases
Debt impairment
Repairs and maintenance
Bulk purchases
General expenses
Electricity and water
Chemicals
Total expenditure
Operating surplus
Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets
Surplus for the year

2
3
4

5
6
7
8

9
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1.

INTRODUCTION (continued)
As reported
previously
2015
R’000

Effects of
reclassification
2015
R’000

Difference
2015

Current assets
Inventories
Receivables from exchange transactions
VAT receivable
Cash and cash equivalents

349 106
7 301
118 060
2 235
221 510

349 106
7 301
118 060
2 235
221 510

-

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

660 669
659 965
704

660 669
659 965
704

-

1 009 775

1 009 775

-

Current liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions
Short term interest-bearing borrowings
Income received in advance
Employee benefit liability

185 378
149 922
22 110
7 965
5 381

185 378
149 922
22 110
7 965
5 381

-

Non-current liabilities
Long term interest-bearing borrowings
Income received in advance
Employee benefit liability

233 629
146 287
87 084
258

233 629
146 287
87 084
258

-

Net assets
Capital replacement reserve
Business Development reserve
Maintenance reserve
Self insurance reserve
Accumulated surplus

590 768
216 114
13 936
7 534
4 056
349 128

590 768
216 114
13 936
7 534
4 056
349 128

-

1 009 775

1 009 775

-

Statement of Financial Position

R’000

ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

TOTAL NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
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SAVE WATER: Turn the tap off between washing your face, brushing your teeth or shaving.

1.

INTRODUCTION (continued)

Notes - Statement of Financial Position and Financial Performance:
1. Other income
The difference of R178 thousand is included under Gain (loss) on disposal of assets (refer note 9).
2. Cost of sales
Cost of sales reflects under bulk purchases on the face of the statement of financial performance (refer note 7).
3. Employee related costs
The variance of R8,3 million was previously shown under SA GAAP as staff costs, these costs such as staff general expenses (travel, recruitment,
staff welfare, learnerships, conferences, protective clothing, etc.) was allocated to general expenses.
4. Remuneration of board members
Remuneration for board members reflects on its own under expenditure, previously stated as general expenses.
5. Operating leases
Operating leases reflects on its own under expenditure, previously stated as general expenses.
6. Debt impairment
Debt impairment reflects on its own under expenditure, previously stated as general expenses.
7. Bulk water purchases
It is the requirement of Mhlathuze Water’s business that bulk purchases of raw water reflects on the face of the statement of financial performance.
8. General expenses
General expenses previously included costs such as remuneration of board members, operating leases, debt impairment and excluded cost such
as staff related costs under note 3.
9. Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets
Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets is disclosed on its own after operating surplus.

2.

OPERATING PERFORMANCE

2.1

Year on year analysis of operating performance

The financial overview is an analysis of the financial results and financial position of Mhlathuze Water for the year under review and must
be read in conjunction with the annual financial statements.
2.1.1 Operating performance
The table under 2.1.3 Surplus for the year gives an overview of the operational performance of the entity for the current year and the
previous four years taking into account the change in the reporting framework from SA GAAP to GRAP.
2.1.2 Operating surplus
The current year operating surplus decreased by 1% from the prior year mainly due to the 32% increase in electricity costs. (See more
detail on the increases in the notes on the next pages).

Operating surplus for the year (R’000)
91 497

Surplus for the year (R’000)
146 902

90 326

76 179
89 998

53 261
41 476

51 930

2012
2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

68 070

2013

79 198

2014

2015

2016
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2.

2.1

OPERATING PERFORMANCE (continued)

Year on year analysis of operating performance (continued)

2.1.3 Surplus for the year
Mhlathuze Water has maintained strong surpluses. Overall, the surplus of R146,9 million for the year reflects an increase of 63% from
the previous year.
The contributing factor to the overall surplus resulted from assets, funded by Mhlathuze Water at the Tugela-Goedertrouw Scheme which
was built in 1995, which were sold to the Department of Water and Sanitation for R57 million.

Volume sold

2012
kl’000
118 375
R’000

2013
kl’000
108 927
R’000

2014
kl’000
112 340
R’000

2015
kl’000
136 222
R’000

2016
kl’000
131 295
R’000

%
change
(4%)
R’000

311 211.
474.
11 885.
323 570.

328 470.
12.
12 939.
341 421.

349 718.
136.
12 417.
362 271.

498 765.
504.
12 228.
511 497.

532 603.
337.
12 985.
545 925.

7%.
(33%)
6%.
7%.

(48 248)
(1 677)
(44 310)
(27 104)
(2 254)
(21)
(21 270)
(57 137)
(32 192)
(37 495)
(10 386)
(282 094)

(60 302)
(2 042)
(44 579)
(24 120)
(2 278)
652.
(16 042)
(51 498)
(39 075)
(38 787)
(10 089)
(288 160)

(70 778)
(2 005)
(44 976)
(18 452)
(2 252)
271.
(14 836)
(42 136)
(42 493)
(40 012)
(8 423)
(286 092)

(97 571) (117 749)
(2 964)
(3 129)
(51 802) (40 362)
(13 069) (10 205)
(2 410)
(2 488)
(144)
(181)
(42 943) (45 972)
(59 045) (57 299)
(60 244) (62 915)
(75 915) (100 488)
(13 893) (14 811)
(420 000) (455 599)

21%.
6%.
(22%)
(22%)
3%.
26%.
7%.
(3%)
4%.
32%
7%.
8%.

41 476.
10 454.
51 930.

53 261.
14 809.
68 070.

76 179.
3 019.
79 198.

90 326.
56 576.
146 902.

(1%)
3 874%.
63%.

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Sale of goods and services
Other income
Interest received - investment
Total revenue from exchange transactions
Expenditure
Employee related costs
Remuneration of board members
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance cost
Lease rentals on operating lease
Debt impairment
Repairs and maintenance
Bulk purchases
General expenses
Electricity and water
Chemicals
Total expenditure
Operating surplus
Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets
Surplus for the year

91 497.
(1 499)
89 998.

2.2 Volume sold
2.2.1 Bulk water
Raw water
A positive growth of 27% for raw water is mainly due to Lake Nsezi being the only source of supply of raw water for Richards Bay
Minerals as well as for Tronox Hillendale. The 23% increase for Esikhaleni is due to the level of Lake Cubhu that is very low and pumping
was required from the Weir.
Purified water
The negative growth of 17% on purified water volume sales is mainly due to the drought restrictions that were imposed by the Department
of Water and Sanitation and the City of uMhlathuze on water usage.
Please see the table on the following page.
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2.2 Volume sold (continued)
2.2.1 Bulk water (continued)

Bulk water volumes - by customer and % increase (decrease)
Customer

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

kl’000

kl’000

kl’000

kl’000

kl’000

%
change

Raw water

9 312.

4 264.

7 381.

16 165.

20 443.

27%.

Richards Bay Titanium

4 570.

1 406.

2 394.

8 972.

10 972.

22%.

Tronox Hillendale

4 742.

2 858.

4 453.

1 257.

2 195.

75%.

CoU - Esikhaleni

-.

-.

534.

5 936.

7 276.

23%.

Purified water

43 980.

39 912.

40 208.

55 305.

46 025.

(17%)

Mondi Richards Bay

26 515.

23 957.

23 703.

23 475.

20 467.

(13%)

CoU - Foskor

4 951.

3 823.

4 810.

5 488.

3 676.

(33%)

CoU - Empangeni

8 378.

9 508.

9 243.

9 579.

8 070.

(16%)

CoU - Richards Bay

4 136.

2 624.

2 452.

16 763.

13 812.

(18%)

53 292.

44 176.

47 589.

71 470.

66 468.

(7%)

Total bulk water volume sales

Bulk water volume sales (kl’000)
71 470
53 292

2012

44 176

2013

Waste water volume sales (kl’000)

66 468
64 752

64 752

64 752

64 752

2012

2013

2014

2015

64 827

47 589

2014

2015

2016

2016

2.2.2 Waste water
Waste water volumes remained fairly constant for the years and is based on contracted demands.
When customers exceed their daily demand limits they are charged an excess demand tariff, and the extra volumes are added to the
contracted volumes as per the table below.
Bulk waste water volumes - by customer and % increase (decrease)
Customer

kl’000

kl’000

kl’000

kl’000

kl’000

%
change

53 802.

53 802.

53 802.

53 802.

53 877.

0%.

Bayside (Isizinda)

548.

548.

548.

548.

556.

2%.

Hillside (South32)

548.

548.

548.

548.

573.

5%.

40 150.

40 150.

40 150.

40 150.

40 150.

0%.

Tronox

876.

876.

876.

876.

876.

0%.

MPACT

2 920.

2 920.

2 920.

2 920.

2 920.

0%.

730.

730.

730.

730.

734.

1%.

7 300.

7 300.

7 300.

7 300.

7 338.

1%.

730.

730.

730.

730.

730.

0%.

Dense waste water

10 950.

10 950.

10 950.

10 950.

10 950.

0%.

Foskor

10 950.

10 950.

10 950.

10 950.

10 950.

0%.

Total waste water volume sales

64 752.

64 752.

64 752.

64 752.

64 827.

0%.

Buoyant waste water

Mondi Limited

Foskor
CoU - Richards Bay
Nsezi WTP

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016
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2.3

Tariffs

The tariff for Mhlathuze Water is reviewed annually and is based on compliance to MFMA regulations. Tariff increases are reported
to SALGA and National Treasury for comments and recommended to DWS for presentation to parliament and approval based on the
timeframes and deadlines as stipulated. The tariff policy is detailed in Note 11 of the Director’s Report on page 43.
2.3.1 Raw water tariffs
The tariff increase for raw water was 8.20% for the prior year, and for the current year it increased slightly to 8.34%.
The graph below indicates the movement in the raw water tariffs for the past five years.

Raw water - Tariff increases
11.00%
10.00%
9.00%
8.00%
7.00%
6.00%
Tariff increases

2011/2012

2012/2013

10.50%

9.14%

2013/2014

2014/2015

2015/2016

8.40%

8.20%

8.34%

Tariff increases

2.3.2 Purified water tariffs
The tariff increase for purified water was 8.40% in the prior year, and for the current year it increased to 9.44%.
The graph below indicates the movement in the purified water tariffs for the past five years.

Purified water - Tariff increases
15%
14%
13%
12%
11%
10%
9%
8%
7%
6%
Tariff increases

2011/2012
14.00%

2012/2013
9.40%

2013/2014
8.60%

2014/2015
8.40%

2015/2016
9.44%

Tariff increases

2.3.3 Buoyant waste water tariffs
The tariff increase for buoyant waste water was 8.40% in the prior year and for the current year it decreased slightly to 8.36%.
The graph on the following page indicates the movement in the buoyant waste water tariffs for the past five years.
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2.3 Tariffs (continued)

2.3.3. Buoyant waste water tariffs (continued)

Buoyant waste water - Tariff increases
10.5%
10.0%
9.5%
9.0%
8.5%
8.0%
7.5%
7.0%
6.5%
6.0%
Tariff increases

2011/2012
10.00%

2012/2013
9.10%

2013/2014
8.60%

2014/2015
8.40%

2015/2016
8.36%

Tariff increases

2.3.4 Dense waste water tariffs
The tariff increase for dense waste water was 8.40% in the prior year and it increased slightly to 8.46% in the current year.
The graph below indicates the movement in the dense waste water tariffs for the past five years.
Dense waste water - Tariff increases
10.5%
10.0%
9.5%
9.0%
8.5%
8.0%
7.5%
7.0%
6.5%
6.0%
Tariff increases

2011/2012
10.00%

2012/2013
9.73%

2013/2014
8.60%

2014/2015
8.40%

2015/2016
8.46%

Tariff increases

2.4

Revenue

Revenue reflects an increase of 7% overall, this is mainly due to the yearly tariff increase.
2.4.1 Revenue from exchange transactions
Sale of goods and services increased by 7% due to the tariff increase.
Main contributors to the increase are the following:
•
•

Average tariff increase of 8.65%.
Foskor increased their daily demand on waste water from 2000m3 to 5000m3.

The 6% increase in interest received from investments is mainly due to excess cash invested as well as interest earned.
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Revenue (continued)

2.4.1. Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)

Sale of goods and services (R’000)
498,765

Interest received investments (R’000)

532,603
12,985

12,939

311,211

349,718

328,470

12,417
12,228

11,885

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2.4.2 Revenue per business segment information
2.4.2.1 Primary activities

Actual revenue segment information
as at 30 June 2015 (%)

Actual revenue segment information
as at 30 June 2016 (%)
5%

7%

24%

24%

71%

69%
Bulk water

Waste water

Other activities

Bulk water

Waste water

Other activities

Bulk Water
The bulk water segment forms 71% (2015: 69%) of total revenue. This includes Operations and Maintenance revenue for the TugelaGoedertrouw Scheme and the City of uMhlathuze.
Waste Water
Waste water is 24% (2015: 24%) of total revenue based on contracted volumes.
2.4.2.2 Other Activities (Section 30)
Secondary activities in terms of the Water Services Act No. 108 of 1997 are any services provided by Water Boards other than Primary
activities. The decrease from 7% to 5% is due to less work done on the external projects. (see note 2.4.2.3)
2.4.2.3 External Projects (not reflecting in the Statement of Financial Performance)
Apart from its primary activities Mhlathuze Water administers External Projects (Section 30 activities) for various government institutions
to the value of R426 million (2015: R474 million) an overall decrease of 10%.
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2.4

Revenue (continued)

2.4.2.3 External Projects (not reflecting in the Statement of Financial Performance) (continued)
These project costs are fully recovered from these departments. The graphs below gives an overview of Mhlathuze Water’s involvement
in these projects.

External Projects
(Section 30 activities)
Total expenditure R473,8 million
as at 30 June 2015 (%)
20,000
4%
19,533
4%

49,421
11%
DOE - school sanitation
DWS - water infrastructure

40,189
9%

12,100
3%
12,956
3%

DOE - school sanitation
DWS - water infrastructure

DEA - alien plant removal

DEA - alien plant removal

COGTA

COGTA

384,898
81%

2.5

External Projects
(Section 30 activities)
Total expenditure R425,8 million
as at 30 June 2016 (%)

360,605
85%

Expenditure

Total overall expenditure increased by 8%, which is mainly due to
employee costs that increased by 21% and electricity cost increased
by 32%.

Overall Expenditure for the year (R’000)
420 000
282 094

288 160

455 599

286 092

The high increases in expenditure from the 2015 and 2016 years is
due to the operations and maintenance agreement with the City of
uMhlathuze under the Operational and Maintenance contract. The
cost from the City of uMhlathuze is fully recoverable.
2.5.1 Operating, general and administrative expenses
The cost structure breakdown year on year as per the graph below
indicates the percentage of the cost per category over total operating
cost.

Cost Structure 2015 (%)
Chemicals 3%
Electricity and water
18%

General expenses
15%
Bulk purchases
14%
Repairs and maintenance
10%

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

Cost Structure 2016 (%)
Employee related costs
23%
Remuneration of
board members
1%
Depreciation
and
amortisation
12%
Finance costs
3%
Lease rentals on
operating lease
1%

Chemicals 3%
Electricity and water
22%

General expenses
14%
Bulk purchases
12%
Repairs and maintenance
10%

Employee related costs
26%
Remuneration of
board members
1%
Depreciation
and
amortisation
9%
Finance costs
2%
Lease rentals on
operating lease
1%

Employee related cost increased by 21% from the previous year. This was mainly due to increases in board approved employee cost
of 8% and the following, namely:
• service bonus increased by 104%- R918 thousand (2015: R451 thousand)
• standby allowances increased by 50% - R1,419 million (2015: R945 thousand)
• allowances for housing that was paid to the employees of the City increased by 100% due to the new agreement, R939 thousand
(2015: Nil), (The cost for the City is fully recoverable).
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2.5

Expenditure (continued)

2.5.1

Operating, general and administrative expenses (continued)

Remuneration of board members increased by 6% from the prior year, which was due to the normal increase of between 6% to 7%
in the current year. More detail on board members are in note 18 of the financial statements.

Employee related costs
(R’000)

117 749

Remuneration board members
(R’000)

3 129

2 964

97 571

70 778
60 302

2 042

2 005

2013

2014

1 677

48 248

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2012

2015

2016

Depreciation and amortisation decreased by 22% from the previous year due to the re-assessment of the useful lives of the assets
used by the entity.
Finance costs
Finance costs decreased by 22% due to interest payments on the Nedbank and Rand Merchant bank long term borrowings, which are
decreasing year on year, see graph below.

Depreciation and amortisation
(R’000)

Finance cost (R’000)
27 104
24 120

51 802
44 310

44 579

44 976

18 452

40 362

13 069
10 205

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

Operating lease rentals increased by 3%. This relates to a rental increase for a pipeline that is leased from the City of uMhlathuze
for Tronox on the waste water disposal line to connect the Hillendale mine.
Repairs and maintenance increased by 7% from prior year. Maintenance work was done at all MW plants and Central services
buildings as well as all the City plants. An inspection and assessment was carried out in order to monitor the internal condition of the
pipeline to determine future plans, if replacement or repair would be needed. The norm is that this assessment is done every 5 years.
Total repairs and maintenance amounts to R45,9 million. 73% of the cost is for work done on Mhlathuze Water installations and 27%
for the City of uMhlathuze.
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2.5

Expenditure (continued)

2.5.1

Operating, general and administrative expenses (continued)

The ratio for repairs and maintenance for Mhlathuze Water on total property plant and equipment is 3.8% (2015: 4.7%). Only Mhlathuze’s
portion of the maintenance value was used due to the fact that the City assets do not reflect in Mhlathuze Water’s Statement of Financial
Position. It should be noted that all City of uMhlathuze maintenance is recoverable.

Lease rentals on operating lease
(R’000)

Repairs and maintenance
(R’000)

45 972

42 943
2 488
2 410
2 254

2 278

2 252

21 270
16 042

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2012

2013

14 836

2014

2015

2016

Bulk Purchases (raw water purchased) decreased by 3% due to lower bulk water volumes sold which was due to drought and water
restrictions imposed by the Department of Water and Sanitation, and Tronox did not take water whilst they relocated the Hillendale mine
to Fairbreeze.
General expenses increased by 4% and the main contributor to the increase is the cost for legal expenses for the year being
R1.9 million (2015: R305 thousand).

Bulk purchases (R’000)
59 045

57 137

General expenses (R’000)
60 330

57 299

62 915

51 498
42 136

39 075

42 493

32 192

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

Electricity and water cost increased by 32%. The increase from Eskom imposed by NERSA, as well as the increase from the City of
uMhlathuze was included. The Tugela-Goedertrouw Scheme is running at full capacity to transfer water to the Goedertrouw Dam due to
the drought situation in the KwaZulu-Natal area. All cost on the Tugela-Goedertrouw scheme is fully recovered from the Department of
Water and Sanitation.
Chemicals increased by 7% due to the price increase on chemical purchases and due to the turbidity that was high in the raw water.
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2.5

Expenditure (continued)

2.5.1

Operating, general and administrative expenses (continued)

Electricity and water (R’000)

Chemicals (R’000)
14 811
13 893

100 488

10 386

75 915

10 089
8 423

2.6

37 495

38 787

2012

2013

40 012

2014

2015

2016

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

Operating Indicators

Current ratio: (Current assets/current liabilities)
The current ratio measures liquidity. The ratio of 1.84 (2015: 1.88) indicates that Mhlathuze Water will have the ability to meet its short
term obligations.
Debt equity ratio: (Total debt liabilities/total net assets)
The debt equity ratio measures long-term solvency. The ratio decreased to 0.32 (2015: 0.45) primarily as a result of the decrease in longterm debt.

Current (Liquidity) Ratio
2.32

Debt Equity Ratio

2.21
1.00
1.84

1.88

1.84
0.77
0.59
0.45
0.32

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

Interest turnover ratio: (EBIT/interest expense)
The interest turnover ratio measures long term solvency. The interest turnover ratio increased to 9.85 times (2015: 8.00) and determines
how viably positioned Mhlathuze Water is to pay interest on outstanding debt.
Debtors days: (Trade debtors/sales)
The debtors days ratio measures the average time payment collections from debtors. The debtor days decreased to 40.77 days (2015:
50.26). The decrease is maily due to the payment received on time for the Thugela Goedertrouw debtor (DWS) for the 2016 year end.
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2.6

Operating Indicators (continued)

Interest turnover ratio

Debtor days
9.85
54.11
50.26

8.00
41.62

40.77

37.54
4.62
3.29
2.48

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

Return on assets ratio: (Net income/total assets)
The return on assets ratio measures profitability. The return on assets ratio decreased to 7.75 (2015: 9.06). The ROA reflects the efficient
management of Mhlathuze Water’s assets to generate earnings. The ratio decreased due to the operational net income that was lower.
Asset turnover ratio: (Revenue/total assets)
The asset turnover ratio measures profitability. The ratio decreased to 0.47 (2015: 0.51).

Return on Asset ratio %
8.80
8.30

8.60

Asset turnover ratio %

9.06
0.51

0.47

2015

2016

7.75
0.37

2012

2.7

2013

2014

2015

2016

2012

0.35

0.35

2013

2014

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS

2.7.1 Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash generated from operating activities increased by 6% compared to the prior year. Mhlathuze Water continues to maintain strong
operating cash flows which has allowed for the repayment of debt and funding of capital expenditure. The graph on the following page
illustrates the net cash flows from operating activities for the past five years.
2.7.2 Cash flow utilised in investing activities
Net cash utilised in acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets decreased by 5% from the prior year.
The four major projects listed below is included in the amount of R124,6 million.
•
Nsezi balancing reservoir R37,5 million
•
City of uMhlathuze Pump upgrade R8,1 million
•
2nd Balancing reservoir R35,4 million
•
Nsezi WTP Empangeni Pump Station R8 million
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2.7

Cash Flow Analysis (continued)

2.7.2

Cash flow utilised in investing activities (continued)

Net cash from operating activities
(R’000)

Cashflow - Capital expenditure (R’000)
130 648
128 552

119 065

114 446

124 682

120 902

92 161
59 858
19 119

2012
2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

35 401

2013

2014

2015

2016

2.7.3
Cash flow from financing activities
Net cash utilised in financing activities increased by 0.1% mainly due to loan repayments.
2.7.4 Cash balances
Sufficient short term investments are held to fund capital commitments when they are due, and to fund its operations and meet its
financial obligations in the normal course of business for the foreseeable future.

Cash balances (R’000)

Interest bearing borrowings (R’000)

308 001
233 773
211 663

258 755

240 241

190 580

252 267
221 510

168 397
146 187

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2.7.5
Funding Requirements
New funding of R150 million is required for the 2017 financial year as indicated in the new Business Plan for 2016-2021.
2.7.6 Borrowing Limits
The borrowing limits for the period 2016 to 2018 have been approved by National Treasury in concurrence with the minister of Water
and Sanitation as follows:
Financial year		
2015/2016		
2016/2017		
2017/2018		

Amount
R331,9 million
R430 million
R478 million

The borrowing limit is based on Mhlathuze Water’s borrowing requirements and the funding needed to ensure that infrastructure
requirements are aligned to meet with the demands from consumers.
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT
The Board of Mhlathuze Water has pleasure in presenting
their report of the entity for the year ended 30 June 2016.
The report is presented in terms of the Public Finance Management
Act No 1 of 1999, and designates the Board as the accounting
authority.

1. Review of activities
Main business and operations
Mhlathuze Water conducts its activities in accordance with
sections 29 & 30 of the Water Services Act No. 108 of 1997.
Mhlathuze Water also engages in other services as outlined
in section 30 of the Water Services Act, that complement bulk
water service delivery such as water quality monitoring and
environmental management, laboratory services and acting as an
implementing agent for any sphere of government projects related
to water service delivery.
The operating results and state of affairs of the entity are fully set
out in the attached annual financial statements and do not in our
opinion require any further comment.
Mhlathuze Water is a self-sustainable and financially viable entity,
and was able to meet all its obligations for the financial year.

2. Going concern
Establishment of a single water board in Kwazulu-Natal
The Department of Water and Sanitation has embarked on a
programme of Institutional Reform and Realignment (IRR) with
the aim of improving the institutional landscape in the sector
and building stable and performing institutions. These institutions
will assist with expanding access to unserved areas and overall
improving service delivery efficiencies and effectiveness. The
intention is to enhance the functional capabilities, operational
strength and readiness of the institutions to handle the challenges
of the water sector service delivery.
In line with the powers vested in her in terms of the Water Services
Act, the Minister of Water and Sanitation announced in July 2015
her intention to disestablish Umgeni, Mhlathuze and uThukela
Water Boards and to establish a single Water Board in KwazuluNatal.
Phase 1 through to phase 4 of the abovementioned project will
take a minimum of 18 months to complete with the timeline for
phase 3 not being taken into account as the stakeholders are
unable to reasonably estimate the timeframe for these activities.
Thus, given the extensive nature of the consultative process, due
diligence exercise and other legal and compliance requirements, it
is anticipated that the entire process would be lengthy and may
not be completed by September 2017.
Irrespective of the date of completion, Mhlathuze Water shall
remain a legal entity and going concern up until the date of formal
disestablishment by notice in the Government Gazette. Therefore,
Mhlathuze Water has no reason to believe that this process will
negatively impact the going concern assumption of the entity for

the foreseeable future.
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the going
concern basis. The Board of Mhlathuze Water has reasonable
grounds to believe that the business has adequate resources
to continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future. The
going concern assessment was undertaken with the following
considerations:
• Mhlathuze Water has adequate committed credit facilities
from its lenders to fund its operations and meet its financial
obligations in the normal course of business for the foreseeable
future.
• A funding strategy and plan has been developed to ensure
that Mhlathuze Water is able to successfully fund its capital
expenditure programme without breaching the set financial
parameters.
• The operational and financial risks have been reviewed
to determine their impact on the business under various
conditions, and mitigating initiatives, strategies and controls
are in place as reflected in the business and risk management
plans.
• Total reserves have improved by 25% compared to the prior
year.
• Interest cover and cash interest cover are significantly better
than prior year and it’s covering over 9.85 times (2015: 8.00).
• Based on the new business plan for 2016 to 2021 the cash
flow forecasts reflects that Mhlathuze Water will need to
borrow R150 million in the year 2017, and the funding will be
source by way of tender on the open market.
Drought related initiatives
Tugela-Goedertrouw Transfer Scheme upgrade
Water reliant industries such as (but not limited to) Mondi, RBM,
Foskor and Tronox are threatened with loss or reduced production
should there not be significant rainfall into the Goedertrouw Dam
catchment by end of 2016.
This will be economically disastrous, not only in the short term
but possibly permanently due to the very real possibility of it not
being economically feasible for these industries simply to restart
operations once they have shut down due to the current drought.
Funding to the value of R410 million to upgrade the Tugela
Transfer scheme was approved by DWS. DWS is in the process
of appointing a professional team and/or contractor. DWS will be
providing the required funding.
Desalination
One of the industries is well advanced in installing its own
desalination plant to cope with emergencies and another (as well
as the City of uMhlathuze) is engaged in a feasibility study for
major reuse of effluent.
DWS is also funding the delivery, installation and connection of a
package 10Ml/day desalination plant to augment water supply in
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2. Going concern (continued)

Drought related initiatives (continued)
Richards Bay and surrounding communities. The equipment is
costing the department nearly R300 million and the emergency
mobile plant is to be used initially in Richards Bay.
The desalination plant is a short term solution to the water
shortages in the area. The equipment to be installed is temporary
and for emergency purposes only due to shortages of water and will
be decommissioned once the water supply is stable and restored.
Other Initiatives
Mhlathuze Water concluded a Memorandum of Understanding
with COGTA as Implementing Agents for Drought Emergency
funding and critical projects in Kwazulu-Natal.
These projects include: Drilling of Boreholes, Mobile Package Plant,
Desalination Plant Planning, Water Tankers, Off-Channel Raw
Water Storage and Emergency Static Tanks intervention.
Project implementation has commenced and 2 000 water tankers
are being procured and will be distributed to districts as an interim
and alternative water source to the communities that have been
stricken by drought.
Mhlathuze Water will shortly be commencing a study of the
potential effect of these initiatives on its business model.

*resigned 01 October 2015
** is on suspension pending the outcome of disciplinary
proceedings
The Board is currently made up as follows:

3. Subsequent events

Chairperson: Independent non-executive director

There were no events after the reporting period requiring
adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.

Members of the Board: Independent non-executive directors 9

4. Share capital and director’s
interests
Mhlathuze Water has no share capital and therefore no director
has any equity interest in the organisation.

5. Borrowing limitations
The borrowing limits for the period 2016 to 2018 have been
approved by National Treasury in concurrence with the minister of
Water and Sanitation as follows:
Financial year		
2015/2016		
2016/2017		
2017/2018		

Amount
R331,9 million
R430 million
R478 million

The borrowing limit is based on Mhlathuze Water’s borrowing
requirements and the funding needed to ensure that infrastructure
requirements are aligned to meet with the demands from
consumers.

6. Board
The members of the entity during the year and to the date of this
report are as follows:
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Chairperson of the Board: DC Myeni
Board members:
BV Mshengu
NN Khumalo
PS Dlamini
N Gevers
A Badul
MM Xulu
BK Rawlins
ADV S Chamane
FG Bosman
TC Madikane*
Executives:
M P Duze (Interim CE)
AS Makhanya**
SG Xulu
BS Ndaba
M Myeni
BS Ntlhoro
N Ndlovu

Chief Executive: Executive director (ex officio)
TOTAL

1

1
11

Members of the Board and Executive Committee’s emoluments
are disclosed in the remuneration report on note 18 in terms of
regulation 28.1 of the PFMA.

7. Corporate governance and risk
management
General
The Board supports and complies with the principles of Corporate
Practises and Conduct as set out in the King III Report which was
adopted in the previous financial year. The Board is responsible for
monitoring the Risk Management process.
For more details on financial risk management refer to note 25
under the notes to the financial statements.

8. Bankers
ABSA Bank
Appointed 26 June 2012
5 year term

SAVE WATER: Always water your plants during the early morning hours or in the evening, when temperatures are cooler.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT (continued)
9. Auditors
Internal Auditors - Morar Incorporated
Appointed: 20 May 2015
Extended for an additional 12 months starting 1st July 2016.
External Auditors - KPMG INC.
Appointed: 27 May 2013
Extended for an addtional 12 months starting on 1 July 2015.
Term ended for the year end 2016. The Auditor General will audit
Mhlathuze Water from 2016/17 financial year and going forward.

10. Compliance with legislation
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance
with Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) and the
following relevant Acts:
•
•

Water Services Act No: 108 of 1997
Public Finance Management Act (PFMA as amended) No: 1 of
1999

11. Tariff policy
Mhlathuze Water charges a tariff for services rendered, which
ensures that it remains viable and sustainable over the long term.
To achieve this, Mhlathuze Water applies a Scheme-Specific Tariff
for Bulk Services and/or time and material type charges for other
services.
The policy takes account of the stipulations contained in section
10 of the Water Services Act.
The annual tariff review process is in terms of the requirements of
Section 42 of the Municipal Finance Management Act and Circular
23 issued by National Treasury.

12. Capital expenditure and
commitments
Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
will be financed from borrowings and internal resources. The capital
commitments are set out in note 28 of the financial statements.

13. Addresses
Business Address
Corner of Battery Bank and South Central Arterial
Alton Industrial Area
Richards Bay
3900
Postal Address
Private Bag x1047
Richards Bay
3900

14. Fruitless and wasteful
expenditure
There were no fruitless and wasteful expenditure during the
current financial year.

15. Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure totalling R1,1 million (2015: R0,9 million)
arose primarily as a result of non-compliance to the supply chain
management policy and was subsequently condoned as valid
expenditure incurred in support of the business requirements.
Further details are set out in note 27.1 of the financial statements.

16. Unauthorised expenditure
There were no incidents or reports of any unauthorised expenditure
during the current financial year.

17. Financial misconduct
There were no incidents or reports of any financial misconduct
during the current financial year.

18. Disclosure in terms of
Directive 12
Mhlathuze Water opted to implement the standards of GRAP for
the year ended 30 June 2016 and the Board of Mhlathuze Water
noted the directive received from the Accounting Standards Board
(ASB) in a meeting held on the 16 September 2015, to change
the Reporting Framework for Government Business Enterprises
(GBE’s) schedule 3B entities to the Standard of GRAP.
The accounting standards Board (ASB) approved the Directive on
“The selection of an Appropriate Reporting Framework by Public
Entities (Directive 12)” in July 2015.
Further details are set out in note 2 of the financial statements.

19. Information required by the
Public Finance Management Act
No 1 of 1999, as amended
In assessing the materiality framework policy, the following is
taken into account:
In terms of section 28.3.1 of the regulations of the PFMA, for the
purposes of materiality and significance, the Accounting Authority
has developed and agreed a framework of acceptable levels of
materiality and significance established at 1% of gross revenue
which equates to R5,3 million (2015: R4,9 million). Management
also apply a qualitative aspect to all errors found.
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ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY
RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL
The Board of Mhlathuze Water, as the Accounting Authority are required by the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), to
maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related
financial information included in this report. It is the responsibility of the Board of Mhlathuze Water to ensure that the annual financial
statements fairly present the state of affairs of the entity as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash
flows for the year ended 30 June 2016. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial
statements and was given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) including
any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board and the requirements of the Public Finance
Management Act (PFMA).
The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and
prudent judgements and estimates.
The Board is also responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the entity and place considerable importance on
maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the Board to meet these responsibilities, the Board sets standards for internal control
aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities
within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level
of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the entity and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards
in ensuring the entity’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk
management in the entity is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the entity. While operating
risk cannot be fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and
ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The members are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal control
provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial statements. However,
any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or deficit.
The members have reviewed the entity’s cash flow forecast for the year ended to 30 June 2017 and, in the light of this review and
the current financial position, the Board is satisfied that the entity has or has access to adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future.
The annual financial statements set out on pages 75 to 116, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by
the Board of Directors on 27 September 2016 and were signed on its behalf by:

DC Myeni
Chairperson of the Board
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M P Duze
Interim Chief Executive Officer

SAVE WATER: Use “grey water” - used water from baths, washing machines and other safe sources to water your gardens.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT
to Parliament and the Executive Authority, the Minster of the Department of Water and Sanitation
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the annual financial statements of Mhlathuze
Water as set out on pages 75 to 116, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016, the statement
of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets,
cash flow statement and statement of comparison of budget and
actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as the notes
to the financial statements, comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Accounting Authority’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements
The board of directors, which constitutes the Accounting Authority,
is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Generally Recognised
Accounting Practices (GRAP) and the requirements by the Public
Finance Management Act of South Africa, and for such internal
control as the Accounting Authority determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Mhlathuze Water as
at 30 June 2016, and its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Generally Recognised
Accounting Practices (GRAP) and the requirements of the Public
Finance Management Act of South Africa.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements
Public Audit Act Requirements
In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, and the
General Notice issued in terms thereof, we have a responsibility to
report findings on the reported performance information against
predetermined objectives of selected objectives presented in the
annual report, compliance with legislation and internal control.
We performed tests to identify reportable findings as described
under each subheading but not to gather evidence to express
assurance on these matters. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or conclusion on these matters.
Predetermined Objectives
We performed procedures to obtain evidence about the
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information
of the following selected objectives presented in the Corporate
Performance Objectives report as set out on pages 22 to 26 of the
annual report, and reported thereon to the Accounting Authority:
Objective 1:
Objective 2:
Objective 3:
Objective 5:
Objective 6:
Objective 7:

Bulk potable water quality compliance on page 22
Manage avoidable water losses on page 22
Reliability of supply on page 22
Financial reporting compliance on page 23
Improve key financial ratios on page 23
Increase BBBEE expenditure relative to operational
projects on page 24
Objective 8: Manage costs within the approved budget on
page 24
Objective 9: Capital expenditure programme on page 24
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
Predetermined objectives (continued)

Objective 10: Engagement in secondary activities on page 24
Objective 11: Bulk supply agreements concluded with
municipalities/other customers on page 24
Objective 14: Achieve statutory reporting compliance on page
24
Objective 17: Jobs created on page 25
Objective 19: Effective internal controls and risk management on
page 25
We evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance
information to determine whether it was presented in accordance
with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and
whether the reported performance was consistent with the
planned objectives. We further performed tests to determine
whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable,
specific, measurable, time bound and relevant as required by
the National Treasury’s Framework for Managing Programme
Performance Information (FMPPI).
We assessed the reliability of the reported performance
information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and
complete.
We did not identify any material findings on the usefulness
and reliability of the reported performance information for the
selected objectives.
Compliance with legislation
We performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity has
complied with legislation regarding financial matters, financial
management and other related matters.
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We did not identify any instances of material non-compliance
with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the General
Notice issued in terms of the Public Audit Act.
Internal Control
We considered internal control relevant to our audit of the
financial statements, Corporate Performance Objectives and
compliance with legislation, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control.
We did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal control.
KPMG Inc.
Registered Auditor

Per N Bhoola
Chartered Accountant (SA)
Registered Auditor
Director
30 September 2016

KPMG House,
5 Arundel Close,
Kingsmead Office Park,
Durban
4000

SAVE WATER: Turn the tap off between washing your face, brushing your teeth or shaving.

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2016

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2016
Note(s)

2016
R ‘000

2015
R ‘000

8 723
152 713
414
252 267

7 301
118 060
2 235
221 510

414 117

349 106

748 040
3 859

659 965
704

751 899

660 669

1 166 016

1 009 775

22 110
188 413
6 404
7 965

22 110
149 922
5 381
7 965

224 892

185 378

124 077
258
79 119

146 287
258
87 084

203 454
428 346

233 629
419 007

222 033
15 032
4 375
8 126
488 104

216 114
13 936
4 056
7 534
349 128

737 670

590 768

1 166 016

1 009 775

ASSETS
Current assets
Inventories
Receivables from exchange transactions
VAT receivable
Cash and cash equivalents
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

3
4
5
6

7
8

Total assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Short term interest bearing borrowings
Payables from exchange transactions
Employee benefit liability
Income received in advance
Non-current liabilities
Long term interest bearing borrowings
Employee benefit liability
Income received in advance
Total liabilities
Net assets
Reserves
Capital replacement reserve
Business development reserve
Self insurance reserve
Maintenance reserve
Accumulated surplus
Total net assets
Total net assets and liabilities

9
10
11
12

9
11
12
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2016

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
Note(s)

2016
R ‘000

2015
R ‘000

532 603.
337.
12 985.

498 765.
504.
12 228.

545 925.

511 497.

(117 749)
(3 129)
(40 362)
(10 205)
(2 488)
(181)
(45 972)
(57 299)
(62 915)
(100 488)
(14 811)

(97 571)
(2 964)
(51 802)
(13 069)
(2 410)
(144)
(42 943)
(59 045)
(60 244)
(75 915)
(13 893)

(455 599)

(420 000)

90 326.
56 576.

91 497.
(1 499)

146 902.

89 998.

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Sale of goods and services
Other income
Interest received - investment
Total revenue from exchange transactions
Expenditure
Employee related costs
Remuneration of board members
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs
Lease rentals on operating lease
Debt impairment
Repairs and maintenance
Bulk purchases
General expenses
Electricity and water
Chemicals
Total expenditure
Operating surplus
Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets
Surplus for the year
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SAVE WATER: Use low-flow showerheads, dual-flush toilet mechanisms and water-efficient washing machines.

13
15
16

17
18
7/8
19

21

22
23

-.
4 962.

Surplus for the year

4 375.

-.
319.

319.

4 056.

-.
240.

240.

3 816.

8 126.

-.
592.

592.

7 534.

-.
447.

447.

7 087.

Self- Maintenance
insurance
reserve
reserve
R ‘000
R ‘000

249 566.

-.
7 926.

7 926.

241 640.

-.
6 476.

6 476.

235 164.

R ‘000

488 104.

146 902.
(7 926)

138 976.

349 128.

89 998.
(6 476)

83 522.

265 606.

R ‘000

Total Accumulated
reserves
surplus

737 670.

146 902.
-.

146 902.

590 768.

89 998.
-.

89 998.

500 770.

R ‘000

Total
net assets

Maintenance reserve
This non-distributable reserve was created to fund future significant unexpected maintenance costs. The balance of the maintenance reserve at 30 June 2016 was R8,1 million.

Self-insurance reserve
This non-distributable reserve was created to fund large deductibles for insurance claims. The balance of the insurance reserve at 30 June 2016 was R4,4 million.

Business development reserve
This non-distributable reserve was created to fund and enable the creation of proactive business relationships with other entities. The balance of the Business development reserve at 30 June 2016
was R15 million.

Capital replacement reserve
This non-distributable reserve was created to fund upgrades and refurbishments of replacement of the ageing infrastructure and plant modernisation. The balance of the Capital replacement reserve
at 30 June 2016 was R222 million.

In accordance with GRAP, transfers to the reserves are made from accumulated surplus in the statements of changes in net assets, and not via the statement of financial performance.

Note(s)

Balance at 30 June 2016

15 032.

-.
1 096.

-.
5 919.
222 033.

1 096.

5 919.

Total changes in net assets

Surplus for the year

Transfers to reserves

13 936.

216 114.

Balance at 1 July 2015

Transfer to reserves

827.

4 962.

Total changes in net assets
-.
827.

13 109.

211 152.

Balance at 1 July 2014

Capital
Business
replacement development
reserve
reserve
R ‘000
R ‘000

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2016
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
2016
R ‘000

2015
R ‘000

491 962.

514 327.

12 985.

12 228.

504 947.

526 555.

Cash paid to employees

(105 486)

(86 459)

Cash paid to suppliers

(261 273)

(306 105)

Note(s)
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Sale of goods and services
Interest received

16

Payments

Finance costs

19

(10 205)

(13 069)

Finance costs capitalised

19

(7 081)

(6 476)

(384 045)

(412 109)

24

120 902.

114 446.

7

(124 682)

(130 648)

57 011.

1 642.

(264)

(503)

(67 935)

(129 509)

Repayment of other financial liabilities

(22 210)

(22 182)

Net cash flows from financing activities

(22 210)

(22 182)

30 757.

(37 245)

221 510.

258 755.

252 267.

221 510.

Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

8

Net cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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SAVE WATER: Kettles should not be filled to the brim but with just enough water for your needs. This will reduce your electricity bill too.
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
Actual
Actual
Mhlathuze
City of
Water uMhlathuze*

Total
Actual

R ‘000

R ‘000

R ‘000

474 384.

58 219.

532 603.

Budget Difference Notes
Mhlathuze
between
Water budget and
actual
R ‘000
R ‘000

Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Sale of goods and services
Other income
Interest received - investment
Total revenue from exchange transactions

470 512.

3 872.

337.

-.

337.

432.

(95)

12 985.

-.

12 985.

5 203.

7 782.

487 706.

58 219.

545 925.

476 147.

11 559.

(96 133)

(21 616)

(117 749)

(92 372)

(3 761)

1
2

Expenditure
Employee related costs

3

(3 129)

-.

(3 129)

(2 524)

(605)

Depreciation and amortisation

(40 362)

-.

(40 362)

(58 066)

17 704.

4

Finance costs

(10 205)

-.

(10 205)

(19 867)

9 662.

5

(2 488)

-.

(2 488)

(2 669)

181.

(181)

-.

(181)

-.

(181)

Remuneration of board members

Lease rentals on operating lease
Bad debts written off
Repairs and maintenance

(28 846)

(17 126)

(45 972)

(18 583)

(10 263)

6

Bulk purchases

(57 299)

-.

(57 299)

(85 391)

28 092.

7

General expenses

(51 027)

(11 888)

(62 915)

(61 940)

10 913.

8

(100 470)

(18)

(100 488)

(68 023)

(32 447)

9

(11 572)

(3 239)

(14 811)

(11 981)

409.

Total expenditure

(401 712)

(53 887)

(455 599)

(421 416)

19 704.

Operating surplus

85 994.

4 332.

90 326.

54 731.

31 263.

Gain on disposal of assets

56 576.

-.

56 576.

-.

56 576.

142 570.

4 332.

146 902.

54 731.

87 839.

Electricity and water
Chemicals

Surplus

10
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (continued)
Actual
Actual
Mhlathuze
City of
Water uMhlathuze*

Total
Actual

Budget Difference Notes
Mhlathuze
between
Water budget and
actual
R ‘000
R ‘000

R ‘000

R ‘000

R ‘000

414 117

-

414 117

239 026

175 091

11

751 899

-

751 899

742 239

9 660

12

1 166 016

-

1 166 016

981 265

184 751

224 892

-

224 892

150 662

74 230

Total non-current liabilities

203 454

-

203 454

202 209

1 245

Total liabilities

428 346

-

428 346

352 871

75 475

Net assets

737 670

-

737 670

628 394

109 276

1 166 016

-

1 166 016

981 265

184 751

Statement of Financial Position
ASSETS
Current assets
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Total current liabilities

13

Non-current liabilities

Total net assets and liabilities
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SAVE WATER: Fix a leaking toilet otherwise it can waste up to 100 000 litres of water in one year.
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (continued)
Notes
*The City of uMhlathuze Operations and Maintenance contract was not budgeted for due to the recoverable expenses
being too unpredictable at the time of the budget process and therefore these items are excluded from the difference
between budget and actual column to ensure comparability.
1. Sale of goods and services has a positive variance of R3,9 million due to Foskor increasing their daily demand on waste water
from 2 000m3 to 5 000m3 and penalty charges received from various customers when they have exceeded their daily demand.
2. Interest received has a positive variance of R7,7 million and are due to excess cash invested and interest earned thereon.
3. Employee cost has a negative variance of R3,7 million, this is mainly due to two cost categories namely: the internship increased
by 42% and the normal overtime increased by 22%.
4. Depreciation and amortisation has a positive variance of R17,7 million that is mainly due to the reassessment of useful lives of
items of property, plant and equipment which gave rise to a write back of depreciation.
5. Finance cost has a positive variance of R9,6 million that is due to R7 million interest that was capitalised during the current year.
6. Repairs and maintenance has a negative variance of R10,2 million mainly due to an assessment that was carried out in order to
monitor the internal condition of the pipelines to determine future plans, and if replacement or repair is needed.
7. Bulk purchases has a positive variance of R28,1 million due to lower volumes sold.
8. General expenses has a positive variance of R10,9 million due to the following catogories that has excess budgets and the
actual cost did not materialise, namely: Biomonitoring positive variance of R1,9 million, Insurance excess of R2,3 million, travel and
subsistance overseas of R1,2 million.
9. Electricity cost has a negative variance of R32,4 million. This is due to the increase in Eskom rates imposed by NERSA, as well
as the increase from the City of uMhlathuze that was implemented. The Tugela-Goedertrouw scheme is running at full capacity to
transfer water to the Goedertrouw dam due to the drought situation in the KwaZulu-Natal area.
10. Gain on disposal of assets has a positive variance of R56,5 million due to the assets that was sold to the Department of Water
and Sanitation. Mhlathuze Water funded the assets when the scheme was built in 1995.
11. Current assets have a positive variance of R175 million mainly due to the increase in trade receivables under the section 30
activities, and an increase in short-term deposits.
12. Non-current assets have a positive variance of R9,6 million as a result of the reassessment of the assets useful lives as mentioned
in note 4 above.
13. Current liabilities have a negative variance of R74 million due to the increase in trade payables under the section 30 activities.
14. Net assets have a positive variance of R109,2 million due to positive surpluses made as well as sales of assets on the TugelaGoedertrouw Scheme as described in note 10.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Accounting Policies
1.

Presentation of Annual Financial
Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance
with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1
of 1999).

The impairment for trade receivables is calculated on a portfolio
basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for national and
industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators
present at the reporting date that correlate with defaults on the
portfolio.

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an
accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified
otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.

1.4

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have
been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual
financial statements, are disclosed below.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period,
except for the changes set out in note 2 First-time adoption of
Standards of GRAP.
1.1

Presentation currency

These annual financial statements are presented in South African
Rand, which is the functional currency of the entity. All information
presented has been rounded to the nearest thousand rand.
1.2

Going concern assumption

These annual financial statements have been prepared based
on the expectation that the Board of Mhlathuze Water has
reasonable grounds to believe that the business has adequate
resources to continue as a going concern in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. Refer to note 33 for more detail.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets
(including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or
for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
more than one period.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised
as an asset when:
•
•

it is probable that future economic benefits or service
potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the
purchase price and other costs attributable to the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction,
its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Significant judgements and sources of estimation
uncertainty

When significant components of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for
as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment.

In preparing the annual financial statements, management
is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts represented in the annual financial statements
and related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates.
Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates
which may be material to the annual financial statements.
Significant judgements include:

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item
of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently
to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is
recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant
and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

1.3

Trade receivables
The entity assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end
of each reporting period. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the entity makes
judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a
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measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
financial asset.

SAVE WATER: Do not over-fill or excessively backwash your swimming pool.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management.
Items such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

equipment are recognised when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment.

and is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses
Depreciation is not provided on capital work in progress.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight
line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
residual value.

1.5

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses.

•

An asset is identifiable if it either:

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have
been assessed as follows:
•
The straight line depreciation method has been used in the table
below.
Item

Average useful life

Buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Library
Electrical supply
Communication equipment
Pipelines
Tools and loose gear

20-45 years
10-20 years
3-10 years
5-10 years
3-10 years
5 years
15-20 years
5 years
20-40 years
5 years

Land is not depreciated.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a
cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or
deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.

Intangible assets

is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided
from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
exchanged, either individually or together with a related
contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of whether
the entity intends to do so; or
arises from binding arrangements (including rights
from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the entity or from other rights
and obligations.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
•

•

it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or
service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow
to the entity; and
the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on
a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:
Item
Computer software
1.6

Useful life
3 years

Financial instruments

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit
when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the
derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds,
if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

Initial recognition
The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its
statement of financial position when the entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of qualifying assets are capitalised on qualifying assets
in accordance with the requirements of GRAP 5 Borrowing Costs.

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities
The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially
at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset or a financial
liability not subsequently measured at fair value, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of

Capital work in progress
Capital work in progress is non-current assets under construction

The entity recognises financial assets on the date of origination.
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Financial instruments (continued)

the financial asset or financial liability.
Subsequent measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities
The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after
initial recognition at amortised cost, which includes receivables
from exchange transactions, cash and cash equivalents and
payables from exchange transactions.
All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are
subject to an impairment review.
De-recognition of financial instruments
The entity derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and
does not retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in
such derecognised financial assets that is created or retained by
the entity is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

1.8

Inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories
are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then their
costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.
The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.
The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average
cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories
having a similar nature and use to the entity.
Inventories held by the entity comprise of water, maintenance
spares, consumables and chemicals.

The entity derecognises a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

1.9

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount presented in the statement of financial position when,
and only when, the entity currently has a legally enforceable right
to offset the amounts and intends either to settle them on a net
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial assets
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss
is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there
is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is
considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that
one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset.

Section 30 financial assets and liabilities
All financial assets and liabilities relating to section 30 activities
are measured in accordance with the relevant financial instrument
account policies listed above.
Additional detail on section 30 activities are set out in note 26 (b)(ii).
1.7

Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the
entity assesses the classification of each element separately.
Operating leases - lessor
Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straightline basis over the lease term.
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Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual
payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

Impairment

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can
include: default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an
amount due to the entity on terms that the entity would not
consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter
bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security.
The entity considers evidence of impairment for receivables
at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually
significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All
individually significant receivables found not to be specifically
impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that
has been incurred but not yet identified. Receivables that are not
individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment
by grouping together receivables with similar risk characteristics.
In assessing collective impairment the entity uses historical trends
of the probability of default, timing of recoveries and the amount
of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement as to
whether current economic and credit conditions are such that

SAVE WATER: Every time you boil an egg, save the cooled water for your houseplants. They’ll benefit from the nutrients released from the shell.
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Impairment (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested
by historical trends.
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying
amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Losses are recognised in the statement of financial performance
and reflected in an allowance account against receivables.
Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognised through
the unwinding of the discount. “If, in a subsequent period, the
amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does
not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.”
Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the entity’s non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the assets’ recoverable amount is estimated.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an
asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of
financial performance.
For impairment of a cash generating unit (CGU), GRAP 26 states
that “The impairment loss shall be allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the cash-generating assets of the unit on a
pro rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit.

money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation if no impairment loss
been recognised.
1.10

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within
12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation
leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as
medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is
rendered and are not discounted.
The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as
an expense as the employees render services that increase their
entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when
the absence occurs.
The expected cost of surplus sharing and bonus payments is
recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive
obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.
Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan
under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity
and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
pension plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense
in the statement of financial performance when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generate cash
inflows from continuing use and are largely independent of
the cash flows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cashgenerating unit”).

Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more
than 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the service are discounted to their present value.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is
the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a risk free discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of

Employee benefit liability are recognised when:

1.11

•
•

Employee benefit liability

the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits or service potential will be required to
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•

Employee benefit liability (continued)

settle the obligation; and
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of an Employee benefit liability is the best estimate
of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date.
1.12

Revenue from exchange transactions

An exchange transaction is one in which the Mhlathuze Water
receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of
goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.
Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.
Sale of goods and services
Revenue from the sale of goods and services is recognised when
all the following conditions have been satisfied:
•
•

•
•
•

the entity has transferred to the purchaser the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
the entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; and
the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

In respect of the sale of water, these conditions are met when
water is consumed by the end user. For practical purposes
revenue is recognised upon billing as there is no significant delay
between consumption and billing.
Revenue comprises primarily the net invoiced value of water
sales, exclusive of VAT, at declared tariffs arising from normal
trading activities.
Interest income
Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding
interest is recognised when:

Interest is recognised, in the statement of financial performance,
using the effective interest rate method.
Management services
Management services is recognised in the period in which the
services are rendered in terms of the agreements with external
water services entities.
Laboratory services
Laboratory services are recognised in the period in which the
services are rendered in terms of the agreements signed with
external stakeholders.
Implementing agency revenue
Implementing agency revenue is recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the specific transaction assessed on the
basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total
service to be provided.
Operation and maintenance services (O & M)
Operation and maintenance services are recognised in the period
in which the services are rendered. O & M revenue relates to bulk
water and bulk waste water services operated on behalf of water
service authorities.
1.13

Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by
an entity in connection with the borrowing of funds. Qualifying
asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale where a substantial
period of time would usually be in excess of twelve months. These
assets comprise items of plant and equipment which the entity
would utilize to facilitate the provision of water and other related
services.
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
as part of the cost of that asset when it is probable that they
will result in future economic benefits or service potential to
the entity, and the costs can be measured reliably. The entity
applies this consistently to all borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of all
qualifying assets of the entity. The amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation is determined as follows:
•

•
•
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It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, and
The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

SAVE WATER: Remove invasive alien plants on your property.

Borrowing costs

•

Actual borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowed for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset less any investment
income on the temporary investment of those borrowings.
Weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the entity on funds generally borrowed for the purpose of
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Borrowing costs (continued)

obtaining a qualifying asset. The borrowing costs capitalised
do not exceed the total borrowing costs incurred.
The capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when all the
following conditions have been met:
•
•
•

expenditures for the asset have been incurred;
borrowing costs have been incurred; and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are undertaken.

When the carrying amount or the expected ultimate cost of the
qualifying asset exceeds its recoverable amount or recoverable
service amount or net realisable value or replacement cost, the
carrying amount is written down or written off in accordance
with the accounting policy on Impairment of Assets and
Inventories as per accounting policy number 1.8 and 1.9. In
certain circumstances, the amount of the write-down or write-off
is written back in accordance with the same accounting policy.
Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are complete.
All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.
1.14

directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including
those charged with the governance of the entity in accordance
with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform
such functions.
Close members of the family of a person are considered to be
those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that management in their dealings with the entity.
Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not
in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.
1.16

This represents the cost of raw water purchased from the Thukela/
Goedertrouw/Mhlathuze River System scheme.
1.17

Income received in advance

The entity measures income received in advance as a financial
liability in the statement of financial position. The income
received in advance comprise of funds received for which the
related goods or services have not been provided at the period
end. Thus the entity has an obligation to deliver the related goods
or services in the future. Once the goods or services have been
delivered, the entity will recognize this revenue in accordance
with the manner which most accurately reflects the transfer of
risks and rewards.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
1.18

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in
vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been
exercised.
All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure
is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial is
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The
expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for
as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

Standard and interpretations issued
but not yet effective

GRAP 20- Related Party Disclosures
This standard provides guidance on:
•
•
•
•

1.15

Bulk purchases

Identifying related party relationships and transactions;
Identifying outstanding balances, including commitments,
between an entity and its related parties;
Identifying the circumstances in which disclosure of the
items in (a) and (b) is required; and
Determining the disclosures to be made about those items.

Related parties

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated
by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African
Government.As a consequence of the constitutional independence
of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only entities
within the national sphere of government are considered to be
related parties.
Management are those persons responsible for planning,

The entity currently adopted GRAP 20 to formulate its accounting
policies and disclosures in respect of related parties and therefore
there will be no impact on application of GRAP 20.
GRAP 108- Statutory Receivables
This Standard prescribes the accounting requirements for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
statutory receivables. Specifically it gives requirements on when
a statutory receivables should be recognised and derecognised
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Standard and interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued)
GRAP 108- Statutory Receivables (continued)

with reference to other GRAP standards i.e. GRAP on Revenue
from Exchange Transactions. It also requires that statutory
receivables be initially measured at transaction amount and
subsequently using the cost method. This standard is in line with
the entity’s current accounting policy and therefore the impact of
the application of this standard is not expected to be significant.
The entity will apply the standard from the effective date. The
effective date of this interpretation has not been determined by
the Minister of Finance.

GRAP 109- Principles and Agents
The objective of this Standard is to outline principles to be
used by an entity to assess whether it is party to a principalagent arrangement, and whether it is a principal or an agent in
undertaking transactions in terms of such an arrangement. As this
Standard does not introduce new recognition or measurement
requirements the impact of the application of this standard is not
expected to be significant.
The entity will apply the standard from the effective date. The
effective date of this interpretation has not been determined by
the Minister of Finance.
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SAVE WATER: Always water your plants during the early morning hours or in the evening, when temperatures are cooler.
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First-time adoption of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP)
As a result of the withdrawal of the standards of South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (SA GAAP)
as from 1 December 2012, Mhlathuze Water has, for the 2016 year end and in future report under the Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice framework (GRAP). The Accounting Standards Board (ASB) approved the Directive on “The selection of an
Appropriate Reporting Framework by Public Entities (Directive 12)” in July 2015. Mhlathuze Water opted to implement GRAP for
the year ended 30 June 2016 and the Board of Mhlathuze Water noted the directive received from the Accounting Standards Board
(ASB) at a meeting held on the 16 September 2015, to change the Reporting Framework for Government Business Enterprises
(GBE’s) schedule 3B entities to GRAP.
There are no material differences in the financial statements upon transition to GRAP, due to the fact that accounting policies
applied by Mhlathuze Water under SA GAAP are not materially different to those applied under GRAP. The date of transition was
1st July 2015.
In order to provide more reliable and relevant information to the users of the financial statements, management have reclassified
specific amounts as detailed on page 55.

MHLATHUZE WATER l Annual Report 2015/2016

89

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.

2016
R’000

2015
R’000

Chemicals

2 830

2 560.

Consumable and maintenance spares

5 755

4 570.

138

171.

8 723

7 301.

Trade receivables - primary activities

58 229.

68 345.

Trade receivables - section 30 activities

91 694.

47 740.

Inventories

Water inventory

4.

Receivables from exchange transactions

Provision for impairment - primary activities
Sundry receivables - primary activities
Staff receivables - primary activities
Prepayments - primary activities
Deposits - primary activities
Total receivables from exchange transactions
5.

(219)
241.

25.

87.

1 657.

1 449.

431.

417.

152 713.

118 060.

414.

2 235.

VAT receivable
VAT

6.

(399)
1 076.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term, highly liquid investments that are held with registered banking institutions
with maturities of six months or less and that are subject to insignificant interest rate risk. The carrying amount of these assets
approximates their fair values:
Cash on hand

5.

5.

Bank balances

6 769.

4 577.

216 953.

191 741.

28 540.

25 187.

252 267.

221 510.

Short-term deposits
Call account - section 30 activities

Advances - section 30 activities
The Department of Water and Sanitation, Department of Education and Department of Environmental Affairs approves a budget
per annum against which Mhlathuze Water is allowed to incur expenses for the externally funded projects as well as the Working
for Water Programme. For this purpose the Department of Water and Sanitation, Department of Education and Department of
Environmental Affairs advances cash amounts to Mhlathuze Water and reimburse them as and when cash is expended on these
projects. These projects are completed on behalf of the Department of Water and Sanitation, Department of Education and
Department of Environmental Affairs. The unutilised advances are listed below:-

90

SAVE WATER: Use “grey water” - used water from baths, washing machines and other safe sources to water your gardens.

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
6.

2016
R’000

2015
R’000

18 241.

8.

1 105.

59.

121.

794.

9 073.

24 326.

28 540

25 187.

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
Advances received from the Department of Water and Sanitation
Eleven projects are currently being managed
Advances received from the Department of Educ/Dept of Basic Education (DOE/DBE)
Two projects are currently being managed
Advances received from the Department of Environmental Affairs (DEA)
Fifteen projects are currently being managed
Advances received from the Department of Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs
(COGTA)
Two projects are currently being managed

Cash is invested in separate investment accounts as per government institution listed above. These funds are restricted for use
on the respective projects. Funds are included in cash balances of Mhlathuze Water and recognised as payables from exchange
transactions. Refer to note 10.
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7.

(130 291)
(78 142)

310 923.
174 026.

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture and fixtures

SAVE WATER: Turn the tap off between washing your face, brushing your teeth or shaving.

(26 366)
-.
(30)
-.
(225 244)
(384)

89 050.
166 851.
30.
-.
440 815.
399.

Electrical supply

Work in progress

Communication equipment

Total

Tools and loose gear

Pipelines

Leased assets

(485 557)

(12)

13.

1 233 597.

(16 872)

32 148.

Office equipment

Library

(2 185)
(6 031)

3 684.
13 829.

Motor vehicles

Land

-.

R’000

1 829.

Property, plant and equipment

R’000

Cost Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

2016

748 040.

15.

215 571.

-.

-.

166 851.

62 684.

1.

15 276.

7 798.

1 499.

95 884.

180 632.

1 829.

R’000

Carrying
value

1 137 908.

399.

419 781.

33 295.

43.

153 120.

52 323.

13.

39 659.

10 317.

3 581.

166 166.

257 382.

1 829.

R’000

(477 943)

(375)

(210 316)

(33 295)

(43)

-.

(19 365)

(11)

(15 680)

(4 409)

(2 015)

(66 673)

(125 761)

-.

R’000

Cost Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

2015

659 965.

24.

209 465.

-.

-.

153 120.

32 958.

2.

23 979.

5 908.

1 566.

99 493.

131 621.

1 829.

R’000

Carrying
value
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7.

52 341.
21 490.
246.
3 790.
5 082.
-.
17 398.
6 650.
17 685.
-.
124 682.

131 621.
99 493.
1 566.
5 908.
23 979.
2.
32 958.
153 120.
209 465.
24.
659 965.

Plant and machinery

Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

Office equipment

Electrical supply

Work in progress

Pipelines

Tools and loose gear

Library

Buildings

Land

-.

R’000

R’000

1 829.

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2016

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Additions

Opening
balance

(435)

-.

-.

-.

(2)

-.

(271)

-.

(41)

(61)

(60)

-.

R’000

Disposals

-.

-.

2 721.

-.

15 663.

-.

(7 645)

-.

(1)

(11 949)

1 211.

-.

R’000

Transfers

7 081.

-.

-.

7 081.

-.

-.

-.

-.

-.

-.

-.

-.

R’000

(43 253)

(9)

(14 300)

-.

(3 333)

(1)

(5 869)

(1 900)

(271)

(13 089)

(4 481)

-.

R’000

Borrowing Depreciation
costs
capitalised

748 040.

15.

215 571.

166 851.

62 684.

1.

15 276.

7 798.

1 499.

95 884.

180 632.

1 829.

R’000

Closing
balance
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7.

8 292.

Office equipment

SAVE WATER: Use low-flow showerheads, dual-flush toilet mechanisms and water-efficient washing machines.

Tools and loose gear

Pipelines

Communication equipment

Work in progress

Electrical supply

11 980.
(54)
130 648.

214 991.
99.
577 260.

-.

11 986.

134 658.
1.

7 421.

-.

20 196.

4 386.

27 966.

2.

3 122.

Motor vehicles

Library

1 195.

583.

58 058.

57 515.

Plant and machinery

Furniture and fixtures

-.
16 092.

1 829.

R’000

R’000

127 590.

Buildings

Land

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2015

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Additions

Opening
balance

(3 141)

-.

-.

-.

-.

-.

-.

(131)

-.

(2)

(2 982)

(26)

-.

R’000

Disposals

-.

-.

-.

-.

-.

-.

-.

-.

-.

-.

-.

-.

-.

R’000

Transfers

6 476.

-.

-.

-.

6 476.

-.

-.

-.

-.

-.

-.

-.

-.

R’000

(51 278)

(21)

(17 506)

(1)

-.

(2 429)

-.

(4 378)

(1 600)

(210)

(13 098)

(12 035)

-.

R’000

Borrowing Depreciation
costs
capitalised

659 965.

24.

209 465.

-.

153 120.

32 958.

2.

23 979.

5 908.

1 566.

99 493.

131 621.

1 829.

R’000

Closing
balance
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2016
Cost Accumulated
amortisation
and
accumulated
impairment

8.

2015
Carrying
value

Cost Accumulated
amortisation
and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying
value

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

12 572.

(8 713)

3 859.

14 355.

(13 651)

704.

Additions Reassessment Amortisation
of useful life
of intangible
assets
R’000
R’000
R’000

Closing
balance

Intangible assets
Computer software

Opening
balance

R’000

R’000

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2016
Computer software

704.

264.

3 365.

(474)

3 859.

724.

504.

-.

(524)

704.

2016
R’000

2015
R’000

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2015
Computer software

9.

Interest bearing borrowings
At amortised cost
Nedbank

47 059.

58 824.

RMB

99 128.

109 573.

146 187.

168 397.

Total interest bearing borrowings

The fixed term loan from Nedbank is repayable in bi-annual capital repayments, with a fixed interest rate of 10.89%, that
commenced on 30 June 2012 and matures on 30 June 2020.
The fixed term loan from Rand Merchant Bank is repayable in bi-annual capital repayments, with a fixed interest rate of 10.54%,
that commenced on 30 November 2011 and matures on 28 November 2025.
Debt consists of interest-bearing liabilities held at amortised cost and are unsecured.
Non-current liabilities
At amortised cost

124 077.

146 287.

22 110.

22 110.

146 187.

168 397.

Current liabilities
At amortised cost
Total interest bearing borrowings
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2016
R’000

2015
R’000

Trade payables - primary activities

23 192.

25 460.

Trade payables - section 30 activities

27 480.

20 341.

10. Payables from exchange transactions

3 124.

3 230.

Retention funds - section 30 activities

28 968.

4 307.

Accruals - primary activities

39 370.

46 274.

SARS - PAYE, UIF, SDL and VAT

1 833.

1 389.

Accruals - section 30 activities

35 246.

23 092.

660.

642.

Retention funds - primary activities

Sundry creditors - primary activities

28 540.

25 187.

188 413.

149 922.

Advances - section 30 activities (refer to note 6)

Opening
balance

Raised

Utilised
during the
year

Closing
balance

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

314.

34.

(34)

314.

11. Employee benefit liability
Reconciliation of employee benefit liability - 2016
Provision of post retirement medical aid
Provision for staff bonuses

5 325.

6 189.

(5 166)

6 348.

5 639.

6 223.

(5 200)

6 662.

Reconciliation of employee benefit liability - 2015
Provision of post retirement medical aid
Provision for staff bonuses

314.

34.

(34)

314.

4 774.

5 325.

(4 774)

5 325.

5 088.

5 359.

(4 808)

5 639.

2016
R’000

2015
R’000

258.

258.

6 404.

5 381.

6 662.

5 639.

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
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2016
R’000

2015
R’000

11. Employee benefit liability (continued)
Provision for staff bonus
The provision for bonus is raised to recognise the performance of employees, which is payable at the Board’s discretion in line
with the performance management policy.
Employee benefit obligation
Defined contribution plan
Mhlathuze Water has made provision for a provident scheme covering all employees on permanent employment contracts.
The fund is governed by the Pension Fund Act, 1956 (Act No. 24 of 1956).
Mhlathuze Water pension fund - defined contribution plan
The Mhlathuze Pension fund was closed in 2015 and is now in the process of being deregistered. The members belong to the
Provident Fund and the member shares from the Pension Fund will be transferred to the Provident Fund as soon as the Financial
Services Board has approved the Section 14 transfer as per the Pension Funds Act, 1956 (Act 24 of 1956).
Mhlathuze Water provident fund - defined contribution plan
The provident fund is in the nature of a defined plan. The Risk benefits are registered as Group Income Insurance and Group
Life Insurance schemes. Funeral benefits are covered through a separate funeral policy. Retirement benefits are determined with
reference to the contributions to the fund. Mhlathuze Water has no commitment to meet unfunded benefits of the provident
fund.
12. Income received in advance
- Short-term portion of advances

7 965

7 965

- Long-term portion of advances

79 119

87 084

Total income received in advance

87 084

95 049

Income received in advance from Foskor relates to the construction of the B Line Diffuser Replacement Project, which was
commissioned at the end of September 2008. The entity received the total amount upfront and the income is recognised over the
period of the agreement based on the usage of the waste water disposal line by Foskor. This balance is measured and recognised
in terms of the accounting policy relating to income received in advanced.
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2016
R’000

2015
R’000

309 234

285 526

81 924

76 191

-

74

7 463

6 678

13. Revenue - sale of goods and services
Sale of goods and services
An analysis of tariff income is as follows:
Primary activities (Section 29)
Bulk water
Waste water
Other activities (Section 30)
Management services
Laboratory services
Implementing agency fees

17 967

26 513

416 588

394 982

Operating lease income
An analysis of operating lease income is as follows:
Primary activities (Section 29)
Lease income - bulk water

69 675

60 849

Lease income - waste water

46 340

42 932

116 015

103 781

Bulk water

378 909

346 376

Waste water

128 264

119 124

Total revenue
An analysis of total revenue from sale of goods and services is as follows:
Primary activities (Section 29)

Other activities (Section 30)
Management services
Laboratory services
Implementing agency fees
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-

74

7 463

6 678

17 967

26 513
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2016
R’000

2015
R’000

532 603

498 765

14. External projects (Section 30 Activities)
Mhlathuze Water, apart from its primary activities, administers External Projects (Section 30 activities) for the Department of Water
and Sanitation, Department of Education, Department of Environmental Affairs and the Department of Co-operative Governance
and Traditional Affairs on their behalf. Total expenditure for these projects are fully recoverable from these departments.
These amounts below are not reflected in the statement of financial performance as it is deemed that Mhlathuze Water is an
agent in these transactions. Accordingly, the implementing agency fees have been recognised as revenue in the statement of
financial performance.
The following projects activities took place during the year:
40 189

49 421

Department of Water and Sanitation - water infrastructure

360 605

384 898

Department of Environmental Affairs - Alien plant removal

12 956

19 533

Department of Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs (COGTA - water infrastructure)

12 100

20 000

425 850

473 852

19

11

294

255

Rent received

7

7

Recycling initiatives

4

4

Department of Education/Department of Basic Education - school sanitation

The above amounts have been incurred on behalf of the respective departments and are
recoverable from them.
15. Other income
Included in other income :
Handling fees
Tenders

SARS rebate

4

42

General

9

185

337

504

171

126

30

32

12 784

12 070

12 985

12 228

Total
16. Interest received
Bank account
Interest charged on trade and other receivables
Call accounts/investments
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2016
R’000

2015
R’000

Basic

89 646

74 521

Bonus

8 116

5 610

57

52

UIF

496

425

WCA

484

528

1 032

825

8

6

1 905

3 382

-

486

85

69

Standby/shift allowances

2 324

1 723

Overtime payments

8 559

7 438

Acting allowances

1 073

1 184

Transport allowance

325

247

Housing benefits and allowances

939

-

1 911

416

789

659

117 749

97 571

Other
services
and
allowances

Total

R’000

R’000

17. Employee related costs

Medical aid - company contributions

SDL
Other payroll levies
Leave pay provision charge
Lumpsum salaries - CCMA settlements
Relocation allowances

Internships
Cell phone allowances

Package Travel and
earnings subsistence
allowance
R’000

R’000

18. Board members and executives’ emoluments
The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee assists the Board in applying policies approved for remunerating executives.
The Board’s remuneration is determined and approved by the Department of Water and Sanitation.
2016
Non-executive board members
DC Myeni (Chairperson of the Board)

76

-

432

508

BV Mshengu

82

-

307

389

NN Khumalo

49

-

182

231

PS Dlamini

40

-

202

242

N Gevers

46

-

202

248

A Badul

86

-

264

350

MM Xulu

55

-

214

269

BK Rawlins

59

-

247

306

493

-

2 050

2 543

Sub total non-executive board members (carried forward)
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Package Travel and
earnings subsistence
allowance

Other
services
and
allowances

Total

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

493

-

2 050

2 543

ADV S Chamane

58

-

182

240

FG Bosman

69

-

195

264

4

-

78

82

624

-

2 505

3 129

59

-

2

61

AS Makhanya***

1 867

180

24

2 071

SG Xulu

1 511

16

254

1 781

BS Ndaba

1 453

163

354

1 970

M Myeni

1 231

-

281

1 512

950

77

530

1 557

N Ndlovu

1 021

-

88

1 109

Total executive staff members

8 092

436

1 533

10 061

Total board members and executive staff members

8 716

436

4 038

13 190

18. Board members and executives’ emoluments (continued)
Non-executive board members (continued)
Sub total non-executive board members (brought forward)

TC Madikane*
Total non-executive board members
Executive staff members
M P Duze (Interim Chief Executive)**

BS Ntlhoro

* TC Madikane resigned 1st October 2015
** MP Duze started as Interim Chief Executive on 8th June 2016
***AS Makhanya is on suspension pending the outcome of disciplinary proceedings.
2015
Non-executive board members
DC Myeni (Chairperson of the Board)

538

-

-

538

BV Mshengu

246

-

117

363

NN Khumalo

189

-

12

201

PS Dlamini

207

-

9

216

N Gevers

182

-

5

187

A Badul

244

-

19

263

MM Xulu

179

-

2

181

63

-

4

67

BK Rawlins

196

-

5

201

ADV S Chamane

185

-

67

252

FG Bosman

221

-

2

223

TC Madikane

253

-

19

272

2 703

-

261

2 964

EM Mzimela****

Total non-executive board members
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Package Travel and
earnings subsistence
allowance

Other
services
and
allowances

Total

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

1 701

180

377

2 258

467

-

23

490

BS Ndaba

1 328

163

310

1 801

M Myeni

1 130

-

235

1 365

BS Ntlhoro

966

81

166

1 213

N Ndlovu

944

43

11

998

Total executive staff members

6 536

467

1 122

8 125

Total board members and executive staff members

9 239

467

1 383

11 089

18. Board members and executives’ emoluments (continued)
Executive staff members
AS Makhanya
SG Xulu

****EM Mzimela - resigned 1st October 2014
Designation

Date of
Date of
employment appointment
in current
position

Duration
of contract

Service contracts
Executive
CE

19 Jun 2008 01 Sep 2014 5 year contract

SG Xulu

COO

03 Jan 2011 01 Mar 2015 5 year contract

BS Ndaba

CFO

01 Nov 2012 01 Nov 2012 5 year contract

MP Duze*

Interim CE

AS Makhanya

08 Jun 2016

08 Jun 2016

3 months

*MP Duze - started as interim Chief Executive on 8th June 2016 for a three month term, which was further extended until June 2017.
2016
R’000

2015
R’000

17 286.

19 543.

-.

2.

19. Finance costs
Non-current borrowings
Bank
Less: borrowing cost capitalised

(7 081)

(6 476)

10 205.

13 069.

Capitalisation rates used during the period were 10.65% on specific borrowings for capital projects and 10.65% being the
weighted average cost of funds borrowed generally by the entity (2015: 10.66%).
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2016
R’000

2015
R’000

20. Operating lease arrangements
20.1 Operating lease commitments
At the statement of financial position date Mhlathuze Water had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating
leases, which fall due as follows:
Within 1 year

2 356

2 226

Between 1 to 5 years

8 847

8 156

Beyond 5 years

9 216

10 349

20 419

20 731

Total operating lease commitments

Mhlathuze Water leases equipment and a pipeline from various institutions for periods ranging from 1 to 20 years. These leases
will conclude at the end of the contracted agreement signed with the relevant stakeholders.
20.2 Operating lease receivable
Within 1 year

121 816

109 028

Between 1 to 5 years

702 973

638 805

Beyond 5 years

2 959 360

2 949 690

Total operating lease receivable

3 784 149

3 697 523

Arrangements with the customers that contained deemed leases and qualify as operating leases are recognised in terms of
IGRAP 3. The above indicates the future lease rentals receivables.
21. General expenses
Advertising

628

482

Assessment rates & municipal charges

552

414

Auditors remuneration - external

910

845

Auditors remuneration - internal

935

934

240

219

Cleaning

1 785

1 185

Fees - special investigation

2 819

45

Legal expenses

1 989

305

Consulting and professional fees

2 043

2 299

Consumables

1 038

1 048

Bank charges

Donations

34

-

Fines and penalties

69

65

Hire

3 698

3 897

Insurance

2 382

2 293

Community development and training

3 155

2 259

452

470

7 786

6 958

569

242

3 707

2 727

25

45

34 816

26 732

Conferences and seminars
IT expenses
Marketing
Regional bulk studies
Magazines, books and periodicals
Sub total general expenses (carried forward)
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2016
R’000

2015
R’000

34 816

26 732

203.

121.

21. General expenses (continued)
Sub total general expenses (brought forward)
Motor vehicle expenses

3 086.

3 081.

Pest control

71.

30.

Fuel and oil

3 197.

6 659.

275.

389.

Ground contractors

Placement fees

3.

16.

Printing and stationery

619.

568.

Protective clothing

989.

761.

Corporate social investment

1 582.

1 383.

Security

Postage and courier

3 647.

3 135.

Staff welfare

541.

534.

Subscriptions and membership fees

250.

409.

Telephone and fax

742.

723.

75.

78.

Training

1 791.

2 261.

Travel - local

1 765.

1 224.

181.

680.

Transport and freight

Travel - overseas

60.

531.

253.

208.

3 885.

6 304.

Refreshments

913.

877.

Bursaries

602.

512.

Assets expensed
Uniforms
General

20.

32.

Board members - general expenses

1 040.

1 029.

Public relations

1 948.
361.

1 695.
272.

62 915.

60 244.

276.

280.

2 212.

2 130.

2 488.

2 410.

474.

524.

43 253.
120 878.

51 278.
100 449.

Staff assessments/gradings

Learnerships
Total general expenses
22. Operating surplus
Operating surplus for the year is stated after accounting for the following:
Operating lease charges
Equipment
•  Contractual amounts
Pipelines
•  Contractual amounts

Amortisation on intangible assets
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Employee costs and board remuneration
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2016
R’000

2015
R’000

57 010.

178.

(434)

(1 677)

56 576.

(1 499)

23. Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets
Profit on sale of asset
(Loss) on sale of assets

The profit on sale of assets was derived from the sale of assets at the Tugela-Goedertrouw Scheme to the Department of Water
and Sanitation.
24. Cash generated from operations
146 902.

89 998.

Depreciation and amortisation

43 727.

51 802.

Reassessment of useful life of intangible assets

(3 365)

-.

Surplus
Adjustments for:

(56 576)

1 499.

(7 081)

(6 476)

Movement in employee benefit liabilities

1 023.

551.

Movement in income received in advance

(7 965)

(8 128)

(1 422)

(2 074)

(Gain)/loss on sale of assets
Finance costs - capitalised

Changes in working capital:
(Increase) in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in receivables from exchange transactions
Increase/(decrease) in payables from exchange transactions
Decrease in VAT receivable

(34 653)

22 526.

38 491.

(36 056)

1 821.

804.

120 902.

114 446.

25. Financial risk management
The entity has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
•
Liquidity risk
•
Credit risk
•
Market risk
This note presents information about Mhlathuze Water’s exposure to each of the above risks, objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing risk. The methods used to measure risk have been consistently applied in the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.
Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout the Annual Financial Statements.
The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the entity’s risk management framework. Risk
management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks that are faced by Mhlathuze Water, to set appropriate
risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to these limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the entity’s activities.
Presently all risks identified are attended to at departmental level and by a risk management committee. Reports are presented
to the Audit and Risk Committee, the Boards delegated structure tasked with the responsibility of reviewing the risk management
process.
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25.

Financial risk management (continued)

The Board reviews its enterprise wide risk profile to ensure that critical risks are addressed adequately and to identify and capitalise
on opportunities that may be created from these risks. This provides the Board with the opportunity to re-assess the entity’s
strengths and weaknesses to determine a strategic alignment to the objectives.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that Mhlathuze Water will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Mhlathuze Water
is a self-funding entity and does not receive funding in the form of government subsidies. All funding of income generating and
operational assets are obtained by way of loan agreements.
The entity’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when they fall due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
reputation of Mhlathuze Water by managing the monthly cash flow throughout the year.
Mhlathuze Water operates a consolidated loan pool and utilises the positive inflows to redeem external borrowings.
Finance charges are recovered via tariffs levied against consumers. For the purpose of treasury management all long term loans
relating to the core business activities are pooled and an average rate of interest calculated and applied to the schemes for tariff
purposes. This achieves better control and ensures a fair and flexible recovery of finance charges, which assist in planning the cash
flow requirements.
Amount
(Rands)
Bank short-term funding
Mhlathuze Water’s main credit facility is with ABSA Bank and includes the following:
Type of facility
6 000 000

- Overdraft facility
- ACB Credit facility

400 000

- Credit Card facility

110 000
6 510 000

The overdraft facility is only in place for emergency and no cost is charged if it is not used.
Exposure to liquidity risk
Carrying Contractual
amount
Amount

< 1 year

2-5 years

> 5 years

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

At 30 June 2016
Interest bearing borrowings

(146 187)

(207 871)

(36 159)

(112 885)

(58 827)

Payables from exchange transactions

(188 413)

(188 413)

(188 413)

-.

-.

Total

(334 600)

(396 284)

(224 572)

(112 885)

(58 827)

Interest bearing borrowings

(168 397)

(247 169)

(39 415)

(133 688)

(74 066)

Payables from exchange transactions

(149 922)

(149 922)

(149 922)

-

-

Total

(318 319)

(397 091)

(189 337)

(133 688)

(74 066)

At 30 June 2015
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25.

Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values
The carrying values of financial assets and liabilities are presented by class in the tables below, and approximate fair values.
Financial
instruments
at
amortised
cost

Total

R’000

R’000

151 056.

151 056.

28 540.

28 540.

223 727.

223 727.

Interest-bearing borrowing

(146 187)

(146 187)

Payables from exchange transactions

(188 413)

(188 413)

68 723.

68 723.

116 611.

116 611.

25 187.

25 187.

196 323.

196 323.

Interest-bearing borrowing

(168 397)

(168 397)

Payables from exchange transactions

(149 922)

(149 922)

19 802.

19 802.

30 June 2016
Financial assets
Receivables from exchange transactions
Bank and cash implementing agent projects
Bank and cash
Financial liabilities

30 June 2015
Financial assets
Receivables from exchange transactions
Bank and cash implementing agent projects
Bank and cash
Financial liabilities

Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, and trade debtors. The entity only deposits cash with major banks
with high quality credit standing approved through the Department of Water and Sanitation by National Treasury.
Receivables from exchange transactions.
The entity’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The Board has
established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the entity’s
facilities are offered.
Consideration is given to the external credit ratings, tax clearance certificates and the latest audited annual financial statements
of entities not listed on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange. Credit limits are established for non-contractual customers and these
limits are reviewed bi-annually.
The average credit period allowed is 30 days from invoice date. Interest is charged at prime rate +2.5% p.a. on overdue debt.
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25.

Financial risk management (continued)

Mhlathuze Water reviews outstanding balances on trade and other receivables on a monthly basis, via a debtors age analysis
report.
A provision is raised in full for long overdue accounts. The provisions raised are tabled together with the annual financial
statements to the Audit and Risk Committee and the Board.
Partnership/Water schemes with external parties:
External parties are required to submit guarantees to Mhlathuze Water for all expenses incurred on their behalf. Any amounts
outstanding after a period of 30 days will attract interest at the current interest rate as announced by the Minister of Finance.
Exposure to credit risk:
Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:
2016
R’000

2015
R’000

Receivables from exchange transactions

151 056.

116 611.

Cash and cash equivalents

252 267.

221 510.

Financial instrument

The maximum exposure to credit risk for receivables from exchange transactions
per business segment at reporting date was:
Water supply

33 292.

41 692.

Effluent disposal

11 326.

10 739.

Thukela Transfer Scheme

10 995.

13 476.

Project activities

95 443.

50 704.

151 056.

116 611.

Gross Impairment
2016
2016

Gross impairment
2015
2015

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

134 393.

-.

98 282.

-.

Past due 0-30 days

12 779.

-.

12 034.

-.

Past due 30-60 days

2 117.

(163)

3 980.

-.

Past due 60-90 days

560.

(85)

2 162.

(143)

1 207.

(151)

153.

(76)

151 056.

(399)

116 611.

(219)

Provision for impairment
Not past due

Past due >90 days

The current debt for all categories on the age analysis comprises of balances of contracted billing which is recovered timeously
as per contracts entered with consumers.
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25.

Financial risk management (continued)

2016
R’000

2015
R’000

Balance as at 1 July

219

78

Movement

180

141

Balance as at 30 June

399

219

The movement in the provision for impairment

In assessing the provision for impairment, Mhlathuze Water considered the likelihood of receiving payments from its debtors
irrespective of the length of time the debt was outstanding.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices.
Market risks comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. The objective is to manage and
control market risk and control market risk within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk.
The entity does not have any exposure to currency risk (that fluctuation in foreign exchange currency) or any equity price risk, and
Mhlathuze Water does not hold any equity investments.
Interest rate risk
Mhlathuze Water adopted a policy of limiting exposure to interest rate fluctuations by arranging borrowings on a fixed rate basis.
Cash and short-term investments are invested at variable and fixed interest rates with registered banking institutions.
At the reporting date, the interest rate profile for Mhlathuze’s interest-bearing financial instruments was:
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets
Receivables from exchange transactions - variable interest rate

151 056.

116 611.

Bank and cash - variable interest rate

120 527.

73 224.

Bank and cash - fixed interest rate

131 740.

148 286.

(146 187)

(168 397)

257 136.

169 724.

Financial liabilities
Interest bearing borrowing - fixed interest rate
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
26. Segment information
General information
Identification of segments
Information reported about the segments is used by management as a basis for evaluating the segments’ performances and
for making decisions about the allocation of resources. The disclosure of information about these segments is also considered
appropriate for external reporting purposes.
Mhlathuze Water has two reportable segments:
(i) The primary activities segment as defined by section 29 of the Water Services Act No. 108 of 1997 which is made up of:
(a) Bulk water
This activity covers the bulk supplies and other related water services made under contract in the Richards Bay/Empangeni area
from plants owned by Mhlathuze Water. It also covers bulk supplies made and other related water services under contract to district
municipalities, Water Services Institutions and the Department of Water and Sanitation from plants owned by these bodies.
Revenue generated based on water usage has been reflected under this segment.
(b) Waste water
This activity covers buoyant and dense effluent disposals under contract to industries and Municipalities in the Richards Bay area
from plants owned by Mhlathuze Water.
(ii) The other segment activities as defined by section 30 of the Water Services Act No. 108 of 1997. This business segment consists
of non-regulated activities which are mainly defined as services that complement bulk water service provision such as water quality
monitoring, environmental management, laboratory services and where Mhlathuze Water acts as an implementing agent for any
sphere of government for projects related water service delivery.
Segment surplus or deficit, assets and liabilities
The Segmental report is as follows on the next page:
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26.

Segment information (continued)

Bulk water

Waste
water

Other
activities

Total

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

378 908.

128 265.

25 430.

532 603.

218.

119.

-.

337.

10 670.

2 315.

-.

12 985.

389 796.

130 699.

25 430.

545 925.

(83 869)

(33 880)

-.

(117 749)

(2 004)

(1 125)

-.

(3 129)

(23 042)

(17 320)

-.

(40 362)

(9 762)

(443)

-.

(10 205)

Operating leases

(181)

(2 307)

-.

(2 488)

Debt impairment

(114)

(67)

-.

(181)

Repairs and maintenance

(33 949)

(12 023)

-.

(45 972)

Bulk purchases (raw water purchased)

(57 299)

-

-.

(57 299)

Electricity

(82 926)

(17 562)

-.

(100 488)

Chemicals

(14 811)

-

-.

(14 811)

General expenses

(35 735)

(27 180)

-.

(62 915)

(343 692)

(111 907)

-.

(455 599)

Operational surplus

46 104.

18 792.

25 430.

90 326.

Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets

56 755.

(179)

-.

56 576.

102 859.

18 613.

25 430.

146 902.

538 955.

190 574.

120 234.

849 763.

2016
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Sale of goods and services
Other income
Interest received
Total segment revenue
Expenditure
Employee related costs
Remuneration of board members
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs

Total segment expenditure

Total segmental surplus
Assets
Segment assets

316 253.

Centralised services

1 166 016.

Total assets as per statement of financial position
Liabilities
Segment liabilities

20 861.

90 452.

120 234.

231 547.

Centralised services

196 799.

Total liabilities as per statement of financial position

428 346.

Other information
Capital expenditure
Centralised services

106 863.

7 444.

-.

114 307.
17 456.
131 763.
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26.

Segment information (continued)

Bulk water

Waste
water

Other
activities

Total

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

346 376.

119 124.

33 265.

498 765.

344.

160.

-.

504.

7 984.

4 244.

-.

12 228.

354 704.

123 528.

33 265.

511 497.

(68 601)

(28 970)

-.

(97 571)

(1 778)

(1 100)

-.

(2 964)

(30 696)

(21 106)

-.

(51 802)

(6 671)

(6 398)

-.

(13 069)

Operating leases

(180)

(2 230)

-.

(2 410)

Debt impairment

(87)

(57)

-.

(144)

Repairs and maintenance

(27 634)

(15 309)

-.

(42 943)

Bulk purchases (raw water purchased)

(59 045)

-.

-.

(59 045)

Electricity

(59 393)

(16 522)

-.

(75 915)

Chemicals

(13 893)

-.

-.

(13 893)

General expenses

(36 890)

(23 440)

-.

(60 244)

(304 868)

(115 132)

-.

(420 000)

49 836.

8 396.

33 265.

91 497.

(55)

(1 444)

-.

(1 499)

49 781.

6 952.

33 265.

89 998.

452 970.

198 696.

72 928.

724 594.

2015
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Sale of goods and services
Other income
Interest received - investment
Total segment revenue
Expenditure
Employee related costs
Remuneration of board members
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance cost

Total segment expenditure
Operational surplus
Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets
Total segmental surplus
Assets
Segment assets

285 181.

Centralised services
Total assets as per statement of financial position

1 009 775.

Liabilities
Segment liabilities

23 145.

105 118.

72 928.

201 191.

Centralised services

217 816.

Total liabilities as per statement of financial position

419 007.

Other information
Capital expenditure

101 875.

Centralised services

16 614.

-.

118 489.
19 139.
137 628.
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2016
R’000

2015
R‘000

27. Statutory information in terms of the Public Finance management Act No. 1 of 1999 as amended

27.1

Irregular expenditure
Opening balance
Add: Irregular expenditure - current year
Less: Amounts condoned
Closing balance 30 June

-.

-.

1 106.

943.

(1 106)

(943)

-.

-.

Expenditure was subsequently condoned as valid expenditure incurred in support of the business requirements.
Condoned by (condoning authority): Chief Executive and Chairperson of the Board.
27.2

Losses Recovered or Written-off
399.

219.

(218)

(75)

181.

144.

40 972.

36 354.

7 286.

6 994.

40 972.

36 354.

7 286.

6 994.

48 258.

43 348.

Bad debts provided for
Bad debts recovered (reversal of provision)
Totals
28. Commitments
Authorised capital expenditure
Already contracted for but not provided for
•  Property, plant and equipment
Not yet contracted for and authorised
•  Property, plant and equipment
Total capital commitments
Already contracted for but not provided for
Not yet contracted for and authorised

This committed expenditure relates to property, plant and equipment and will be financed by available bank facilities,
retained surpluses and existing cash resources.
29. Related party transactions
Relationships
Controlling entity
		
		
		
		
		

Department of Water and Sanitation
Department of Environmental Affairs
Department of Basic Education
Department of Education
Department of Co-operative Governance and
Traditional Affairs (COGTA)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
29.

Related party transactions (continued)

Government Controlled Entities
		
Municipality
Water Board

Foskor Limited
Transnet
City of uMhlathuze
South African Association of Water Utilities

Certain members of the Board of Mhlathuze Water hold positions with entities, having a relationship with Mhlathuze Water. The
relationship between the Board member and the entity concerned are listed below.
Board member

Entity

Position held

DC Myeni

South African Airways
South African Association of Water Utilities

Chairperson
Chairperson

MM Xulu

Foskor (Pty) Ltd

General Manager: Marketing and Sales

FG Bosman

City of uMhlathuze

Municipal Council

Adv. S Chamane

KZN Office of the Premier

Deputy Director General:
Institutional Development and Integrity Management Units

NN Khumalo

Independent Development Trust

Regional General Manager

A Badul

iLembe District Municipality

Municipal Council

For a full list of Board members and Executives, refer to note 18.
2016
R’000

2015
R‘000

Department of Water and Sanitation - Water services TG Scheme

10 995

13 322

Department of Water and Sanitation - External/implementing/laboratory services

35 623

35 921

Department of Basic Education - External/implementing

19 615

3 173

Department of Education - External/implementing

-

4 533

Department of Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs (COGTA) - External/implementing

-

376

4 695

4 205

36

26

10 852

12 640

7 081

9 999

88 897

84 195

Department of Water and Sanitation - Water services TG Scheme

8 144

6 524

Department of Water and Sanitation - External/implementing/laboratory services

4 747

5 766

-

95

2 589

2 748

15 480

15 133

Loan accounts - owing (to)/by related parties
Amounts included in receivables from exchange transactions

Foskor Limited - Effluent/laboratory/advances
City of uMhlathuze - Laboratory services/sundry
City of uMhlathuze - Water and effluent
City of uMhlathuze - Operations and maintenance
Total
Amounts included in payables from exchange transactions

Foskor Limited - Effluent/laboratory/advances
City of uMhlathuze - Laboratory services/sundry
Total
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2016
R’000

2015
R‘000

Department of Water and Sanitation - Implementing/laboratory

13 716

19 875

Department of Environmental Affairs - Implementing/laboratory

1 706

1 479

Department of Basic Education - Implementing/laboratory

172

1 684

Department of Education - Implementing/laboratory
Department of Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs (COGTA)
- Implementing/laboratory
Foskor Limited - Effluent disposal & income in advances

654

2 865

1 723

1 775

57 420

52 323

132 660

145 230

131

121

56 957

44 429

-

3

320

-

332 340

309 343

Department of Water and Sanitation - TG Scheme

56 926

-

Total

56 926

-

Department of Water and Sanitation - implementing/laboratory

59 141

56 753

Department of Water and Sanitation - TG Scheme

66 881

39 559

1 046

951

33 916

36 285

-

167

160 984

133 715

29. Related party transactions (continued)
Sales of goods/services to related parties

City of uMhlathuze - Water & Effluent
City of uMhlathuze - Laboratory/Sundry
City of uMhlathuze - Operations and maintenance
Transnet - Laboratory analysis
Department of Water and Sanitation - Laboratory analysis
Total
Sale of assets to related party

Purchases from related parties

Foskor Limited - Effluent disposal & income in advances
City of uMhlathuze - Electricity
South African Association of Water Utilities - Members fees
Total
Remuneration of management and board
*Refer to note 18 “Board members and executives’ emoluments”
30.

Events after the reporting date
There were no events after the reporting period requiring adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.

31.

Financial assistance from the state
Mhlathuze Water did not receive any financial assistance from the state.

32.

Taxation
Mhlathuze Water is exempt from taxation in terms of section 10(1)(t) (ix) read with the definition of Water Services Provider in
Section 1 of the Income Tax Act,1962 (Act No. 58 of 1962).
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33.

Going concern
The Department of Water and Sanitation has embarked on a programme of Institutional Reform and Realignment (IRR) with the
aim of improving the institutional landscape in the sector and building stable and performing institutions. These institutions will
assist with expanding access to unserved areas and overall improving service delivery efficiencies and effectiveness. The intention is
to enhance the functional capabilities, operational strength and readiness of the institutions to handle the challenges of the water
sector service delivery.
In line with the powers vested in her in terms of the Water Services Act, the Minister of Water and Sanitation announced in July
2015 her intention to disestablish Umgeni, Mhlathuze and uThukela Water Boards and to establish a single Water Board in
Kwazulu-Natal.
Phase 1 through to phase 4 of the abovementioned project will take a minimum of 18 months to complete with the timeline for
phase 3 not being taken into account as the stakeholders are unable to reasonably estimate the timeframe for these activities.
Thus, given the extensive nature of the consultative process, due diligence exercise and other legal and compliance requirements,
it is anticipated that the entire process would be lengthy and may not be completed by September 2017.
Irrespective of the date of completion, Mhlathuze Water shall remain a legal entity and going concern up until the date of formal
disestablishment by notice in the Government Gazette. Therefore, Mhlathuze Water has no reason to believe that this process will
negatively impact the going concern assumption of the entity for the foreseeable future.
Therefore the annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern.
This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

34.

Litigations and claims
The CE of MW (Mr Sibusiso Makhanya) is currently under suspension and has lodged an application disputing the validity of his
suspension. At the date of reporting, the matter was not yet resolved.
Except for the above matter, there are no other instances of litigation or claims which may result in a material financial loss to MW
at the date of reporting.
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